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Independent Auditors” Report

Based on a report originally issued in Korean

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
POSCO:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of POSCO and
subsidiaries (the “Company’™) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consohdated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally aceepied in the Republic of
Korea. Those standards require that we plan and perform the sudit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated [mancial statements are free of matenal misstatement.  An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overail financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for cur opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred 1o above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and its financial
performance and its cash {Tows for the years then ended, in conformity with Korean International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw atiention io the following:

The procedures and practices utilized in the Republic of Kores to audit such conselidated fnancial
statements may differ from those generally accepted and apphied 1 other countries,  Accordingly,
this report and the accompanying consolidated financial siatements are for use by those knowledgeable
about Korean auditing standards and their application m practice.



Folio232

Seoul, Korea
February xx, 2013

This report is effective as of February xx, 2013, the audit report date.  Certain subsequent events or
circumstances, which may occur between the audit report date and the time of reading this report,
could have a material impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto.  Accordingly, the readers of the audit report should understand that the above audit report
has not been updated to reflect the impact of such subsequent events or circumstances, if any.
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fin millions of Won)
Assets

(Cash and cash equivalents

Trade accounts and notes recervable, net
Other receivables

Other short-term fnancial assets
Inventories

Current ncome tax assets

Assets held for sale

Other currend assets

Total current assets

Long-term trade accounis and notes receivable, net

Other receivables

Other long-term financial assets
Investments n associates
Investment property, net
Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net

Deferred tax assets

Chiher long-ferm assels

Total non-cayrrent assets

Total assets

Notes Precember 31, 2312 December 31, 2011
5,20 W 4.680,526 4,598 682
5,152024,2534 11037973 11450515
7.20.34 1,591 439 1,433,508
7.20,34 2254994 27222762
8 10,584,646 12,283 644
32 i7.168 18621

9 1,180 32903
14 1,398,180 1,220,142
31,566,116 33,556,911
6,20 142,204 183061
7.20 699 (24 347 401
7.20 3970845 4,778 271
10 3,039,261 3,831,659
11 521,191 527,533
12 32276379 28.453,184
13 5662361 5244928
32 994,684 855,603
14 3093786 630,287
47,699,735 44,851,927
W 79,265,851 78,408,838

See uccompanying notes to the consolidated financial stafements.
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Becember 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

(in milllions of Wonj Notes
E.iabilities
Trade accounts and notes pavable 20,34
Short-term borrowings and current installments
of long-term horrowings 15.20
Other payables 16,2034
Other short-term financial liabilities 162034
Current mcome tax lialdlities 32
Liabilities related to assets held for sale G
Provisions 17
Other current kabilities 19,25
Fotal current liahilitie s
L.ong-term trade accounts and notes payable 20,24
Long-term borrowings,
exciuding current installments 1520
Other payables 16,20
Other long-term financial iabilities 1620
Defined benefits liabilities i%
Deferred tax liabilities 32
Long-term provisions 17
Other long-term liabilities 10
Total non-current liabilities
Total Habilities
Eqguity
Share capital 21
Capital surphus 21
Reserves 22
Treasury shares 23

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners
of the contrelling company

Norn-controlling interests
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

LA

W 4,384,195 4,397.279
16,509,348 10,791,510
1,605,817 1.505.966
321,828 305224
555,328 509,709
- 326,607
77.831 69432
2,311,634 1,799,631
19,775,001 19,605,358
2,503 383
14,412,085 16,020,207
142412 169,375
219223 181,185
345,688 340467
1,461,519 1,168,097
160,098 109,343
377,814 84,503
17061432 18,073,560
36,836,433 37678918
482,403 482,403
1,104,814 1150452
(88,150} 405426
{2,391.406) {2,391.4006)
403,346,481 38709475
30454142 38,356,350
2975276 2,373,570
42429418 40,729,920
W 79,263,851 78,408,838
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See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial sratements,

December 31, 2012

December 3, 2611

fin mitlions of Won, except per share information) Notes
Revenue 232534
Cost of sales 2833

Gress profit

Seling and administrative expenses

Admiustrative expenses 26,2731

Selling expenses 2631
Operafing prefit I8
Share of profit (loss) of equitv-accounted mvestees 10

Finance income and costs

Firance income 2029
Finance costs 029

Other son-operating neome and expenses
Other non-operating income kY
Other non-operating expenses 3631

Profit before income tax
[ncame tax expense

T
el

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income (oss)
Capital adjustment arising from fsvestiments in equity-method investees
Net changes m the unrealized fafr value of available-for-sale mvestments 0
Foreign currency translation differences
Detined benefit plan actuarial losses

Other comprehensive foss, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit (doss) atiributable fo;
Owners of the controlling company
Non-coentroling mterests
Profit for the period
Total comprehensive inconte (Joss) attributable to:
Qwners of the controlling company
Non-controling interests

Total comprehensive income for the period

Basic and diluted earnings per share 33

See gecompanying notes 1o the consolidared financial statements.

W 63,604,151 68938725
(56,142 8523 (59,823,850}

7461259 9114875

(2.129.463) {2035053)

(1LATR.688) (1612128}

3653108 SA6THNM

(22,7023 3569

2897063 3150419

(2,797,638} (3866495}

448,120 36541
(809465) {366,5337

3368456 4782395

(982 8704 (1063, 104

2385607 3714286
{130,836) (11,2408
(81.471) (1231758}

(363 088) 1666
(62,327) (AT
(637.922) (1271509,

ki 1747685 2442377
W 2462081 3648156
(76,474) 66.) 50

W 2,385,607 3714286
kil 1911506 2530437
(163321} (88,065)

W L 747685 2442377
W 31874 47524



Folio227

£

SIUAWDINS [DUDHY PRIPMIOSUeD 21 0] satou Suilundioodn 2a5

A FIOT 1§ 10quisdag] Jo se adumpeg)

Autdiin ey Sunjosuod 3y po SN0 G)pM SR8 SERE R0 g

SIMIOY
SaIRYS Amsean o iesodsic
satets Lmspay §o vomsmboy
s Rpans 1 s1saiang digsaatmo W safuny )
SAIMPISGNS JO sonEsmbOYy
SPUSPAD WLIJU]
SPUBPLALY PUD-IED A

Kpnba uy Apssitp pozpeiorar
uedurod Su0 0D 243 O SIAAG I STOTFT SRl g

WO da3s Ay dand U104,

130 Jau RSSO jruenyoy unjd niouaq pauacy
N O IO ERIURISHIP donusu R Asudno uimio
WY HY 3 CSHIBULSIAN M BE-I0-QRIRAT
30 onpeA nep pazgeen a1 salue e
Wa 0 10T SO D0SSE U] SHIDULS A JO
SO DAY .ﬁ..ﬁ&u«.hmmﬁ._ﬁu [FRERRIND0E :ﬁ wﬁmzmﬁu 2N
powad oy 1y yoLd
st odug datsuoydrduery
T107 1 AJEDUES [0 SE 2OUB[ Y]

(U JO SHONINE )

(o6l 0r HELLET [N SLEBOLSE War (687D Ere gy LSOl COFRF
(FT9'AE) [N (CoToR) 85t'e) fOR'8F -
(LLeog FERT HeTes) (S8t - {got'a) xS -
GO - GOETE - SRS - 51760 -
968" 191 - 196219} - (GET 10 - - -
$EOSET (p6a'07) - - - (p6500) -
CRELED - - - - - -
arreen) - e SINTER
(828'4068) (o) ) (UL LLE) . . -
LLETHR L (G LEFOEST [EERFRS - HOLTET - -
(2L808) (Z5s's} [ ] (LHOTTE - - - -
999°] (956413 TE D] - - TEGOR - -
Sy et (SO ey - - HsnLrs - -
Oy Lyl [Tl - - oLoen - -
[N GEPRFO'C GEIGRY - - - -
L9ULEERE W96 BRUELEGE LOULRSEE [BUTE Y BOTLOSY HOCT 0 COFERE
FLALiNS DR BT [e3en sTuuIea SIS SFALIS DY snpdans [endea
Juyyoazuos (NG P 3ERI DY LIRseaay endey 1Y
RII0N AHBdUEO ) BHIFFOAEND Y1 O 43000 4 DRIEINGEN Y

LLOZ PuUe ZL0Z ‘LE Joquuada(] papus sieah ayj Jo4
Ajinbz w1 sabueys jo sjuswalelg pajepiosuon

saueIpisgqng pue 09S0d



Folio226

STUAUWIIONS [DIOUDUY PaippijosuoD dy1 0F sa10u Suidunduioson pag

RIFBIF ey GLTCIHT TRUESRGY P 0REDE WOF 1680} [N PINO OrTSE
SRp) L7500 [FAIRITY [ERET] - [CHAL (S{oer} -
{80.°¢) BOGLET [Er - Wee' b L8 -
FUTO 611} - - - 76 1} -
OLHSE - - - - - -
{oREECT) - (G8FPe? l68FPCL
PROT665) {1Sip1l {EYeaLs: [FISANE - - - -
SRGLELT] HESITH GIAT E [T - -
LTsTo {Z00E) {S2688) (57age) - - - -
{geacos) (L) (SH et - - (£10e68) - -
HLF18) 061°¢ {1950R} - - (19008} - -
osg'oe1) (Zogin FLeTiy - - (PLaTiL) - -
LOTCRET iFiroL) PROTOFT 2 - - - -
GraeTLOF LEEEET IECUSERE o0’ ag'T STESOE TEFDET LOFTEF
iy $3%042360 FLTS SOUHLIE Y AR S SAAIBSIY sdans eydun
Suptonuo aqng HENTA RN Amsearg Eude) EXHHN
~EOR Auetiney FugeHod 3 Fo SIMERO 0 JqUIngLEY

16T “EE 406G D3agE JO B aduRpyg
Aundion BEHOIE03 I} 1O S130M0 gHM SUOJIIRSURY) B0 ],

SEMREY
soRpans o Sseanu depsisias w saflawyny
SMIMPISQRS JO uotishoy
SPUDPIAL WL
SPUSPAIY PUA-I2D ),
Aynba g Apaoap panaioras
Supdnied FUReOIoeD 3] JO SIINM0 YA SHOIVSURLY

O] IALSH oy pyo ],
XU 0 191 *50580] [EIRRIDE wigd 1OUDg pauag]
N1 30 190 SSpouaip sonwsuen Aouaums uian,
N0 0 10 CSIUGUISDAUL R RE-10] -G eAL
0 anpea awy paspuaun oy wosafueys o
W) 360 190 SOTRDOSTE 1 SIUDTISDAL JO

DU dASTADIIRIOD PAIMURD0E W seiunyd N
porsadd Ay 0] O]
saureat aalstayardwo)

7107 '] AU jo S8 3aunEg

(U0 JO SHORPM )

LL0Z PUR Z10Z ‘1€ Jaquiaoa( papus sieak ay) 104
panupuos ‘AQiinb3g w1l sabueys JO SjUsWSRS PAJRPHOSUOY)

saueipisqng pue 0980d



POSCO and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
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sin milfions of Won) Note

December 31, 2012

Decentber 31, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the period W 23856407 3714286
Adistments for
Depreciation 2,405,769 2133010
Amortizaton 157501 133,289
Finance ncome (15532080 (1,734 280
Fiance costs Le05414 22345657
ncome ax expense G2 870 1 O6R. 109
Gamn on disposal of property, plant, and equipment (32.290) {13812
[.oss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment OH3486 60,550
Share of profit (loss) of equity-aceounted mvestess 22,702 (30,569}
Costs for defined beneftt plans 226,152 236,908
Bad debt expenses 123373 45477
Impairment koss of assets held for sale 258451 -
Cizin on disposal of assets held for sale (193,353 -
Others, net 104,728 136,637
4,166,102 4,264,366
Changes in operating agsets and Labilities 36 1933358 {AES0,747y
fnterest received 238,231 218,682
fnterest paid (874,71 1% (745111
Dividends received 178317 308,692
[ncome taxes paid {710448) (1,218,602
Net cash provided by operating activities 7319436 1,691,566
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of short-term financial mstruments 3847682 5.794.770
Collection of loans 318,745 806,056
Proceeds from dispesal of avallable-for-sale mvestments TO0686 411,061
Froceeds {rom disposal of other invesoment assets 19,366 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equpment 272,948 1404221
Proceeds from disposal of sangible assets 10.945 55,899
PFroceeds from disposal of invesiments of equty-accounted mvestees 18428 2404
Proveeds from disposal of assets held for sale 1.268.545 -
Acquisition of short-term financial instraments (3616.118) (43563404
Issuance of loans {434,156) (962,099
Acquisition of available-for-sale mvestments (307,742 (322,046)
Acquisition of other investment assets (128) {450
Acquistion of mvestments of equity-accounted mvestees (492681 (7409713
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment {754,543} (3330968}
Acquisition of numgble assets {448,214y (574,753)
Payment for acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (9%, 880 (437 464}
Cash received from disposal of business 13,041 -
Other, net (187,157 17,214
Net cash used 1 investing activities kil (6,169,003) {5.516.866)

See accompanying notes (o the consolidated financial statements.

9
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POSCO and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Continued
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

(i miffions of Won} Note December 31,2012 December 31, 2011

Cash flows from finaneing activities

Proceeds from horrowings ki 3007017 7068322
Proceeds from disposal of treasury shares - 164,384
Proceeds from shori-terin borrowings (1412,138) 51,808
Repayment of borrowings {1.884,1400 (1,746 487}
Acquisttion of treasury shares - (61,296}
Payment of cash dividends (751.508) (770,858}
Cither, net 133542 194,012
Net cash provided by {(used ) financing activities (W7 627y 4.809 885

Eftect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash held {160,982 30582
Net increase in cash and eash equivalents 81,544 LOT7.637
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 4508 682 3,521,045
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period W 4,680,526 4,598,682

See acoompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

1. General Information
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POSCO and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2012

General information about POSCO, iz 51 domestic subsidianies including POSCO Engineerning &
Construction Co., Ltd., 166 foreign subsidiaries including POSCO America Corporation and its 94
associates {collectively, “the Company™) are as follows:

(2} The controlling company

POSCO, the controlling company, was incorporated on April 1, 1968, under the Commercial Code
of the Republic of Korea to manutacture and sell steel rolied products and plates in the domestic
and foreign markets.

The shares of POSCO have been listed on the Korea Exchange since 1988, POSCO owns and
operates two sieel plants (Pohang and Gwangyang) and one office in Korea and it also operates

internationally through nine of its overseas liaison offices,

As of December 31, 2012, POSCO’s shareholders are as follows:

2012 20

Shareholder's name Number of shares Ownership (%6)  Number of shares Ownership (%)

National Pension Service 3225654 5.99% 5937323 6.812%
Nippon Steel & Sumitomeo Metal Corporation {%1) 4394712 5.04% 4394712 5.04%
SK Telecom Co., Ltd. - - 2481310 2.85%
KB Financial Group Inc. and subsidiaries 1919773 2.20% “ -
Pohang University of Science and Technology 1,503,000 2.18% 1,905,000 2, 18%
Shinhan Financizl Group Inc. and subsidiaries 1,845,054 2.12% 1,870,879 2.153%
Others 71,806,642 R2.A7% 70,597 611 50.97%
37.186,835 HIG.00% 87,186,835 100.00%%

(*13 Nippon Steel & Sumitemo Metal Corporation owns American Depository Receipts {ADRs) of
the Company, each of which represents 0.25 share of POSC(O’s common share which has par
vatue of W 5,000 per share.

As of Drecember 31, 2012, the shares of the Company are listed on the Korea Exchange. while its
depository shares are listed on the New York, Tokyo and London Stock Exchanges.
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{b) Consolidated subsidiaries

Details of consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012

Domestic]

POSCO E&C To L1l

D P&RS Co bid

Contedd & Color S1ed Co

BGRCO Plast Eagnearng Co., Lid

POSCG ICT Colid

ehitely Co., Lid
PUSCG Chemtee Carmpesry £40,

Femtech 206 Eaergy Fond (¢0)
PHE Co Ll

POSCO TMO Con, L

] g inng
Fodung Fuel Cell Co, Lid

Potang Co b
FOSWITH Co Lid

BASYS INDUSTRY Co Lid

POSTECH B Newundorsbieg fund
POSBRRO A
FORCOART Co Lid

Diziynng TMS Co Lid

VAL Col bnid
G800 &R Co Lud
MIC Co., Lad,

FOS ECO BOUSING Co | Lid

Mapo high broad parking Co., Lid

Drphos Co, Lid

Kowang Yang SPFC Col Lod

FOSCALCIL

lant Bngineering servive
Feehmoogy Co., Lod,

Grgl Con, Ed

Fomtech Batly Srage Furd (92

Fugan ¥

: Family Smawepy Fonds
POREKA Co, Lad
Songde S8 Co. Lad

a Iaersationad U amporaiion

LED Cor L
Chmsan SPFC Co, Lud

Center (o Eub

"8 energy ghobal Co., Lad
: weans (o Bad
¢ Co., Lad,

MewAlee Coo b

PONUTe

L
SELE G&M O Lid

T €3fshore Wind Power (o Lad

FOS-HIAL

FACM Hives
E&E

Tancheon

and 2011 are as follows:

Chwners hip (%)

ME2 2013
Principal ope rutions POSCO Subs idierie s Tosak POSCO Subsidisries Total Reginn
Engineering and constructain £l - B #9583 - Poliang
sales and senvice Raied| - KR 4531 Seaul
apted steed menofzoturng 56 ET - s AT 87 -
Steel work wanienance
. e Hifa G0 - i Lo 14100, 5) -
and machiery wstafarion
Cempaner hapdaear . oy I ) 04
Eermomic re - 5 0 106G - THLO Seaul
Ahleric (aefies operanon Az Vi 263 [ A2 18808 Sumcheon
Arehitecturs and consuling - G 00 LK) - Seoul
Steed manmifactiring and sales - LR TKkE7S Changwan
Investmend B veniume comypanies - w5 D340 - Pohang
Elomonic cotanerce 0 2.3 Seout
Manufecniring and sefings LURE] - A3 21 ) - [aAY Pohang
Transpeoriing and warehdasing - Eb oy SLAE LECTT - Rt
Packing materizls mans ~ %45 RN -
Crenezaticn of el 45 637 SO - VEELR Seout
Invesmmen i new tech: - R 2 220t ERRN Sedml
Rental howses copstRLton
5 hat ] HOREa HEEkrss tnchean
s
CRnent manniac 420 33 56 RN 5776 Cheonsn
Steed mamiiotarrg and sales I - - A Pohang
Rea! cotate rental and s - FUE £ HITED ke
CematrucTion and ¢ - a5 34 - G 14 ERE ¢
Clereration of ¢le - - - OG0 TR M Pohang
Sigel mandzomrng - Rt G - H00 HLO0 Pohang
ladwesrial clean sersice 14HE 103 HugEs) TCKLEHD - 10000 Pohiang
Panet board, clecwic and . . -
o - - - B5.(R) A3 Seongnant
contrad praelnansfacneng -
Bio diesel mdustries - ~ 18360 Fohang
Video game manufTcturing - . - GET e Seomgnarm
Sieed manufacturmg and Sales 143433 HEEEE] ROl HELED Ansan
Cold rolag of stainkess stect and . .
. . - - 1402501 HIELO0 Sheimg
nicked aboy
Steed mamfacturing and Sales (st [SR1] LR - [kt
Handing & dispasal of waste mager - .00 1631 4y HESR] 10000 Seout
Fducation sery - - - HESRI 100,00 Podiang
Non mesatic minerals manufaeturig 69 23 6223 - Groeamgyan
Consiuction #E 28 3555 - Pohang
Construction T B0 RS H L Seoul
Raiheay sgupment masfacting, EARES] #1001 LG Seongnam
Steel manufaciering EhEt 65 84 B354 @
Now trieszific minerals manuwfacturng - #5877 #6587 - O Faisd Poltang
Engineering senice T6HE I HiH] HESRE) 1062030 Pobizng
Steel manofacturing RO W6 R go.40 0,80
Fimancial imvestment. Wi 14 4 - H.40 1000
Handiing & disposal of wasie mates 300 - i £ FA0 - T Busan
Financiat fmvesiment A B 141 4 .93 w47 UG Pohang
Advernsing zgency 1006 (k5 - 14013 () 010G - HEM Seaut
{leaning service - 14003 §080.000 tachecn
rack Energy & Resomes
Trachng. Energy & Resouree e, R i 31 4650 Seoat
1670 51 i L HS Seangnasm
Sreef i plEEY - Gunsan
Steel mprtacturiag - [BARER Busan
Steot mararacniring - LHEE] - ST Fohang
- Fif 40) ] - (i Pohang
- 1433 1 GEAES Susc e
- - [fEaRis
Steet mangfzoirg B K EEURES] .58
A hapndn products mamfaclermg
’ PO - 0t 6 30 018
arsd siiey
Waclear power generatos desigy .
p. N = - SR HT (K FEELHD
2t repin service
Service ket HLLERA 3 FHILET
Tigeneration phant operation #% 4iy &4 T - - ie
Almmmman peadie s mardachunng - - ,
. - #3530 i3 - Y e
aned sy :
Toom ore salkes & mine devehpmment - R R0 - Seaut
Sewspe hest energy supphy Rt i RERE - Sedot
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[Feretgn}

jea Corposation
i Py, Lid

BOSCO-CTRC Co Lad,
POSCG-IRPT Co L

Entrmnatimal Bashecs

e

POSCO LT Vismam Co Lid
Ehangfagang Pohang
Stabaless Steel oo Lad
Chiangdomg Pohang Comed
Stewd Co., Lid

ingdsa Fohang
Seeel Co Lid

POISCE { Sandionn) Austonwitive
Frocessing Center Co, Lid

POSCH BigVentres 1P,

T POSNESIA

POSCO BLC - Bawali Inc,

FOS-Chngdao Colt Center Co, il

BOS-Ce Prv Lod,

POSCO-Ching Holding Corp

PO o
POSOO- fndis Pof
FOSCON India Puse Stedd
ing Centre Put, Lid
i Co, bt
iformesty, FOSCO-INPC Co, fd )
POSCO-Foshan Steel Processs
Center Co. Lid
POSCO BE&C {Thing) Ca,
MPCS A, de OV
ang Pohang Port o Lok
a1 Sreel Mizwrnd Co Lrd
PORECO-Yiewsm Co, Lad
POSCO-Mesicn O Lid
POSCO-Ind Dely
Procegsing Centre P41, 1ad
POSUCRPoland Wrocksw Sicel
o Center o, Lad
P Py Lrd
POSCO-Viemam Pro
Cenrer O, Lad

g

serals Cirporgrion

3 {Wahuh Autonsthe
Provossng Center Co Lid,
POSCO BEC Indin Private Lo
Al ART

g Cea, L1
FOSCO Mexeo Human Tech
PO Mewico Eagt Sl
Prestiens Ceneer (o, Lid

Chenershig (543
08l i
Principal operations POy Subsidiaries Total POSCE Subsidiaries Tl Region
Steel rading R .58 it} ik 055 L0 UsA
183 043 - 14083 1) - HEER 6 Altstralia
Coal sales - 003 03 ECIH 0} - 300,000 Xl Canada
Coal sales - AL RH Hi N - 10,00 FOHLO0 Canada
Steed transdt mading H G 13t £n) 14001, Haong King
35 06 HE 0 LA China
[N HOR F0361 £36) SR Ching
- AT 3% THF - Izpun
A i 1) [EEREN] Yigmam
Sreel manafzeinng HAISV - Wetnam
Stabsiess stesl na g S50 REEY
Plating steel sheet masufzetuting AT 63 1rod @708 0.4t 4 53 China
Steel manufacneing BR a2 14500433 3 14.38 TG0 Thailrmi
Line relief manuf T e} . IO T HLOG Mydranar
1 maredaes S R4 i B 6B lapan
Fimeneiz! Service FEOG 483 £} A - Huong Komg
Seeed masufhcnring 4 6 0483 LX) Ry Mz
Sexidess steel mandzeiving i LR G H, EEREH] 140K iz
Sreat manniache g G M 460 EESREs 00 TG0 TH0.05 Cina
Eia tech Industry 140 &0 [EERREH 1643400 160008 SN
Stect msnufzcturbg 000 - T T - . Indoresia
Real estate Induswy 1452003 T4 108,60 14000 USa
Steet msnalaotrg [RESREN) JREsREH - 1683.650 0L00 Ching
tron ore sales & mine develipmene - 1440 it T4 43 1013 €y 15008 Augtraliz
A hobding company 3 41T Jery i) - 1000 Chia
el trading 100 (41 165 64 190,00 Sapun
_ OO0 Australia
- - HLEAREH Austruhs
Sreed rranefaomoring [ 1) HEazi HEARY Fachia
Sreel manaadtorig 65 ) %K 050 friiie
Steel manufactrmg - A8 62 FERY WG LK fapan
Stael manifacwring RER) ) 4 LR 30t 449,40 18008 Chinz
Consruction and chvil engineering 145y 33 TEH - 134,04 006 Ching
Steef mannfacarmng - WE O HEO 35.00 S0 Merio
foud and nnkead Drdustey - 1483 £33 14 (3 LERES] TGRS Ehina
Hreet anafzenring - i 0K $Ei O Hesb prestias Chinz
Sreel manufzotrng ERRE - B - SR Vet
wobile steel sheet mamwizon 4 84 e TEK Y 1932 1D RMexin
Sreed manufacnring CLE 13 i TH A ThAG - 6.4 fadia
Steel manufaciurang GEEE) RUREH [eREN - [EIREY) Poland
Coaksales - IEARES] 14 €3 0 [RueXe sl Austreliz
4] B3 R R - 958 VieTnarn
3 1) 13 £5 [Ess .06 1.6 14308 China
1483t il
Steel manufacnring - -
Steel manail = 247 B 80457 ats
Wi develoment & salos RESEEH - HUSRVA]
Steet manufcurmg AR A7 [IEIREH GERT LERC K HEMUE Chaa
Constructon and engingering - 1430 500 [EREH - HI0.0 USR] Tnaia
Comstrugtion and engmeering - 1433 4y IREIRES - HIO0 SUARE Memics
Sreel manulicrariig REAREY] 1436 443 - RS BN Fhiippines
Steel manufzo gT.9% #1.4% i EER &3 4598 ALRE
- 1443 133 iRy aH ALY TR China
Transi irade - T BUEEH .04 i China
Sieel ranst rading [EEiRE] [RESREH - Hv et HexR il {hinag
Service {0410 2040 100 43 A0 20.400G EOE3.00 Mexicn
Steed product sales - 3 &4 At i ReR3} 36,84 Mesxice
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iFoveignf
POSCO I

POSCO Sennh East Asis Fre. Lal
weet Drigirilntion Center

POSCO VY 5
¥ Madmsrashia Swel P Lid
Tdia Chennst Sieed
: ire But Lk
FOSCO Turkey Nilufer
Processag Censer U, Lad,
FROSC0 Victnanr Hy
Processing Center Co Lid
POSCO T Boning ) Auirolive
g Center Co, L

Prose

Processing Cener
¥ O E&C Vensaels A
#TOMRE
POSCORE-INDEA
POSO America A b

P DEC Indenesia
PO Y antaly Adomonive

Frrocesitng Conmter Co Lad
¥ India Srecl Diseri:

POSCO WA Pry Lad
Pt F& - U
POSCO Avswabia G Limied
Praewon hternatizud Amnerca (o
Fraewod nternationst
Pretschland GinbH
Praewno nfernarioal bapan Cop
Pracwon nternationat
Smgapore P, Lad
Daewon hakiz Sl
Draewon Cement {Shandorgy Uo, Lid
Praewoo (China} Lo Lid.
PT.RISMAR Doewon Apparcel
Draewon Textde Fergana LLC
Dacwan Texrie Bukhara LLC
Daewea hriernarionst Austali
Huldings v, Lrd.
Eraewoo Paper Manudacraring o, Lid.
Tiangr Daewon Faper Tn Lid
POSCO Manritus Lid
BT KRAKATAL PORCO
MY ANMAR Dagwon LT
Pracwaod Iteriasbnat
MEXICO SA, de OV
Draewon internations Gu

RMYANMAR Daowen Internatimal L
DAYTER & (FNICS CORP

Ownership (5}

2 11
Principal operations POSCO Subsilizries Tusal POSCO Sybsidiaries Tonal Region
iT senvice and VR busisess U] [DAREH - el 10063 China
Cohsrietisn LE ] 900 - 6 4900 Mexico
Steel masufacinmg - a1 (BN - 8144 IR Mexico
Lumber mansfaciring & sales 40 - a0 R0 B0 Urnguay
Steed ransi tading #7154 67 53 - SO0 510G Singapore
eod product sales 33 i) 20 0 SR 200400 .00 5
FRT 1eat frack comsustio w87 R - A, 50,57
S EESRER] ENE 0y 10000 100060
Siainless steel manuihcteng 568 45 : L6
Sieel BCITRY 1180 - HEIRN L0000 140000
Steed mifaciuring - HIESVH HG40 1430000
Steel manufacesng 1443 &3l - AR 0L [[UACH Furkis
Steel mannfacuing HHE - i {ify ) WiginmT
Greel maredaciing 3 T 14 4361 HERH 35 16,450 19000 v
B3 fH) iR H5 i A% ZEAD ERREY) Endnesis
Censtruerion wnd engiees 18513 (1t} § L L} HERED
wifte dewelopmenn A5 60 - #30K) X - H3.8)
Stoek manafsonry |3 ity HUSRL FOIGLARE 196D
Steel manfzchning 4865 (53 HR LG
onstrneton 5 (3 Ry BRIMF RaRid]
Stecl maneiacning Ol O HERH GRS 100 HERRE] Chiia
Szeal Lo - {436 03 ISR HESEESS Tnzcdin
Sreel manufrcnung Bl i HERUH 000 T SO Chia
Steet product sakes JeEgia] - [LERES [ £245.063 - T Thatand
Steed runafacnamng |3ty 513 [EERE 1463.00 LG Vietrmn
- ALY HEARES 1RG0 TG (3 Canada
s sades & e developmerd HEARE] - Rty TG - Lot Austrzfa
Construction £t 00 330 140 [LeEe] Lizhekistan
Resource develpment HUAER] {0 i [EEARER] TOELTD Austraba
Trading busness - 14 33 Hb] - 100,80 HEL Usa
Trading business - G 8) G i1 - EAIREN ECELO0 Crermany
Trading business itlis00 ) 00 L7300 Tupuan
Trading busess - 1) HiGE ] - .00 OO0 gApre
Trading business - 1443 Oix LIRS0 - 30000 100,00 haba
Cement manufachmg - - - - 10000 HEREL Ching
Trading bushess - 1833 £ T4 4 - 1ML EKY 10000 China
lothing usin - . - - LERREH 100 06 Indones
Fexsile mranafacning - 1060 (SRR - T8N0 100 Uzhekistan
Textile manufacnning - 144).17 [BUEH [EixeH) 00063 Libekisian
Resource develpment 140 tify 1630430 - 430200 13,01 Australia
Paper mdusty - a6 10 [ 6, 71 a6.70 i
Paper ddusiy A8 50 58 30 1% ) 68.G0
Ming develnpm HOARED] (LB ReE - 0 30640 Mavrits
Steel manufacm i) - o 200 Tl ndonesia
Trading busines: N L3 0) BRI LG Ayanmay

Tyadmng biusiness
Trading bust
Rasoarce devekpment
Feostily mannfachrng

Textile samafac

Trading business
Trading business
Trading I
Trading busksess

Lt saanisfact

LSRN
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HIEEN]
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TEHE 3
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{Foreize}
FOISI0 (2] &1
Sieel Provessing Center Co. Lud
Draswod Iersationsd
Corparation (M) SDN BRI
Doy Tnternationat
SHAMNGHATCOL LT
FOSF,LLO

Heveavs o,

FT. POSCO BE&C Indonesia
Hume €and Pry. Lad

¥ 14N S Ciimbi

SANTGE O FENHARIA E
CONSTRUCOES LTDA
SANTOS C ERLE SAL

S RRLGUAYS

ECH Internardosal INC.

N

NOGENIERIA Y
RHOLAND (]

DECHR
(MENIHTOY

? S8A
{ALTIDAMERICAS 54,
SN I CorreeTitny
Arpending 5A.
SOSC B&C Braxl Lid
POSCE Blecincal Sieel Indis
Private Limied
Draevwos nternationst Cameroon PLC
LSOO A58 VT STEEL Indusiry

BEOTG BONG POSCO BEEC (OHINAY
Iveesmnent O, Ltd

POSCODakny 1T Center
Ereveloptnert C'o., L
FYPOSCO Resourees de

#1PGRCO ICT ndonesia

WER

PUSE Yhamox
Pubilic. Company Limiied
Eraewed ey etinal
Shanghat Waigaogiao o Lid
FF Bio btk Agrindo
POSCOH B4 Ay

e Pty £rd
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Hranelivn POSCG Lagstics
LSA SRDC Corpors

Dxewed Intersmtional Vicoram Ceo_ Lid,

PT. Krajzta POSCO Chemiech
Cakiwation

POSCED- Alriea

P CINGENIERIA & SERVICIOS
3 TARICA S AL

POSCEICT BRASIE,

BARTHIIPACDES

LA-SURAP RECYOLING
DESTRIBLINION CENTER LLC

EEL, Cinbibd

Fesee Comer Bemng,

Sencrship (%

20%2 241y
Principsl operadens POSCO Subsidiaries Tzl POSCT Subsidiaries Tmal Jee ginn
Steed (EEEITY 43000 HIR] HEARED 16405
Frading business T4 FOAL 0 HURED) LAY
Trading husiness HOty ey HESRES] kG HLixi) i
i rech mdisry HAtE) HI0E) SERLH i EiSA
kX e RTEHY Sl . .k
Pzt %mu AL SOl 3 58 a1 &4 3 RS W9 Sapmre
manufaTrng
Tradmg huginesy - Hiy 14303 13} Rt}
Fleciricad mousiry - LRy BORN) oy LiSA
onstrae Bon - 14323 4303 [ndimes i
Raw maleriat m. - HAREH Austyalia
- RIGEE £33 £33 T8, 04 Ciermany
- 143 ixx 18305 4348 T4k Irvetia
- Myl . T England
Chmstrist nn - D 5 4 - S ¥ i Eragi el
oI R HORT g IERCH - 0L IRE LA
Cronsucos - G g Bt - G W58 Frvaad
LIotstuction - W ERA - 9840 W fera
Lonstructian - 1434 0} 100 43 0RO e Crongta Bica
Lloetsiruction - T4H3 CKY PR JLLEANN BT Ulruguay
- Sy 00 ‘ot (K - S AR Panama
35 0 G G . 5 G PGy Netherfands
- R P Ak B Y bR Ernador
- ke iR - G4 AT 0 0 ek
Construction .00 HIOY - LN T femador
st tion A () 00 - FRAND ERRH Chile
Costruetion - 9 G GG LK) Ry Mugico
Copsarsetion - EHECH HI G G Exusdor
Comstrustion S hHEx Stk Ezvrador
Cupstraction et S8 H) S EHD A rgontin
Corstraction - [ISLERR ] H o Hn iy Braxl
Electtical steed manufasnicng 1430) O i 00 HCEAN 1430, 0RY Endia
Resauren devekpmsent - IEiERE ] 1 £ - 176,003 S T
Resouree develpment Bl G0 0 T Lt fal1.£50) LAY Turhey
Frvestrmens - {HECH 1433 0305 HESREM O£ Hrong Kong
ol sales O IR EESRE] HERIEY Cunada
Bavestmend - HOG P04 &5 HEAREN Carhodiz
Steel manufzonrisg B U UG - B AR Bl
Favesarment FOHY 1) HEL G0 00000 AESXED) Clhina
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POSCO and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consoclidated Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2012

Owaership ()

2052 R
Principsl operations POSCO Subsidigries Totzl PORCO Subsidiaries Touwt Region
POSCO AMERICA
COMERCIALIZADORA § Steel sale . M3 00 |43 43 . - - Mexics
DFRLDE V.
PORCO AMERICA PRODUCTOS,
Fhnan-resomce sevvice . FLCIRE] iy s} . - - Mexica
1 Potang Car Swel Co L Lt Heet manelactrng and seling #5.64 300 RN - - - i
POSCO Moo | e N . . . X :
Sweel mzmwfacnring and selfing RARES] .40 1452 088 . - . SMexicn

Preness

v Cemer o, Lk

(*1¥ Included as a subsidiary from 2011 as the Company has the power over more than half of the
voting rights by viriue of an agreement with Postech, which has a 4.72% owuaership interest.

(*2} These subsidiaries are mcluded in the consolidated financial statements as the controlling
company has control over them in consideration of the board of directors™ composition and
others.

Changes in equity recognized as a result of changes in the Company’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that did not result i a loss of control (2012 1 POSCO Specialty Steel Co., Lid., POSCO
ENERGY Co., Ltd., POSCG-Thainox Public Company Limited |, etc., 2011 : POSCO ENGINEERING
CO., LTD, Guangdong Pohang Coated Steel Co., Ltd., POSCO VST Co., Ltd., etc.) were W 41,924
mitlion and W 20,695 million for the yvears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, there are no restrictions on the ability of subsidiaries to transfer funds to the

controlling company, such as in the form of cash dividends, repayment of loans or payment of
advances.

16



Folio217

POSCO and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2012

(¢) Summanzed financial information of subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as

follows:

1y December 31, 2012

rin puflions of Weorj

Compiny Assets iiabiliticy Equity (deficiey Sales Net ineome {losg)
{Daomestic]
C&C Caol Lad TH93,306 A7 149 1886,157 7041300 346,307
POSCO P&S Co,, Lid, 1084473 436,338 628,135 2,770,764 8087
POSCO Conted & Color Steel Co., e, 368910 294718 174,392 47444y
PORCO Plant Engineering Co, Lid. 255831 L2 652 93,169 2121
POSCOICT Co., Lid, ROTATS 52744 FTE03 1017862 HIO89
POSCO Research Instiiute 34138 923 23,899 46,340 35
Seomg Gwang Ca, Lid {3438 33598 49,441 12667 683
POSCEY Architects & Consultarts
Co., Lid. 8705 40,382 46,637 160,607 {6,2273
POSCO Specialty Steel Co., Lad. 1496939 484,585 1612,354 1 A5.667 659,091
POSTECH Venture Capital Comp. 17,796 S0 117,295 6475 {438
eNtol Co.. Lid 103,000 N 328d 607230
POSCO Chemtec Company Lid RERET 134298 3904 [ 292350
POSCO Terminal Co., Lid, 120483 14,806 HIS 677 11275
POSCO M-TECH Co, Lid (71 340877 1641 54 {71,727
POSCO GY Cao, Lid, 3315742 2374622 941,120
Postech 2006 Encrgy Fund 26,0300 930 3050
POSCO TMC Co, Lad. (52) 253987 163,175 G812
PNR Co, Lad, 149117 104272 44,845 72607
Megaasset Co., Lid, 112,729 64257 48,477 14,274
POSCO Engineering Company 362,645 F19.491
Pohang SPFC Co, Lad 29514 6573 k
POSWITH Co., Lid 2365 R ES 14873
POSCO AST Co, Lid 2983192 155218 ITLIRS 4,364
POS-HBMETAL Con, Lt 297 3443 155274 (19,369}
POSCO EEE Co, Lid 52 AN EN - e
POSFINE Co., Lid. 4664 11,840 19,651 (2,304
POS BCO BOLSING Co, Lid 1,822 HaA52 14513 0%
Mapo high troad parking Co., Lid 281 HE N - (285)
Dakos Co., Lid. 191 479 245 14
6809 AN 39472 {6,539}
5528 L 155 1,750
g service
Pechnolwry Co., Lid 1316 2304 477
SUEA Co, Lud A5 22798 4660 {431}
Postech Tarly Stage Fuad G869 9864 [§108)]
Busan L& Co., Led, 79,054 37,476 41,584 {745
POSCO Family Strategy Funds 66,350 - 11, 390 362
POREKA Co., Lid 16,785 12,5607 1,389
Daewoo Internations] Corparation £.G59,140 3566242 306,041
POSCOLED Co., Lid 3 233533 {8,205%
Gunsan SPFC Co., Lid, EXRets (HU2}
Pohang Scrap Reovelng
Center Ca, Lid 19435 A2 14,228 63T 1370
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(i mitlions of Won)

Campany Assets Liabilities Fquity (deficit) Sales Netincome (foss)
{Denesic ]
PSC energy global Co., Lid, W 61,168 - 6,168 - {3,060)
Suncheon Feotrans Co., Lid. 48,496 § - (251)
Reco MetalCo., Lid 32,939 42,482 (4,736}
NewAdtee Co., Lid 120,527 55,474 1,376
PONL Tech Co,, Ltd, 133854 36,749 53,662 {3.825)
BLUE &M Co., Lid G900 #7e 232 (1
Tamra Qffshore Wind Power Co., Lid 20074 20072 - (563
POS-FHAL 47334 (1158
MOM Korea Rl . - -
Tancheon E&E 3606 V7 - (163}
weign]
Anerica Corparation 177146 S3368 {1.338%
POSCO Australis Py, Lid, TH7504 TIRRT4 23834
POSCG Canada Lud 47,975 ST 24 62,584
FOSCG Asta Co., Lid, BRSS! 36058 2614 2,148
Dalian POSCO Sweel Co., Lid 28478 47,280 (18.202) 18,615 {9,9358)
POSCO-CTPC Co., Lid, 22206 36,391 31813 132510 LaR1
POSCO-FPC Co, Ll 79788 (1,793 17,595 FESA31 3,168
Triernationat Business
Center ' orporation 81465 46,210 35,233 23340 10,4987
POSCO BE&LC Vietnam Co., Lad 127,161 12 831 34,330 i87.325 {4331
Zhangjiagang Pohang Stainless
Steet Co, L 340,336 BT ATG 372,760 2T86AT {79018)
CGuangdong Pohang Coated
SteetCo, Lid 141,727 142,418 30509 331,738 (20,9803
POSCO (Thadandy Company Lid, 135,536 OG5S 43777 25561 3611
fvanmar POSCO Steel Co., Lad 13609 1810 15859 19484 2569
PFOSCO-IOPC Co, Lid TRAGL TIRYT 4585 114,432 647
POSCO fovestnment Co., Lid, TIROTE 621,268 96,810 £,000
POSCO-MRPC SN BHD. 139,161 111749 47,4472 107
Qingdao Pobang Stainkss Steel Co Tad 206,541 117,753 AR {17.44%)
POSCO (Suzhow) Avomotive
Processing Center Co., L. 2840406 1495 684 88,362 HF7.513 8,423
POSCO BioVentures 1.1, 7571 - 7574 . (1,301}
PT.POSNESIA 14,978 1,926 13,0532 {35}
POSCO E&C - Hawail Inc. 350 2 348 - {35}
POS-Qingdac Coil Cemer Co., Lid, 47351 3119 14232 01T (623}
POS-Ohvee Py, Lad 59,784 [ARIES] 48,741 163407 75,389
POSCO-Ching Holding Comp. 438538 184427 253441 138,067 3033
POSCO-Japan Co., Lid. 852,400 735,583 FES9045 16218
POS-CD Pry. Lad, 68,681 17,931 12.86% {8603
POS-GC Py, Lid, R3.99% 28500 20,160 19053
POSCO-India Private Lid 131409 306 131103 - (7R85
POSCO-India Pune Sicet
Processing Conre Pyt Lud [ AR Hed ARE 14,726 32296 16061
POSCO-JEPL Ca., Lid.
tfoymerky, POSCORINPO Co, Lid) 271086 200,765 N7 351,377 4,764
POSCO-Foshun Steel Proces
Center Co Lid. FIRERY FIT A6 414355 518773 727
POSCO B&C (Chimal o, Lid 145,448 31,733 1683, 954 8459
POSCO MPC SA. de OV, 20T HG PR I08 359768 {7137
Fhangjfesng Pohang Port Co., Led, % G0 14819 A547 255
Gingdao Puiin Steel Material Cao., L1d 0,628 301 55,145 1,313
"O-Vietnam Co., Lid, 539,426 33027 {5214 {46619
POSCO-Mexiwe Ca., Ld, 538,507 2I3ALL 43988 (12354
POSCO-Tndhia Delbi Steed
Processing Centre Py, Lid 100,153 81218 18935 142038 ¥i7
POSCO-Poland Wroclhw Sieel
Processing Center Co., [ad 56,354 37,3499 1R YR G381 5875
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fin mitlions of Wonj

Caompany Axsets Eisbilities Eaulty {deficit) Sades Netinoome (kss)
[Foreign]
POS-NP Pry. Lid, 62868 26,259 36,609 28,872 {4,363
POSCO-Vigmam Processng
Center Co., Lid, G455 EEIES 25133 137 641 5%
POSCO (Chongalng) Automothve
Processing Center Co, Lid, 63038 4303 515 Q3415 (729}
Surhou POS-CORE
Technalsgy Co., T 249,180 (G35
POSCO-Malaysia SN, BHD, O3,(128 1520
POS-Minerals Corporation HOR,246 105,119 - (496)
SO (Wb Awlomotive
Processing Cenfer Ca., Lid, 39,938 320G 86,544 (363}
POSCGE ndia Private Lid, 26578 558 6,037 2590
FOSCO BE&C SMART HLGSS 1914 41717 1,326
POSCO-Philppine Mami
Processing Center Inc. 33737 14,091 GHAG 35,847 673
POSGSFC LLC 41,130 33076 1474 24,891 (3,257
Dalian POSCON Dongbang
Automaiic Co., Lid 4358 1418 4,540 2109 270
SANPU TRADING COLTD, 1,753 2 1751 36 n
Zhangfagang BLZ Pohang
International Trading Uo., Lid, G150 A A% 4742 61,329 19z
POSCO Mexico Human Tech. 693 R (15 0,777 (148
POSCO Mexico Fast Steel
Distribution Center Co., Lid i2.560 i 12,143 5,054 2T
POSCO ICT-China 1622 1286 A36 5,578 9
DWEMEX S.aDE V. 2 14 167 - 19
PO MPC Servicios de OV, G925 H47 228 7 6
POSCG-URUGUAY S A 24835 134 26049 3 £1.RADy
POSCO South East Asia Pre. Lid, 9,571 126 2443 5 336
Europe Steel Distribution Center 120 HEL SEHY 304
VECTUS 1id 2859 12,164 {9,305} 1325
POSCO VET Co., Lid, 405,882 333,054 31824 30,977y
POSCO Maharashira Steel Pot, Lid 12082 T34, 791 [8R,191 {4]5125
POSCO Tndia Chennai Steel
Processing Centre Pyt Ltd, 129,030 119,375 655 187,757 E453
POSCO Tuwkey Nilufer
Processing Center Co, Lid, LI E 19,714 33,246 LR
POSCO Vietnam Ha Nai
Processing Center Co, Lad, 16,382 #1764 3018 72321 {1,232y
POSCO {Liaoning) Autamorive
Processing Center Co., Lad. AR 48,643 PR [REATEH 1,143
POSCO- Indonesia Fakara
Prow i ' TOTHL 57,565 32042 TRAGE {14003
POSCOE Veneruely C.A 128 - 128 . .
P MIRE §148 15,508 {7.368) 1109 {1,603
POSCORE-TNDIA Giid HR823 2 L2 {453
PORCO America Albama
Processing Center Co., Ltd, 45178 3775 11,7003 9454 (397
PT DEC Indonesia 6,568 £,936 he! F3245 (101}
POSCO (Y anrany Astomative
Processing Center CoLid 38773 20,063 15,710 57464 443
POSCO Tndia Steel Distribution
Center Privare Lid, 4759 2608 2061 57 7171y
POSCO China Dalian Plate
Processing Cemer Co., Lid 86,264 53,531 0,733 37301 (7,020
POSCO-South Asa Co. Lid 13212 143 13,029 8,354 72
POSCO SSVINA Co LTD 4050 132,761 - (2600
POSCO WA P Lid 31 23RN - {39,181y
POSCO E&C - UZ 7968 4621 | et 34
POSCO Australia GP Limited 4 62,764 - (67,392
Daewoo International America Corp. 288,716 43 9014 1,040,183 4,767
Dacwoo internations]
Dgutschland GmbH H34 250 94087 Wy T2 224061 ERL
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tin millions of Won)

Company Assets Liabitities Equity (de feity Sales Nef incone {foss)
[Foreim]
Daewoo International Japan Corp. W 236056 228,631 7425 749,714 273
Daewoo International Singapore Pte. Lid. 80294 73966 4328 THR613 13
Daewoo hala St 13,710 99,911 3,769 262784 383
Praew oo {China) Co, Lid, 4ald 46,611 BREXS] a83
Daewoo Textile Fergana LLC 5,78 63,73 21,054 G214
Daewoo Textle Bukhurs 11O 34TRD H)581 [ERT 2613
Daewod Iternatiomal Australin

Holdmgs Pry, Lad. 128,347 7539 (3,404
Davwoo Paper Manufacturing Co., Ltd ; 133 SR {41323
Tianjine Daewoo. Paper Co, Lid 0% £17,366) - -
POSCOr $smriting i, 2 13314 - IS5}
PEORKRAKATAL STEEL POSCO LRI 92719 {29063}
5Y ANMAR Dacwoo LTI, 1 SH68 473
Daewoo Inrernations MEXICO S A, de TV, 3316 5206 1412
Daewoo Internationst Guangzhou Corp. 14,470 4372 {3,854)
Daewoes §TC & Apparel Vetnam Lid 89 1647 9
POSCO (Zhangpagang) Stainkess

Sweel Processing Center Co, Ltd, T35 HIZ240 P2 9% 265850 9
Draewoo International Corporation (M}

SN BHD 9,145 6,684 2456 37244 113
Daewoo Interpational SHANCGHATL COLLTD, 38374 3,621 7,753 3035 £2.746)
POSF, LLC 3,669 2 667 B 73
Kenesvs Inc, 16,162 TA04 4302 {1,083
Dacwou ntermationa? INDIA Private Lid 2274 272 20007 I3 233
TECHREN Solar, LIC 6015 - SR {2486}
PT. POSCC E&C indonesia 1004543 THESZ 21691 247331 20,302
Hume Coal Py, Tad. 36,681 1,194 35487 48 (21
POSCO Foundation 187 el i85 - {4
FPC EOQUITIES LLP 36,6082 36,630 {34 - {141}
SANTOS CM] Construciion Trading LLP 39,148 30,527 3621 15,299 8,963
SANTOS CMITNC. H5A 43496 47,3%) (3.854) 152 (5013)
SANTOS CMP ENGENHARIA E

CONSTRUCOES LTNA 9,338 17,624 {8201 20029 (17431
SANTOS OM] PERL S A, 19,937 w532 (18995 694135 (26,391)
SANTOS CM! COSTA RICA S AL HLT20 10,4649 254 - {64)
SANTOS CMECONSTRUCCHINES

S A (URUGHAY) 18 i 11 - {25
GENTECH International INC. 1972 368 EHES 108 2
EPCINVESTMENTS C.V. 7 2 X3 - {8}
INGENIERIA Y CONSTRUCCHIN

HOLAND COF S.A. 3 4 G4 - 6}
ASESORIA Y SERVICIOS EPC 5.4 CHILE 891 R 423 A 25
SANTOS CMES AL ARZEY 44,584 3,635 46,738 1,737
SANTOS OMECONSTRUCCIONES

DECHILE S.A. 3608 SHI5 1608 178
S&K SSANTOS CMES A, DE C V. IMEXICO) 149 {65 335 (158}
COMPANIA DE

AUTOMATIZACION &

CONTROL, GF N {648 AR A 16526 H63
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{in mitfions of Wonj

Company Assets Liabilities Fegaity (de fleit) Sales Met ncome (Joss)

fFoveipn}
VAUTIDAMERICAS S A, W 2217 2,649 1445 {331}
SANTOS OMIE Constrietions Argeniing 5.4, 24 14 +
POSCO £&C Brazi Lid, 3223576 21,306 I9H62 HATG
PFOSCO Blecrical Steel India Private Limiod S48 IH A48T {1,343y
Dacwoa International Cameroon PLO 25 2039 -
POSCO ASSAN TST STEEL Industry 377066 23T Febn, 2% - Ry
HONG KONG POSCO E&C

(OHINAY vestment Co., Lid, H7.685 172085 {24.4003 21,103
PXALSAN (Cambaodiay Co., Ltd 27879 3200 (5,130 - {18}
Brazi Seo Paslo Steel Processing

Center €0, Lid 39,794 RENAY 16,584 4863 (1,634}
POSCDakian) 1T Center

Development Co., Lid. 1IR026 37,808 P3RS - {4.691)
PT.POSCO Resources Indonesia 2,448 48 2 A - (1,147
PT. POSCOICT Indonesia 3624 3185 439 4335 (324)
P POSCO M-Tech Indonesia 11377 6,620 4,957 G631 (30
P KRAKATAY POSCOPOWER 143432 33475 7977 - (949}
POSCO RUS LLC. 12,384 4060 42640 303
POSCO Thainox Ce., Lid AT 048 nezz 204 (5332
Praewoo Intermational Shanghat

Wakaogiao Co., Lid IREEAE] 10,241 762 161,675 255
PT. Bio Inti Agrindo 35514 21447 4067 404 H2%
POSCO E&C Ausiralia Pty Lid. 33352 3498 RO 2,143 36
POSCU-TISCO (i) Processing

Center Co., Lid, 26,238 4203 FTO5% A97 (5145
Huschun POSCO Logistics Co., Fid. 16923 ¥ 46513 - (8293
USA SRDC Corporation 3H 21 ] - -
Daeweoo International Vietnam Co., Lid 4453 144 4,304 2006 14
PT. Krakatan POSCO Chemtech

Caleinetion 23217 1,279 21,538 (722)
Pasco Africa 3,550 112 3468 B (1,505
e 1,497 {353 {563 1973 (W&
POSCO ICT BRASIL

PARTICIPACOES LTDDA 1.9%3 1471 512 {336)
LA-SCRAP RECYCLING

DISTRIBUTION 1274 758 516 028 62
Pasco Center Bedjing 67838 97208 70630 (1233
POSCO AMERICA

COMERCIALIZADORA S 177 175 2 148 2
POSCO AMERICA PRODUCTOS,

GFERTAS, SISTEMAS Y

COMERCIALIZADORA

ORIENTAL S DERL DEC.V. 304 643 {340) 339 {408)

Guangdong Pehang Car Steel Co., L
POSCO Mexico Aguascal
Processing Center Co, Lad,

entes

ExERclL

6427

203,033

[EbR ¥

ad27

1061

(91497
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2y December 31, 2011

fin wmitlions of Wonj

Company Assels Eiabilities Equity (deficit Saley Net income (loss)
{Diomestic ]
POSCO E&LC Co, Lad W 6,819,542 42600607 1E38415 6,142.0126 HEASE
POSCO P&S Co., Lad. LOTT000 472,173 544,865 3,141,959 19,234
POSECE Coated & Color Steet Co, Lid, 2147 297,547 9365179 (24,713)
POSCO Plant Engineering Co., Lid, 208,084 PET 2% 397808 6,738
POSCOICT Co. L 687.657 346,640 GE3.649 30,578
CO Research nstiute 3 304 REREAT S . 216
Seoung Gwang Co, Lud 34RE8 47863 14652
PORCO Architets & Consultants Co. Lid, 40,458 S2RTG 196,754
specialy Steel Con, Lk I, £ 581 91251 1,662 894
POSTECH Venture Capital Comp, LS 33428 -
eNtoB Co., Lid, 3382 G9.6407 4TS 34,330
POSCO Chenges Conpny Lud,

iformerky . POSCO Refimctones &

Environment Co. Lidy 479415 132416 T 186023 3,391
POSCO Terminal Co., Lid, 96,806 {5,145 £1.661 N7 12955
POSCO M-TECH Co, Lid 3165933 133,876 163677 HI215% 12,447
POSCO ENERGY Cor, Lad 291382 2327308 RORRSES | B63 6T 25,152
Postech 2006 Frergy Fund 1042 - (202}
PHP Co, Lid 4436 483
POSCO TWMO Co, Ll IR0 57496
PR o, Lid 4013 R340
Megaasser Co., Ltd £1.007 5,794
PFOSCO Bag imeering Company

iformerly Daewoo Enghecring

Congpany} 38,290 341,546 1h344 80,34 3225
Pohang Fuel Cell Co, 11d 12061 8,392 3469 2,235 (286}
Pohang SPFC Co, Lid 10,021 4221 3800 LSRR 1,170
POSWITH Co., Lid. 3,119 2460 2,669 13,145 151
BASYS INDUSTRY Cao, Lid, 967 266 01 2,500 369
POSTECH BD Newundertaking fund o - G - (1
POSBRO Co, Lid, 126 - 116 B (34
POSCO AST Co., Lad, 316,695 163,548 153,147 365,682 4,572
DaiMyung TMS Co., Lid 28350 32497 (24,147 6,263 {3693
POS-HIMETAL Co., Lid 306,369 268 7RY 40,381 3682 (28,857
POSCO E&E Co., Lid, 2435 127 22,358 - 308
POMIC Co, Lid 4411 21431 1,980 EARE] 317
POSFINE Co, Ld 62,775 48,146 14,629 {3847y
POS FCO HOUSING o, Lad 8,160 1,846 6,34 265
Mapo bigh broad parking Co., Lid. 1670 it b5 - (355)
Dakos Co, Lid, TH3 a2 A 225 (5%}
Kwang Yang SPFC Co., 14d, 648379 32,806 15473 FHR6 (2,156)
POSCALCTUM Company, Lid RAG3 7404 135G 106 (1,333
Plant Engmeerug service

Technolyey Co. Lid, 233 S0y 1827 354
gt Co, L 33E 27481 5,729 {308)

dy Stage Fond 10,03 53 256G (31§
0 (o, Lad, i BET 43,0044 - 127

GRCO Family Strategy Fands 250 - 260
POREKA Co, Lad ; i LIS%
Songdo SE Co, Lid. 2761 77
Posgreen Co., Lt 2544 (32
Duewoo International Corporation 8307 654 1,524, 18, 758511 LAGO8R
POSCOLED Co, Lud 3 5917 23800 14063 {5,355
Gunsan SPFC Co., Lid 21483 30,673 HLBIG 33,797 {236}
POSCONST Co, Lad, PERATD 131,493 67T i3 (803}
Pedimnp Serap Recyeliog

Center o Lad 17,842 2863 144970 1,748 143

[
o]
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fia mitlions of Wonj

Company Assets Liabilities Fquity (defivit) Sales Net income {(foss)

{Domestic]
PSC energy global Co., Ll i - (1,595}
Suncheon Featrans Co., Lid, a7 43
Shinan Energy Co, Lid, - (36)
Reco Metal Ca, Lid, 6761 (2,658}
NewAhes Co, Lid 42,849 638
PONUTech Co, Lid, . (263}
el Q&M Co, Lad - {12y
[Forewm]
POSCO America Corporation 16078 192,110 419,258 8866
POSCO Australia Pry. Lid, 1,161,366 HUR 93 136,144 283875
POSCO Canade 14d, 65424 482 557 304,274 133,660
POSCAN Eloveiw CoalLid, - - B
POYSCG Asia Co, Eod, 40683 36626 2968097 G323
Datian POSCO Steel Co, Lid 49,104 G159 (8,711)
POSCO-CTPC Ca, Lad, 84,966 134,930 1,320
POSCCO-IKPC Co, Lid 93668 87203 1465
Intemationsl Busiess

Center Comporation G0,577 51,831 38,744 D5 KRG 1,633
POSCO E&C Vietnam Co., Lid. 77,583 77,679 {96) 114,350 A.670
Zhanpgiagareg Pobase Strinless

Stewt Co. Lid. 1366551 U868 H2TA3 288,722 4444
Crigngdong Pohmg Conred

Steel Co. Lid, 4452 163,783 23EAAET 275528 (7.849)
POSCO {Tha fand) Company Lid 140260 oY 43 42316 PEINE 1227
Myanmar POSCO Steel Co., Lid 27519 4,580 17.93% 30,967 3885
POSCO-JGPC Co, Lid. 80,896 76,118 +.778 92,2906 T68
POSCO Ivestmen Co., Lid TRI N6 H88 482 GR387 10,792 10,309
POSCO-MKPC SDN BHD. 165,789 116928 48,861 177822 1,763
Qingdao Peohang Stainkss Steel Co., Lad, 268411 133,877 112,534 615332 (341
POSCO Surhewy Asonative

Processing Center Co, Lid, 305650 220468 IRATOS 1,046
POSCO BioVennres 1P, 16831 - (4,226}
PT. POSNESIA 14,129 20 - {28}
POSCO R&C - Hawaii Inc. 9i4 563 A1 - (304}
POS-Cringdao Coit Center Co, Lid 36062 43314 15,748 17470 65
POS-Ore Py, Lid, 7332 66,851 8461 230,347 132,737
POSCO-Ching Holding Corp. 427447 160,423 27034 17363% 3617
POSCO-Japan Co., Lad, 1.157.755 10179490 139,765 1 OE6 385 13518
POS-CD Pry. Lad, 7. SERIL 4,532 357
POS-GC Pv, Lid, 79317 32,597 47120 {4,344y
POSCO-India Private Lid 147 159 471 46,938 (1.034)
FOSCO-India Pusie Steel

Frocess g Centre Per, Lid, 168,309 {45 655 TELALT {16,626}
FOSCO-INPC Co, Lid, 192,177 176,263 27,634 16
FOSCO-Foshan Steel Processing

Center Co. Lad 178 ARR 135213 13275 329,748 227
POSCO E&C (China) Co., Lid 126,133 82,361 37,774 104,055 1,898
PFOSCO MPC S A de CV, 192,538 182180 0,338 KRR {6,587)
Zhangiingang Polang Por Co., Lid 26,301 11,327 15,474 244 2
Cxngdan Pufin Steed Material Co., Lid 11,597 1217 EENEY I3
POSCG-Viemas: Co, Lid, 37657 %3274 W52 490 40,976}
POSCO-Mexico Co., Ltd, 422,155 G627 396897 {43,298
FOSCOHnd i el Steel

Processing Cerire Py, Lid 85,349 75,582 9,767 129434 {9.824)
POSCCO-Poiand Wiroclew Sieel

Provessing Center Co Lid (2,70 48 981 12738 18T {1483
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i milfions of Woun)

Company Asseis Liabilities Equity (deficiy Saley Net income (loss)
[Foreiymn]
POS-NP Py Lid, W 37890 1540073 42,887 45,404 G ARG
POSCO-Vietnam Frocessmy
Center Co., Lid, T1.203 s0417 2LTEG 150 3609 26

PORCG {Chongagme)
Processing Center €
Surhou POS-CORE

Avtomoive
L bl G943 30468

62,795 {1.632)

Technology Cn., Lid, H00E2 RER M 26,103
POSCO-3YPC Co, Lid, AT7.5R7 Sk 65 3422

POSCO-Malaysia SDN, BHE, 8038 H 2566 (239313 140,769
POS-Minerals Corporation 113604 - 113644 - (808
W ohuy Aatomeiive

Processimg Center Co. Lid. A5 613 48 76k IR RAT 92554 ate
POSCO B&T India Private Lid, 359 313 AGTH 3060 1135
POSCO E&C SMART 467 4434 G306 4427 135

27412 I B 266
Piatian POSCON Dongbang

Auteratic Co. Lid, BO83 7 5 SART 50064 342
SANPU TRADING OO LTD, 842 3 PR3 73 k3
Thangjiagsng BLZ Folang

Imternaticnsl Trading Co., Led. 15,720 HLRE] 4839 HRHA3 1ie
POSCO Mexico Human Tech. RT AR 3ty 537% am
POSCO Menkeo East Stest

Erigtrifucion Center Co., Ltd 13.186 1.353 F1.H33 34538 110

1737 1.2%4 443 4520 114
IPWEMEX S.A DE W, 226 62 164 2 HEA
POS MPC Servicios de ¢V, 667 458 2054 4802 GG
FURUTALY § AL 16,733 127 16506 34 Ry
POSECO South Bast Asis Pre. Lid. 5232 1633 25949 G238 258
Europe Steed Distribation Center 5,775 G951 5,784 13,354 333
VECTLUS Lid, 3066 5126 (206603 33560 {1.5300

VIRETEH) - - - - -

POSCO VST Co., Lid 356484 268005 28479 26616 {10,666}
POSCO Maharashira Steel P, Lid 372424 149,442 22997 44 20346
POSCO India Chennai Steel

Processing Centre Pvi, Led, 89,742 30,514 QTG 134,409 {3,232y
POSCD Turkey Milafer

Processing Center Co. bad, 49584 40,578 G016 EhAiely (3571
POSCO Vietnam Ha Noi

Processing Center Co, Lid. 47931 403,308 7431 35230 902
POSCO (Linoning) Automative

Processing Center o, Lid. %E3S EINE 13054 117,395 3247
POSCO-mdones i Takuria

Processing Centor 62,550 35,064 T AR i 357 21a
POSCO B&C Venerpels OA 138 - 135 - -
PT. MRIT {7.626 {5375} A58 {3,859
P RE-INTHA 1,446 2471 15186 (AR
BUSCO America Adabama

Processing Conier Co, Lid 13007 23381 {H58)Y
PT DEC Indonesia {175} 11967 {267y
POYRCO) (Yantal) Awiomoifve

Frocessing Center £ Lad, 41504 34,335 1,231 32301 172
POSCO India Stesd Distribution

Center Private Did. 5234 20 300 TREG {4273
BOSCO Clrima Dalag Pl

Processing Cenver Co., Lid. 66713 t165y
POSCO-South Asw Co Lid RS L3S
POSCO SE-VINA Co LT ? - {1127}
POSCO-NOR Coal Lid, - - - - -

¥ WA Pry, Lad, 212684 El 2134575 - {33,147}
POSCO BE&C - LIZ 227G LR A} 2iMs 1054
POSCO Austeaba GF Langed 97106 A G749 - (%)
Daewoo Infernational America Corp. IRZAS3 241059 42,394 GREITE 3372
Daewos ntemational

Dentschbmd Gmbii P05 288 94568 314
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(i mitliony of Wonj

Campany Asyels Eiabsititics Foepudgy ede fledty Sales Net incone {(Joss)
Foreign]
Draeweos International Japan Corp. W 086 226,533 8,553 804,864 94t
Draewon International Shgapore Ple. Lad, 43,647 38,482 46635 2315 481
Pracwon Halia Sl £385G 503,247 3612 6] K21 [EN]
Dracwon Cement (Shandongy Con. Lad 221807 26T 0600 A9 13y 1333402 33361
Praewon (Ching) O, Lid, 150,479 111 445 48630 34,571 76
PT. RISMAR Daewon Appare] 17767 18417 {650 SRIR2 1246
Pracwon Textile Fergana LT1.C 64,437 6968 (1,530 132,866 £11.,964)
Dacwoo Textike Bukhara LLC 51,939 49,630 2,309 R ) e {11.5004
D;:(::;ﬁif:‘;:‘y“?;’cf“l Austrha 151462 12,954 138,298 1035 199
Daewoo Paper Manufactrng Co, Lad 6,835 T2AR 4470 THH32 {3210
Tlanjin Daewaoa. Paper Co, Lid 14,589 1“‘} {1E440% - -
POSCO Maviius Tid 24,0648 253‘} 11,5049 - {23}
P KRAKATAY STEEL POSCO B9800 34918 TGRS - {2,385
MY ANMAR Daewoo LT 6,030 4 3989 1373 132
Daewoo ternational MEXICO S A de OV 68303{) 54’ 184 3841 240 448 pives
Daewoo Internatonal Guangzhou Corp. 7566 7473 193 61,554 (1.265)
Dacwao Energy Central Asia i k) . -
Daewoe STC & Apparel Vietnam Lul 3 1313 9435 &3
MY ANMAR Daewoo International Lid, TH51 3340 HIREY T5G
DAYTEK FLECTRONICS CORP, - - - - -
Daewoo (M) SDN, BHD, - R . . .
Dacwoo CANADA LTD, - - - : B
Daewoo EL SALVADOR S.A, DECV, - - - - -
GEZIRA TANNIRY COLLTD, - - - - "
HOSCO (Zhangjizgang ) Stamboss :
’ ;zmi éi??;:a‘gf“ :; C‘;.E_‘};d‘ 63503 51088 12417 67,175 5
F):;A;»;iﬁ;emafi(;n:‘nl Comporation (M3} g 530 646G 1367 29,090 157
hiewaoo international SHANGHATCO, LTD. 6H3.694 S2A56 FEAORS 97 541 1286
PGST, LLC 3,438 i 3137 - 280
Xenesys inc. 11.804 240 11564 2494 {3.865)
Mewos Intemational INDIA Prvare Lid. 3088 1277 2008 3343 a4
TECHREN Solar, LLC 5184 - 5184 - ]
PT. POSCO E&C Indonesia 37483 34094 301 6,663 2114
Hume Coal Py, Lid 24,316 2499 21817 - (%)
Daewon HANDELS GmbH - - . . .
POSCO Foundﬁl;‘on 23 3 216 - 3
EPC FOITIES LLP 11,391 P1283 135 438
SANTOS OMI Consimcton Trading LLP {3851 13,742 HIG T
SANTOS ORI INC. USA 2RHR 23 360 FIE% FEA04
X 5 i ¥
RSN 18,771 9,381 9350 14823
SANTOS CMI PTR 16,074 20,500 3,574 54091
\AI\ I“()S CMLC UQ]A RE( 3 AL 11856 TR 76 1228
MECONSTRUCCIONES 8.8, 192 73 4G
NE i, “3'" b Eaa ftats 1860
WV, Pia 1B 37
INOENIERIA Y CONSTRUCCION 15 3 113
HOLAND CO SA.
ASESORIA Y SERVICIOS BPC §.A CHILE 468 288 183 635 B8
SANTOS CMIS AL 42,766 303,498 12271 34879 {5430
V;‘): 1{’}};; MEPCONSTRUCEIONES 8430 166 576} 13000 170
125 4 Pl A [ely:i8]
{0982 8393 2590 J4.58% 923

CONTROL, (JFNT‘:.‘ESS AL

b2
L4
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(i nillions of Wonj

Company Assets Liwbilitics Equity (deficit) Sades Net income (doss)
[Foreign]
VALUTIDAMERITAS S AL o 2374 §G20 734 1,7R3 141
SANTOS CMI Constructions Argenting 5.4, o S 36 - i
POSCO E&C Brazd Lid, B7R17 37,284 333 6,200 {463}
POSCC Elecuical Sreel nida Privite Linded 26,448 138 26,310 344
Daewao International Camercan PLC 1233 - 1,233 -
PORCOF ASSAN TST STEEL Industing 394158 §R97 STA18 - 1,724
NG RONG POSCO ERC . - .
“r(?;:;\i\:)) llva%s)rZ{r;-;x)irC.f:}(.. Lrd, 171127 1ThEI4 (68T (3:406)
POSCO Khappan Coal Lid, -
DARES AN (Cambodin) Co., Lid 30,143 ISH52 (55073 {t46)
o P Steel Process e e

Certer (’j;‘“‘;jd"“ e 6587 : .87 )
POSCOHDadizny 1T Center . - o .

;’.)c.vﬂm)im-ﬂ{.l"(:-.. Lad. 152725 k27 F31.434 ) (1464
PLRPOSCO Resources Indonesi 4048 2 1056 - (4153
PTOPOSCO ICT Indonesia 2480 2,601 219 - (80}
Py POSCO W-Tech ndonesia 2863 PG 176 3329 A1
FTRRAKATAL POSCOPOWER 435 041 43,874 1167 - 11345
POSCO RUS LLC, Iak 3 53 {273
POSCO Thaox Con, Lid, 6,214 14,464 H3TZ5T {22466}
PT. Bio Intt Agrindo 18500 9714 5,186 - {1486)
POSCO BE&C Australia Pre Lad 81 A2d (243} - {237)
Pgi. ()-T"FS("{"J (Hbiny Processimyg 17587 2 13 875

Center Co., L "
Hurchun POSCO Logistics Ce., Lid 23128 7 23718 - {220y
LISA SR Corporation 3 3 -
Daewoo nternational Vieinam Co., Lid. 4613 4,613 -
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{d) Details of associates

Dretails of associates as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Hpesied

Catepory of business

Civenersfiip (% §

2812

Region

Satapehy Co., Lid,

Sengdo New City 1

POSMATE (o, L

il Irdemstional Kores Lad,

SWNC Co, Lad,

CHUNGIU ENTERPRIST CHY

! VW ind Poswer Companition

ARP AR Co PRy

Ciacedmm Tids! Power Flen Co, L0l

Cheongns BT Co., L, o4

FiE CoeLad,

Uirrfeeisal Studios Reson I

Thiversa! Smdios Reson A

Dewao panionsl car Gwangjs sellmy Co Bad

Lag.

n Envirenmmont Co., Tid

Paioo & Vio Co. Lid,

Green Gavpo Co.,

Busim-Cimhae Light Rall Tr
uay

st Cor, Lad 193

et Managenent (o,

Litrans ¢

Suwion £

sit o B
Lad,

lne

Choen Fangryarg Co., L,

Green Tongyeong Brvirg Co, Lid.

r Lb £ 5F

L

ey AMC Co Lad.
Sungiin Geotec Co., Lig

Kyobo Life nsunmce Co., Lid. (26}

Comgany, Lol (79
ang SpeciakSteel Co, Lid. (¥ 1)
Pare Tkean Co., Tad

CRee0ug o Bl

PR Co, e
Hyundah Invegtmont N i Privare Bguity Fund
Pohung Techno Valky PEV Lomparstiion

el Comaration (%1}
L LTER %8y

o Pl Ca L
FCus, Ladoevi, 3
edom 5

Carhon Teck (%104

i
=i

Mulin
Real estare

Services

Real extare

Row material manufzensring and eale

Real estate

Wind power plwt consmiiag and managemen:

Solar power plant constiuction and sumageme
Cenerztian of electricity

Mg develaptient

Notresident builiing lesse

Real estate savices

Real esrate

Transponing
Corstouetion
£

Cansteeciion

NEETRECE T

Transpons

Comatnuerion

Sewerage e
Sewermge TeReR
Sarv

Constmeian
Consin
Industrizf machiners manufzotenng
Life
Plastic manufactusing

tion

i

urance

Steclpra ng and sales

Congimetion

Faciity constiuciion

Real estate develnpmen:
SMachinery manufactising
Mamfacniring

{hier soienoe research
Mine invesiment

Heal esiate developmest
Privaic equiry fmanozl

Pova;

pply manufacty
Te<hnical service
fvertment advisary service

Real estase developient

Secondary hartery manuizcns
Blectriciny gesteration
it

sasg ant sahe

49403
G
BT

1147
LTS
15,90
S3EK)

T

AR
ECR
ML
2940
£.000

A00
R

EoR i

RIS
24040
AR
5K

{heangyvang
Chang
Hoengseang
osrmgam

[N
ool
3

eang
Seoud
{raangin
Seoul
Hwaseamng
Paju
g
Girnhae

Anyang

Pubang

Seout
Chwangyang
Pohang
Pohang
Yangji
Yemgin.
Paju
Paju
Seoul
Seout
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Owrnershipi® )

ves e Category of fRsinessy 2013 11 Region

[Foreipnt
WRCPOSCL

CORpPOTAL T Steed panuizcruring and Sale HL0H) S0.00 Wiginam

ility 4500 3000 i L
Malerud panufacturing and ssle LD 30,00 USA
Fesselrame Pry. Lad Raw materal manu factaring and szl L] L Repubilic of South Afiwa

Fyunde Steel Manniioring ndi Privare Lad Steed processing and sale A .50 Indiz

FOSVINA Co., Tad, Flating sived sheet manuthon: A1) SO0 Wietiam
BT PUSME Stecl indonesta Steed processing and safe T8 605 Indonesiz
Faw maieral manuietenng and RENE RER A £l

R matenial manufacuiring and sz ML) 900
Manefacturing and sale A 35400
{Fing ) Fooessing Center o Lid Steed proe o) .00

INEW 7Y DEVELOPMINT Highway constaetion wnd new 1

ety <lew elopaent ST

g Foro Aoy Co Lad, Raw mzteria b renu factring EENe]

fed Spial Pipe, 1LE SMasterial menufaetun 3500
Zhoniryae POSCOGmbuangian Tinplate ndusinat o Ld. Plazing sheet manufacteg k]

amd sl

 POSCO Cold BolledSheet Co Ltd, Steel proc

A BASTING Slovalia Processig Center Steed pr
Moty 130 Faw et
o ARESUNG Suzhon Steel Prodesting Steel proe
FOSC SeA M Steed Wirel

sntong) (o Lid Steel process China
Yinghow Posres Refrrctories Co Lrd Chima
gy I 1 Refiserosies Co. Lid Chisa
THAHLAMDN o, Lrd, Do elopient aad Contrrcl Thatiand
Serap sake fapan
Cansda
AMCI{WA) Py, Led, 4G4 Ausiraitia
POSCO YoneXin Rare Bl MenbOn, Lad A Ching
Chima
RE Chirsa
AR Papun New Caenes
500 Syvanmmn
REXeH 33K Sudan
AR Rt Englmd

Energy & ros A3 Madegusear
; Energy & resoue deve RUTER Malavsia
A LA OO, LT Trading EERER Thaitand
OO LT Tradirg SO0 Marth Kores
South L 2 (g Prpefine Congany Lid. Pipelme constmeiion s ¥
GLOBAL KOMSCO Dacwon LD Mintage RNt Uzhekistan
POSUK TITANHIM BV Steel manu factuning - SO0 Nesherdand
N Mine development SHLOD piesl USA
FOSCO-POUEN AMP Sreel maraciuring 06} 2600 India
Kiappan Coad koint Venue Coalsale 230 2000 Canada
S-VOM Mong Buong Power Comparny Lid Toalsale a0k} RV Vieram
Sreel manufaciurmg snd sal HKy KELE)] Brizd
FTINDONESIA FOS CTHOSUN Ref Reftactory manufactusing and sale KR My Indanesia
WS- Thainox Aute Co., Lad, Steel manufacturing asd sale G 49081 Vietnam
Fores-Siberia Wood Forest resources deveiopment S04 RIEEH Russia
PT. Tangpamms Hlectric Poser Construction and engineemg senvice 00 200433 Indanesia
P Wanpu Blectic Power Constraction and engineering sery HLIH) 10443 Indoncsia
sanulder Solar Power, 1102000 Eleetrie powes nanufacturing 3R . (BN
POSLK Thaniem i+ 1) Tranium manufzeusng and sale Kazalstan
i Holdings Bry bad. v Emergy & rescurce deve Australia
roy e {27 & resourcs develop Pers
Fififr Comdined Hear eng Power Plant LLCT#1 Thermal power generation Moengolia
IMEFA ALLCY INLEASELTR ("N Rave maieriaf memlzeis g and sile indiz

(*1) These associates were newly established or acquired during the year ended December 31, 2012,

(*2) The Company is able to exercise significant influence even though the Company’s percentage of
ownership is below 20%.

{*3} Excluded from associates due to a decrease in ownership percentage during the year ended
December 31, 2012,

(*4} Excluded from associates as the contract on entrusted voting rights expired during the year
ended December 31, 2012,

{*5} This entity split off from Dongbang Special Steel Co., Ltd. during the year ended December 31,
2612,
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(*6) The Company determined to dispose of the shares of Kyobe Life Insurance Co., Lid., an
associate of Daewoo International Corporation, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, in order to
secure investment funds and improve the Company’s financial structure.  The transaction was
completed during the year ended December 31, 2012,

{*7) These securities were acquired during the vear ended December 31, 2012

{*8) Excheded from associates due to partial disposal during the year ended December 31, 2012,

{(*9} As the controlling company’s percentage of ownership dropped below 50% during the year
ended December 31, 2012, this investment was reclassified to associates.

(*10)This associate was newly established and the Company is not able to exercise significant

influence on the investee, even though the Compasny’s percentage of ownership is above 50%.

As of December 31, 2012, there are no restrictions on the ability of associates to transfer funds to the

controtiing company, such as in the form of cash dividends, repavment of loans or payment of
advances.

(e} Consolidated subsidiaries acquired during the year ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Company {Jate of acouisition  Ownership %) Reasoin
Tamwa Offshore Wil Power Co Lid Frrasry 20§ &4.00 REW BVesTITE I
P, Krakawy POSCG Clhenmnech Calcination Janunry 202 B0 new establishsient
POSHIAL Co., Lid Fanwmry 2052 65,30 new establihment
POSCG-Alviea Febrary 2012 1660 new establishment
EP.COINGENIERIA & SERVICIOS DE COSTA RICA S, A, May 2012 160L00 new establishinent
POSCO T BRASH, PARTICIPACOES LTDA May 2012 160000 new establishment
LA-SCRAP RECYCLING DISTRIBUTION CENTER, LLC May 2002 68,41 aew establishment
MM Korea Co. Lad Huly 2042 10000 new HvestTe Tt
Tancheon B&E Co. Lid Buly 20512 FEHR G tiew ostablishment
EEC, GmbH August 2012 165106 new astablishment
Posco Cemer Befing Augnst 202 S0 new establishanent
POSCO AMERICA COMERCIALIZADORA SDERL DECV Angast 2012 ANES] W mvestme

POSCO AMERICA PRODUCTOS, OFERTAS SISTEMAS Y

COMPRCIALIZADORA GRIENTAL § DE RL DE €V hugast 201 fo.6o eSSt
Cuangdong Pohang Car Steed Co, Lid, Ocioher 2012 G364 apin off from subsidinry
5 December 2012 100,00 new esiablishment
December 2012 8193 aew fvesiment
1) Cash outflows caused by the acquisitions
fin millions af Wownj Amounts
Consideration fransferred W 287085
Less: cash and cash equivalents-acquired (188 205)
TFotal W GR 880
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(¢} Subsidiaries that were excluded from consolidation during the year ended December 31, 2012 are
as follows:

Company Diate of disposal Reasen
POSCOIYPC Con Lk Jarpsry H12 Seartory merger by POSCO-JEPC COLLid
DaiMyung TMS Co. Lad. March 2012 Statmtory merger by POSCO-AST COL Ld
MYANMAR DAEWOO INTL LTD. Aprtd 20612 Drisposal
PT. RISMAR DAEWOO AFPAREL Al 2042 Diaposal
Dnewoa Cement (Shandong) Ca.. Lid June 2012 Disposal
POMIC Can, L, July 2082 Statutory mevger by POSCO Research Ingrinre
DAEWOO ENEROGY CENTRAL ASIA July 3012 Exchision by corporate Bquidation
BASYS INDUSTRY COLLTD. August 2012 Disposal
DA% TEK B ECTRONICS CORP . Angust 20172 Exclusion by corporate hquidation
PHP Co. Lad November 2012 Seawwory merger by Megs-Asset

Pobang Fuel Cell Power Corp. November 2002 Stamiory merger by POSCO ENERGY Co Lid

Company. Lid Newenber 22 Disposal
November 2312 Sramtory merger by POSCO ENTRGY Co | Lud

L Cimb Movember 2012 Exchsion by corporate liquidation

SSTECH BD Newanderiaking Fand December 2012 e hision by corporate Tiquidation
FOSBRO COMPANY LTD. Drecermber 2017 Dispusat
Songdhose v, ad Decenber 20402 Disposal
FOSCONSTCO. LT Brecembaer 2013 Szanory merger by POSCO-AST CO Lid,
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2. Statement of Compliance
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Korean International
Financial Reporting Standards (“"K-IFRS™), as prescribed in the Act on External Audits of
Corporations in the Republic of Korea.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
following material items in the statement of financial position. as described in the accounting policy
below.

{a) Derivatives instruments are measured at fair value

{b) Financial mstruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)Y are measured ad fair value

{e) Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value

(d) Defined benefit liabilities are measured at the present value of the defined benefit obligation less
the fair value of the plan assets

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Korean won, which is POSCO’s functional
currency and the currency of the primary economic environment in which POSCO operates,

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with K-IFRS requires
management to make Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, Habilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Hstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any [uture periods
affected.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following

notes:

e Naote 7 — Other financial assets

L Note 11 ~ Investment property, net

e Note 12 — Property, plant and equipment, net

3]
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@ Note 13 — Goodwil and other intangible assets

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial vear is included in the following notes:

Note 17 — Provisions
Note 18 — Employee Benefits
Naote 25 -- Construction Contracts

® 2 & @

Note 35 - Commnitments and Contingencies

Changes in accounting policies
{(a) Changes in accounting policies
1) Financial Instroments: Disclosures

The Company has applied the amendments to K-IFRS No. V07, “Fingncial Instruments:
Disclosures™ since January 1. 2012, The amendments require disclosure of the nature of transferred
assets, their carrving amount, and the description of risks and rewards Tor each class of transferred
financial assets that are not derecognized in their entirety.  If the Company derecognizes transferred
financial asset but stifl retains their specific risks and rewards, the amendments require additional
disclosures of their risks.

23 Presentation of financial statements

The Company adopted the amendment to K-IFRS No. 1001, “Presentation of Financial Statements™
from the annual period ended December 31, 2012, which prescribes the Company’s operating profit
to be calculated as revenue less: (1) cost of sales, and (2) selling and administrative expenses, and
presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Additionally, in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the Company provides voluntary
disclosure of the entity-specific measure of operating performance presented as “adjusted operating
profit™ which is calculated base on the Company’s own criteria.  In doing so, the Company is
required to discloser (1} a reconciliation bhetween the entity-specific measure of operating
performance and operating profit or loss presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and {2) the fact that the measure of operating performance disclosed in the
notes is calculated based on the Company’s own criteria.
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{b} Impact of change 0 accounting policy

The Company retrospectively applied the amendment to K-IFRS No. 1001, for which the impact is as
follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2011
Orperating profit before adoption of the amendiment W 3,291,763 5408 12
Add
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 65,436 60,556
Loss on disposals of investment property 3,197 8826
Loss on disposals of assets held for sale 9510 -
Loss on disposals of mvesunent in associates 15,119 -
Idie tangible assets expenses 31,297 16,881
Impairment loss of assets held for sale 258,451 -
COrther bad debt expenses 44,115 11,155
Donations 73,563 66,558
Loss on disposals of waste 45,480 30,585
Penalty and defauli losses 149437 36551
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and others 72,259 94071
Others 41.151 33356
809465 366533
[reduct
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment {42299 {13812
Rental revenues {1.898) (6,510
Gain on disposals of infangible assets {906) {953
Gain on disposals of investment i associates {39441 (2247}
Gzin on disposal of assets held for sale (193333 -
Grant ncome {3,198) (3228
Reversal of other bad debt allowance - {37873
Reversal of other provisions (16037 {35620
Outsourcing income £20.136) {42 136
CGain on disposals of waste {38.397) {11,348y
Gain from claim compensation (31613 {08833
Penalty income from early termination of contracts {15,054 {38,370
Others {36617 (27 78603
(448,126 {306,941
Operating profit after adoption of the amendment W 3,653,108 5467694

Appreval of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Beard of Directors on Febraary 7, 2013,

33



Folio200

POSCO and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2012

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies

The significani accounting policies applied by the Company in preparation of its consolidated
financial statements are included below. The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements, except for those as disclosed in
note 2.

Basis of conselidation
{2} Subsidiaries

A subsidiary 1s an entity that is controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as (o obtain
benefits from its activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls another
entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that controf ceases.

If a member of the Company uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consohidated
financial statements for like transactions and cvents in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to its financial statements in preparing the consolidated {inancial statements,

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Intra-group
losses are recognized as expense if intra-group losses indicate an impairment that requires
recognition in the consolidated financial statements.

{h) Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are accounted for separately from the parent’s ownership
interests in a subsidiary. Fach component of net profit or loss and other comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the parent and non-controlling inferest holders, even when the
allocation reduces the non-controlling interest balance below zero.  As of December 31, 2012

{c) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

Changes in the parent company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions with owners in their capacity as owners.
Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of
the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized in profit
or loss. The difference between the consideration and the adjustments made to non-contrelling
interest is recognized directly in equity attributable to the owners of the parent company.
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Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant infTuence, but not centrol, over the
entity’s financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the
Company holds between 20 and 50 percent of the voting power of another entity.

Joint venfures are those entities over whose activities the Company has joint control, established by
contractual agreement, and require unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions.

The investment in an associate and a joint venture is initially recognized at cost and the carrying
amount 18 increased or decreased to recognize the Company’s share of the profit or loss and changes in
equity of the associate after the date of acquisition. Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial siatements. Itra-group losses are recognized as expense If intra-group losses
indicate an impairment that requires recognition inr the consolidated financial statements.

If an associate or a join{ venture uses accounting policies different from those of the Company for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to the Company’s
consobidated financial statements in applying the equity method.

When the Company’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted vestee, the carrying
amount of that interest, including any long-term investments, is reduced to nil and the recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Company has an obligation or has to make
payments on behaltf of the investee for further losses.
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Business combinations
(a) Business combinations

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method as of the acquisition
date (i.e., when control 1s ransferred to the Company), unless it is a combination involving entities
or businesses under common control.

Fach identifiable asset and liability is measured at its acquisition-date fair value except for below:

- Leases and insurance contracts are required to be classified on the basis of their contractual terms
and other factors.

- Only those contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that are a present obligation
and can be measured reliably are recognized.

- Deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized and measured in accordance with K-IFRS No,
1012 “Income Taxes ™.

- Employee benefit arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with K-IFRS
No.1019 “Emplovee Benefits ™.

- Indemmification assets are recognized and measured on the same hasis as the indemnified
liability or asset.

- Reacquired rights are measured on the basis of the remaining contractual terms of the related
contract.

- Liabilities or eguity mstruments related to share-based payment iransactions are measured in
accordance with K-IFRS No. 1102 “Share-based Payment”.

- Assects held for sale are measured at fair value less costs to sell in accordance with K-IFRS No.
1105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale ™

As of the acquisition date, non-controfling interests in the acquiree are measured as the non-
controliing interests' proportionate share of the acquirer’s identifiable net assets.

The consideration transferred in & business combination 18 measured at far value, caiculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the acquirer, the Habilities
incwrred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
acquirer,

Acquisition-related costs are costs the acquirer incurs to effect a business combination. Those
costs include finder's fees; advisory, legal, accounting, valuation and other professional or
consulting fees; general administrative costs, including the costs of maintaining an internal
acquisitions department; and costs of registering and issuing debt and equity securities.
Acquisition-refated costs, other than those assoctated with the issuance of debt or equity securities,
are expensed in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received. The
costs to issue debt or equity securities are recognized in accordance with K-IFRS No. 1032
“Finemeial Instruments: Presearation” and K-IFRS No. 1039 “Financial Instruments. Recognition
and Measurement”.
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(b)Y Goodwill

The Company measures goodwill al the acquisition date as:

- the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

- the recognized amount of anv non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus

- if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equily interest
in the acquiree; less

- the net recognized ameount (generally fair value) of the wdentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

As part of its transition to K-IFRS, the Company clected to restate only those business
combinations which occurred on or after January 1, 2010 i accordance with K-IFRS.  In respect
of acquisitions prior to January 1, 2010, goodwill 1s included on the basis of its deemed cost, which
represents the amount recorded under previous GAAP, Korean Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("K-GAAP™),

Foreign currency fransactions and transiation

Foreign currency iransactions are initially recorded using the spot exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. At the end of each
reporting peried, foreign currency monetary items are (ranslated using the closing rate.  Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the daie of the original transaction.  Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreigm currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date fair value was initially
determined.

Exchange differences arising on the seitiement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were translated op initial recognition during the period or in
previous financial statements are recognized in profit or loss in the pertod in which they arise.  When
gaing or losses on non-monetary items are recognized in other comprehensive income, exchange
components of those gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.  Conversely,
when gains or losses on non-monetary ltems are recognized in profit or loss, exchange components of

those gaing or losses are recognized in profit ot loss.
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Foreign operations

If the presentation currency of the Company is different from a foreign operation’s functional currency,
the financial statements of the foreign operation are translated into the presentation currency using the
tollowing methods:

The assets and habilities of foreign operations, whose functional currency 1s not the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy, are translated to presentation currency at exchange rates at the reporting
date,  The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to functional currency at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.  Foreign currency differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition of that foreign operation is treated
as assefs and liabilities of the foreign operation.  Thus they are expressed in the functional currency
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, the relevant amount in the transiation is transferred to profit
or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.  On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, the relevant proportion of such cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controliing
interest.  In any other partial disposal of a foreign operation, the relevant proportion is reclassified (o
profit or loss,

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation, the settlement of which is neither planned nor likely (o occur in the foreseeable future and
which in substance is considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation, are
recognized in other comprehensive income in the translation reserve.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments in
highly liquid securities that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with maturities of three
months or less from the acquisition date and which are subject to an insignificant nisk of changes in
value. Equity investments are excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

Non-derivative financial assets

The Company recognizes and measures son-denivative financial asseis by the fellowing four
calegories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.  The Company recognizes financial assets in
the consolidated statement of {inancial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

[ 99
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Upon inttial recognition, nen-derivative financial assets are measured at their fair value pluas, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the asset’s acquisition or issuance.

{a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified at fair valve through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
designated as such upon initial recognition. Upon initial recognition, transaction cosls are
recognized in profit or loss when incurred.  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recogmzed in profit or loss.

{b) Held-to-maturity financial assets

A non-derivative financial agset with a fixed or determinabie payment and fixed maturity, for
which the Company has the pesitive intention and ability to hold to maturity, is classified as held-
to-maturity.  Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

{c¢) Loans and receivables

Loang and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market.  Subsequent fo initial recognition, loans and receivables are
meagured at amortized cost using the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

{d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Awvailable-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
avaitahle-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-
maturity financial assets or loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value, net of any tax effect, recorded in other
comprehensive income in equity.  Investments in equity instruments that do net have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked o and must be settled by delivery of such unguoted equity instruments are measured
at cost. When a financial asset is derecognized or impairment losses are recognized, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equily to profit or loss.  Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognized in
profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payvment is established.
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{e) De-recognition of non-derivative financial assets

The Company derecognizes non-derivative financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or the Company transters the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows from the financial asset as well as substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset.  Any interest in a transferred financial asset that is created or refained by the
Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred
financial assets, the Company continues to recognize the transferred financial assets and recognizes
financial Liabilities for the consideration received.

() Gifsetting a Hnancial asset and a financial lability

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position only when the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is the intention to settle on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the Hability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  Costs are determined by using
the moving-weighted average method.  The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs curred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. The allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of finished goods or work in
progress are based on the normal capacity of the production facilities.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as cost of goods
sold in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.  Inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value.  The amount of any write-down of inventories (o net realizable vahue
and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories arising from an increase in net realizable
vaiue is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as a cost of goods sold in
the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Investment property

Property held for the purpose of eaming rentals is classified as investment property.  Investient
property is measured initially at itz cost.  Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.
Subsequently, investment properiy is carried at depreciated cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Subscquent costs are recognized in the carrying amount of investment property at cost or, if
appropriate, as scparate items if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  The carrving amount of
the replaced part is derecognized.  The costs of the day-to-day servicing are recognized i profit or
loss as incurred.

Deprecration metheads, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting date
and adjusted, if appropriate.  The change is accounted for as a change In an accounting estimate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are imtially measured at cost and after imitial recognition, are carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated smpaimment losses.  The cost of property,
plant and equipment includes expenditures arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the
asset, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset 1o the location and condition necessary for i
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and, when the Company has an
obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of replacing a part of an item is recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plartt and equipment, if the following recognition criteria are net:

(a} it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(b) the cost can be measured reliably.

The carrving amount of the replaced part is derecognized at the time the replacement part is
recognized.  The costs of the day-to-day servicing of the dtem are recogmized in profit or loss ag

incurred.

ftems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use or, in
respect of self-constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.  Other
than land, the costs of an asset less its estimated residual value are depreciated.  Land is not
depreciated. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis, which most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the asset, over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of
properiy, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of
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the lease term.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included
in profit or loss when the item is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings 10-60 years
Structures 4-50 vears
Machinery and equipment 2-25 vears
Vehicles 3-10 years
Tools 4-10 vears
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
[.case assets 3-18 years

The estimated residual value, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed at least at the end
ot each reporting period and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted
for as changes in accounting estimates.

Borrowing costs

The Company capitalizes borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, consiruction or
production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognized in expense as incwrred. A quahfying asset is an asset that requires a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale.  Financial assefs and inventories that are manufactured
or otherwise produced over a short period of time are not qualifying assets.  Assets that are ready for
their intended use or sale when acquired are not qualifyving assets.

To the extent that the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifving
asset, the Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual
borrowing costs incwred on that borrowing during the period less any investment income on the
temporary investment of those borrowings. The Company immediately recognizes other borrowing
costs as an expense.  To the extent that the Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company shall determine the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.

The capitalization rate shall be the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable o the
borrowings ol the Company that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.  The amount of borrowing costs that the
Company capitalizes during a period shall not exceed the amount of borrowing costs incurred during
that period.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and, subsequently. are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization of intangible assets except for goodwill is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use,  The residual
value of intangible assets is zero. However, as there are no foreseeable limits to the perieds over
which club memberships are expected to be available for use, this intangible asset is determined as
having an indefinite usetul life and not amortized.

Intellectual property rights 5-10 years
Development cost 3-10 years
Port facilities usage righis 5-75 years
Other intangible assets 2-25 years

Amortization periods and the amortization metheds for intangible assets with finite useful Lives are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period.  The useful lives of intangible assets that are not being
amortized are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support indefinite useful life assessments for those assets.  Changes are
accounted for as changes in accounting estimates.

Expenditures on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, are recognized in profit or loss as imcurred.  Development
expenditures are capitalized only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the
Company intends o and has sufficient resources to compiete development and to use or sell the asset.
Other development expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as imcurred.

Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which they relate.  Alf other expenditures, including expenditures on
internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
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Exploration for and evaluation of mineral rescurces

The Company is engaged n exploration projects for mineral resources through equity ownership in
the mines or other contractual arrangements.  Expenditures related to the development of mineral
resources are recognized as exploration or development intangible assets. The nature of these
intangible assets are as follows:

(#) Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets consist of expenditures for topographical studies, geophysical
studies and trenching. These asseis are reclassified as development assets when it 1s proved that
the exploration has identified an economically feasible mine,

{b} Development assets

Development assets consist of expenditures for the evaluation of oil fields, facility construction,
drilling tor viability and others. These development assets are reclassified as industrial rights
{mining rights) at inception of the extraction when the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting mineral resources are demonstrable,

Government granis

Government grants are not recognized unless there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the grant’s conditions and that the grant will be received. Government grants whose
primary condition is that the Company purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets are
deducted from the carrying amount of the assets and recognized in profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the life of the depreciable assets.

Government grants which are intended to compensate the Company for expenses incurred are
deducted from the related expenses.
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Feases

The Company classifies and accounts for leases as either a finance or operating lease, depending on
the terms. Leases where the Company assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.

{a) Finance leases

At the commencement of the lease term, the Company recognizes as finance assets and finance
liabilities the lower amount of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. Any initial direct costs
are added to the amount recognized as an asset.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of inferest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent
rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

The depreciable amount of a leased asset is allocated to each accounting period during the period of
expected use on a systematic hasis consistent with the depreciation policy the Company adopts for
similar depreciable assets that are owned. If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and its useful life.

(b} Operating leases

Lease obligations under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.  Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

{c} Petermining whether an arrangement contains a lease

Determining whether an arrangement is, or contains, a icase is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets (the asset) and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

At inception or reassessment of the arransement, management of the Company separates payments
and other consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other
elements on the basis of their relative fair values. I management of the Company conchudes for a
financial lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, the Company recognizes an
asset and a lability at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset that was identified
as the subject of the lease. Subsequently, the lability shall be reduced as payments are made and
an imputed finance charge on the Hability recognized using the purchaser's incremental borrowing
rate of interest.
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Empairment for financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaived if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and
that the foss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be
estimated reliably.  However, losses expected as a result of future evems, regardless of likelihood, are
not recognized.

Ohiective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the holder of the asset about the following loss events:

{a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

{(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest oy principal payments:

(¢} the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, granting to
the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider:

(d) it becoming probable that the borrower will enfer bankruptey or other financial reorganization;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficuities; or

(fy observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from a group of financial assefs since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot vet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group.

In addition, for an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale, a significant or profonged decline
in its tair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

If financial assets have objective evidence that they are impaired, impairment losses are measured and
recognized.

{a} Financial assets carried at amortized cost

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of its estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. If it is not practicable (o obtain the
instrument’s estimated future cash flows, impairment fosses would be measured by using prices
from any observable current market transactions.  The Company can recognize impairment losses
directly or establish a provision to cover impairment losses. If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss shall be
reversed either directly or by adjusting an allowance account,
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{h) Financial assels carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or
on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
mstrument, the amount of the impairment lass is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.  Such impairment losses are not
reversed.

{c} Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline i the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized in
other comprehensive income and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income shall be reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has
not been derecognized.  Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an
equity instrument classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or foss. If, ma
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment {oss was
recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognized in profit or Joss,

Impairments for non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than assets arising from
construction contracts, employee benefits, inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets held
for sale, are reviewed at the end of the reporting period to determine whether there is any mdication of
impairment.  If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill and infangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use,
irrespective of whether there 1s any indication of impairment, are tested for impairment annually by
comparing thesr recoverable amount to their carrving amount.

Management estimates the recoverable amount of an individual asset,  IF it is impossible 10 measure
the individual recoverable amount ot an asset, then management estimates the recoverable amount of a
cash-generating unit (“CGU™y. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or grouns of assets. The
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less costs to
sell.  The Company determied that individeal operating entities are CGUSs.

Also, the Company confirms that the CGU is the same level at which management is monitoring
soodwill,
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The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less
costs to sell. The value-in-use is estimated by applying a pre-tax discount rete that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU for which
estimated future cash flows have not been adjusted, to the estimated Tuture cash flows expected to be

generated by the asset or CGU.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.  Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination s allocated (o cach CGU that is expected to benefit from
the synergies arising from the goodwill acquired. Any impairment identificd at the CGU level will
first reduce the carrying value of goodwill and then be used to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.  Except for impairment losses in respect of goodwill which are
never reversed, an impairment loss 1s reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used w
determine the recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined. net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising assets and habilities, that are expected to be
recovered primanily through sale rather than through continuing use, are classified as held for sale. In
order to be classified as held for sale, the assets or disposal groups must be available for immediate
sale in their present condition and their sale must be highly probable. The assets or disposal groups
that are classified as non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less cost to sell.

The Company recognizes an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent wrife-down of disposal
group to fair value less costs to sell, and a gain for any subsequent increase in fair value less cosis o
sell, up to the cumulative impairment loss previously recognized in accordance with K-IFRS No. 1036
“Impairiment of Assets”.

A non-current asset that is classified as held for sale or part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale 15 not depreciated (or amortized).
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Drerivative financial instruments and hedges

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value, Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profii or loss.

{a) Embedded dervatives

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately only if the
following criteria have been met: (a) the cconomic characteristics and risks of the host contract and
the embedded derivatives are not clearly and closely related to a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative that would meet the definition of a derivative, and (b} the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value through profii or loss. Changes in the fair
value of separable embedded derivatives from the host contract are recognized immediately in
profit or loss. However, convertible rights of convertible bonds are not separated from the host
contract and the compound financial instruments of bonds and convertible rights are designated and
measured at fair value through profit and loss.

{b) Other derivatives

Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is not designated as a hedging instrument are
recogmized immediatelv in profit or oss.

Non-derivative financial Habilities

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or other financial liabilities in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of financial liabilities. The Company recognizes financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial liability.

{a) Financial liabihities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading or
designated as such upon initial recognition.  Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit
or loss.  Upon initial recognition, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
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(b} ther financial lHabilities

Non-derivative financial liabifities other than financial Habilities at fair value through profit of loss are
classified as other financial Habilities.

Financial guarantee liabilities are initially measured at their falr values and, if not designated as

tinancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, they are subsequently measured at the higher of:

* the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period; and

= the amount initially recognized less, cumulative amortization recognized on a straight-line basis
over the guarantee period

At the date of initial recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at fair value minus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, other financiai
liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The Company derecognizes a nancial lability from the consolidated statement of financial position
when it is extinguished {i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelied or
expires).

Convertible bonds

The convertible bonds issued hy the Company can be converted into equity securities at the option of
the bond holders.  The number of shares to be issued is adjusted according to the fair value of the
common shares. The convertible bonds, which are compound financial instruments of bonds and
conversion ights, are designated and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Construction work in progress

Consiruction work in progress represents the gross unbilied amount expected to be coilected from
customers for contract work performed to date. It is measured at cost plus profit recognized to date
less progress billings and recognized losses.  Cost includes all expenditures related directly to specific
projects and an allocation of fixed and variable overheads incurred in the Company’s contract
activities based on normal operating capacity,

Construction work in progress is presented as part of irade accounts and notes receivable in the
consolidated statement of financial position for all contracts in which costs incurred plus recognized
profits exceed progress hillings. I progress billings exceed costs incurred phus recognized profis,
then the difference is presented as amounts due to customers for contract work in the consolidated
statement of financial position,
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Employee benefits
(a} Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benetits that are due to be settled within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.  When an employee
has resdered service to the Company during an accounting peried, the Company recognizes the
undiscounted amount of short-ferm emplovee benefits expected o be paid in exchange for that
service as profit or loss. If the Company has a legal or consiructive oblitation which can be
reliably measured, the Company recognizes the amount of expected payment for profit-sharing and
bonuses payable as labilities.

(b} Other long-term employee henefits

Other long-term employee benefits include employee benefits that are settled hevond 12 months
after the end of the period in which the emplovees render the related service, and are calculated at
the present value of the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service i the current and prior periods, less the fair value of any related assets.  The present value
is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows using the interest rate of corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are
denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.  Any actuarial
saing and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

{¢) Retirement benefits; Defined contribution plans

For defined coatribution plans, when an employee has rendered service to the Company during a
period, the Company recognizes the contribution payable fo a defined contribution plan n
exchange for that service as an accrued expense, after deducting any contributions already paid. 1f
the contributions already paid exceed the contribution due for service before the end of the
reporting period, the Company recognizes that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

{d} Retirement benefits: Defined benefit plans

A detfined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the curvent and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The fair value of plan
assets is deducted. The calculation is performed annually by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Lh
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The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the same
currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The Company recognizes all actuarial
gains and losses arising from actuarial assumption changes and experiential adjustiments in other
camprehensive mcome when incurred.

When the fair value of plan assets exceeds the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the
Company recognizes an assel, to the extent of the total of cumulative unrecognized past service
cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan
or reduction in the future contributions to the plan.

Past service costs, which are the change in the present value of the defined henefits obligation for
employee service in prior periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or
change to post-employment benefits, are recognized as an expense on a siraight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested.  To the extent that the benefits are already vested
immediately following the intreduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the Company
recognizes the past service cost immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past cvent, il is probable that an outflow of resources embodving economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The risks and uncertainties that inevitably surround many events and circumstances are taken into
account in reaching the best estimate of a provision.  Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined at the present value of the expected future cash flows.

Where some or all of the expenditures required to settle a provision are expected to be reimbursed by
another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the entity seitles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be
treated as a separate asset,

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. 16 it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to seitle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognized,
A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products are sold.  The provision is

based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible ocutcomes against their associated
probabikities.
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Regarding provision for construction warranties, warranly period starts from the completion of
construction in accordance with construction contracts, 1 the Company has an obligation for
warranties, provision for warranties which are estimated based on historical warranty data are recorded
as cost of construction and provision for warranties during the construction period.

Share capitsf

Common stock is classified as equity and the incremental costs arising directly attributable to the
issuance of common stock less their tax effects are deducted from equity.

If the Company reacquires its own equity instruments. the amount of those mstruments (“{reasury
shares™) are presented as a contra equity account. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of its own equity instruments.  When treasury shares are
sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an Increase to equity, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is recorded in capital surplus.

Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods, services provided and the use of assets is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume
rebates, which are not significant for all periods presented.

{a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of activities is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates,
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales
agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transterred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably. The appropriate timing for transfer of risks and rewards
varies depending on the individual terms and conditions of the sales contract. For mternational
sales, this timing depends on the tvpe of mternational commercial terms of the contract.

{h) Services rendered
Revenue from services rendered is recognized in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the reporting date.  The stage of completion is assessed by

reference to surveys of work performed.

{¢y Construction contracts

Construction contracts of the Company primarily consist of contracts for the construction of plants
and commercial or residential buildings, and revenue recogaition for different types of contracts is

53



Folio179

POSCO and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2012

as follows:

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue s
recognized in profit or loss in proporticn to the stage of completion of the contract.  Contract
revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variation in contract work,
claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and
can be measured reliably.,  The stage of completion of a contract 15 determined based on the
proportion that contract costs mcurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total
contract costs.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, the revenue is
recognized only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable, An
cxpected loss on the construction contract shall be recognized as an expense immediately.

{dy Rental income

Rental income from investment property. net of lease incentives granted, is recognized in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises inferest meome on funds invested (ncluding available-for-sale financial
assets), dividend income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and ¢hanges in the
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method. Dividend income is recognized in
profit or loss on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and changes in the fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, Borowing costs are recognized in profit or loss using the
effective interest rate method.

Income tax

fncome tax expense comprises current and deferred fax.  Cuwrrent tax and deferred tax are recognized
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or ltems recognized
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(a} Current {ax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and any adjustment to
tax payable n respect of previous years. The taxable profit is different from the accounting profit
for the period since the taxable profit is calculated excluding the temporary differences, which will
be taxable or deductible in determining taxable profit of future pericds, and non-taxable or non-
deductible items from the accounting profit.

L4
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(b) Deferred tax

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
periad, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognized, using the asset-lability method, in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and habibiies for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxafion purposes. A deferred tax lability is recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which they can be
utilized. However, deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: taxable
temporary differences arising on the inttial recognition of goodwill, or the nitial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting profit or loss nor taxable income,

The Company recognizes a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint venfures, except to the extent that the
Company is able (o conirol the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresecable future. The Company recognizes
a deferred tax asset for deductible temporary differences arising from mvestments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avaiiable against which the temporary
difference can be utilized.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred rax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pertod.  The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period to recover or
settie the carrying amount of ifs assets and habilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offser only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
related current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same fax
authority and they intend to settle current tax Habilities and assets on a net basis.

Lo
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Earnings per share

Management calculates basic earnings per share (“EPS™) data for the Company’s ordinary shares,
which is presented at the end of the statement of comprehensive income.  Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenditures, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Company’s other components. Al operating segments’ operating results are regularly
reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM™) to make decisions about
resources to be allocated (o the segment and assess iis perfonmance and for which discrete financial
information s available. Management has determined that the CODM of the Company is the CEQ,

Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable fo a segment and do
not include allocated items. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period fo
acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill,
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New standards and inferpretations not vet adopted

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been

published and are mandatory for the Company for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2012, and
the Company has not carly adopted them.  Management believes the impact of the amendments on the

Company’s consolidated financial statements is not significant.

(ay K-IFRS No L0, “Consolidated Financial Statements ”

The standard introduces a single control model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated.  The standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013
with early adoption permitted.

Adopting the standard from January 1, 2013, the Company may be required to change ifs
consolidation conclusion in respect of its investees as below.  The imipacts of the standard cannot
be estimated as of December 31, 2012.

Company

Consolidating investees
that were not previeusly consolidated
Excluding investees
that  were previously consolidated Postech 2006 Energy Fund, Postech Early Stage Fund
from the conselidation scope

Daewoo Enginecring (THAILAND) Co., Ltd.

(h) K-HFRS No 11T, “Joint Arrangements”™

The standard classifies joint arrangements into two types - joint operations and joint ventures. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement wherehy the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
(i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement (i, joint venturers) have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The
standard requires a joint operator to recognize and measure the assets and liabilities (and recognize
the related revenues and expenses) in relation to its inferest in the arangement in accordance with
relevant K-IFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. The
standard requires a joint venfurer to recognize an investment and to account for that investment
using the equity method. The standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013 with early adoption permitied.
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{¢y K-IEFRS Nol1i2, “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

The standard brings together into a single standard all the disclosure requirements about an entity’s
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The Company is currently assessing the disclosure requirements for interests in subsidiaries,
imerests in joint arrangements and associates and unconsolidated structured entities in comparison
with the existing disclosures.  The standard requires the disclosure of information about the nature,
risks and financial effects of these inferests. The standards are effective for amnual pericds
beginning on or after January 1, 2013 with early adoption permitied.

{d) Amendments to K-IFRS No. 1019 “Emplovee Benefits”

The standard requires recognition of actuarial gains and losses immediately in other comprehensive
income and to calculate expected retum on plan assets based on the rate used to discount the
defined benefit obligation. The standard will be applied retrospectively for the Company’s annual
periods beginning on or after Januvary 1, 2013,

{ey K-IFRS No. 113 “Fair Value Measurement”

The standard defines fair valee and a single framework for fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements. 'The standard will be applied prospectively for the Company’s
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013,

)

(£ Amendments to K-IFRS No. 1001 “Presentation of Financial Statements’

The amendments require presenting in other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they
are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The
amendment is mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after july 1, 2012,
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4. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
e credit risk
s lquidity risk
s market risk
e capital risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure fo each of the above risks, the
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. and the Company’s
management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated
financial statements,

{a) Risk management policy

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which afl employees understand their roles and
obligations.

{hy Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. and arises principally from the Company’s
receivables from customers and mvestment securities.  In addition, credit risk arises from finance
snarantees and unused sales contracts.

The Company implements a credit risk management policy under which the Company only
fransacts business with counterparties that have a certain level of credit rate evaluated based on
financial condition, historical experience, and other factors.  The Company’s exposure o credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of a
nation or an industry in which a customer operates its business does not have a significant influence
on credit risk. The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for creditworthiness.
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The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The main components of this ailowance are a
spectfic loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss
component established for companies of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred
but not vet identified. The collective loss allowance 1s detennined based on historical data of
payment statistics for similar financial assets.  Debt securities are analyzed individually, and an
expected loss shall be directly deducted from debt securities.

Credit risk also artses from transactions with financial institutions, and such transactions include
transactions of cash and cash equivalents, various deposits. and financial instruments such as
derivative contracts. The Company manages its exposure to this credit risk by only entering into
transactions with banks that have high international credit ratings. The Company’s Treasury
Department authorizes, manages, and overseas new (ransactions with financial institutions with
whom the Company has no previous relationship.  Furthermore, the Company limits its exposure
to credit risk of Anancial guarantee contracts by strictly evaluating their necessity based on internal
decision making processes, such as the approval of the board of directors.

{c¥ Ligquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty m meeting the obligations
associated with its financial Habilities that are seitled by dehivering cash or another financial asset.
The Company’s appreach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its Habilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company's cash flow from business, borrowing or financing 1s sufficient to meet the cash
requirements for the Company’s strategic investments. Management believes that the Company is
capable of raising funds by borrowing or financing if the Company is not able to generate cash flow
requirements from its operations. The Company has committed borrowing facilities with various
banks.

{d} Market risk management
Market risk means that the fair value or future cash Hows of a [nancial mstrument will fluciuate

because of changes in market prices. The goal of markel risk management 18 optimization of
profit and controlling the exposure to market risk within acceptable Hmits.
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iy Currency risk

Fach segment is influenced by a risk factor of changes in foreign currency exchange rates for the
different directions due to the difference in structure of each industry regarding the cash inflows
and cash outflows in foreign currency. The steel segment generally has a lack of foreign
currency cash outflows, while the engineering and construction segments generally have
excessive foreign currency inflows due to the nature of their respective business. Therefore, the
result of the business is affected by the changes of foreign exchange rates.  The trading segment
is structured such that the cash inflows and cutflows of foreign currencies are o he offset;
however, the trading segment is exposed to a risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
when there are differences i currencies on receiving and paying the foreign currency amount
and time differences.

The Company’s policy in respect of foreign currency risks is a natural hedge whereby foreign
currency income is offset with foreign currency expenditures. The remaining net exposures
after the natural hedge have been hedged using derivative contracts such as forward exchange
contracts.  In addition, the Company’s derivative transactions are limited to hedging actual
foreign currency transactions and speculative hedging is not permitted. Based on this policy,
the Company entities have performed currency risk management specific to  various
characteristics of different segments. The entities in the steel industry, which has a lack of
foreign currency cash flows, has foreign currency borrowings from banks and hedges foreign
currency risks of the foreign currency borrowings by using foreign currency swaps.  The entities
in the engineering and construction segments, which have excessive foreign currency cash flows,
have hedged foreign currency risks by using forward exchange contracts.  Entities in the trading
industry have hedged foreign currency risks by using forward exchange contracts when the
foreign currencies received and paid are different.

2) Interest rate risk

The Company mostly borrows at fixed interest rates.  The Company’s management monitors
mterest rate risks regularly.

(e} Management of capital risk

The fundamental goal of capital management is the maximization of shareholders’ value by means
of the stable dividend policy and the retirement of treasury shares. The capital structure of the
Company consists of equity and net debt, deducting cash and cash equivalents and current financial
instrumenis from borrowings. The Company applied the same financial risk management strategy
that was applicd in the previous period.

i1



POSCO and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

As of December 31, 2012

Folio171

The equity attributable to owners as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2611
Total borrowings b 24921433 26.811.717
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 4,680,526 4,598,682
Net borrowings 20,240,967 222130358
Total equity 42420418 40,729.920
Net borrowings-to-equity ratio 47.70% 54.54%
5. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalenis as of December 31, 2012 and 201 lare as follows:
fin willions of Wan) 2012 2611
Cash W 8,595 23954
Demand deposits and checking accounts 1,600,934 1,855,929
Financial mstruments cash equivalents 3,061,997 2,718,799
W 4,680,526 4,598 682

6. Trade Accounts and Notes Receivable

(a} Trade accounts and notes receivable as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2011
Current
Trade accounis and notes receivable W 9863436 10,265,421
Capital lease receivables 44918 117,230
Unbilled due from customers for contract work 1,493,709 1,361,416
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (366,090) (293,552)
11,037,973 11,450,515
Non-current
Trade accounts and notes recewvable 52,763 45061
Capital lease receivables 102,887 147634
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (13.446) (9,034)
142,204 183,061
W 11,180,177 11,633,576
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Trade accoumts and notes receivable sold 1o financial institution, for which the derecognition
conditions were not met, amounted to W80,258 million, W132,908 million as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively, and are included in bank borrowings (note 15).

(b} Capital lease receivables are as follows:

(in millions of Won)

Customer Conte nts 2012 2011
Korea Electric Power Combined therual . .
e mhmet e W 147,634 199,141
Comporation power cycle 1~4
Tenant of EXPO .
Lease contract 171 65,723

Apartment

W 147,805 264,564

(c) The gross amount and present value of minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2012 and

2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2611

Less than 1 year W 62,048 141,670
1 year - 5 years 120,135 169,265
Greafer than 5 vear 11,772 24,519
Unrealized interest meome (46,150) {70,590}
Present value of miumum kase payment ik 147,805 264,864
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7. Grther Receivables and Other Financial Assets
(a) Other receivables as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(i millions of Wonj

2012 2011
Current
Short-term loans W 271,067 367,330
Other accounts receivable 1.208 878 1.OA7.163
Accrued income 71,076 56,028
Allowanee for bad debt accounts (49,382 (60,013)
1,591,439 1,433,508
Non-Cusrent
Long-term leans 574255 298,106
Long-term other accounis receivable 164,289 86,923
Accrued mmcome 1,204 956
Allowance for bad debt accounts (40,7243 {38,584}
699,024 347 401
W 2,290,463 1,780,909
(b} Other short-term financial assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
(in millions of Won)
2012 2011
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets held for trading W - 50.861
Dertvatives assets held for trading 62,724 92,055
Available-for-sale financial assets
Short-term avaiable-for-sale secunities 133,636 31651
Held-to-maturity investments
Current portion of held-to-maturity securities (bonds) 31,237 876
Loans and other receivables
Shori-term financial instruments (*12.3) 1,621,668 1,757,744
Deposils 107208 73,343
Other receivables 738 221,123
Allowanece Tor bad debt accounts {4,233) {4,893)
W 2,254,994 2222762

{*1} As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, short-termn financial instruments of ¥ 3,400 million and
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W 1,670 million are secured related to long-term borrowings of forestry association, respectively.

{*2} As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, W 12,699 million and W 17,175 million, respectively, are
restricted for use 1n 4 government project.
(*3} As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, short-term financial instruments amounfing to W 7,650

million are provided as collateral for long-term borrowings.
{c}y Other long-term financial assets as of December 31, 2012 and 201 lare as follows:

fiv millions of Won)

IGi2 2611

Fmancial assets af fair valee thwough profit or loss

Derivatives asstes held for trading W 8634 16,696
Available-for-sale financial assets

Long-term availzble-for-sale securities {equity mstruments) (*1,2.3) 3711169 45309197

Long-term available-for-sale securities (honds) 26430 25847

Long-term available-for-sale securities (others) 43,266 41,902
Held-to-maturity hvestiments

Held-to-maturity securities {bonds) 3251 34,698
Loan and other receivables

Long-term financial instruments 68213 37,732

Deposits 110,682 112,244

Allowance for bad debt accounts {802} {(45)

W 3,970,845 4,778,271

(*1) As of December 31, 2012, 2,294,961 shares equivalent to 20,654,653 American Depository
Receipts (“ADRs™) of SK Telecom Co.. Ltd. have been pledged as collateral for exchangeable
bonds issued.

(*2) During the year ended December 31, 2012, there was a further significant decline in the fair
value of shares of Jupiter mines Ltd., SK Telecom Co., Ltd. and others for a prolonged period,
which was considered as objective evidence of impairment. As a result, an impairment
losses of W 224,171 million was recognized in profit or loss during the vear ended
Precember 31, 2012,

(*3) As of December 31, 2012, W 28,354 million of long-term available-for-sale securities have
been provided as collateral.
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8. hnventories

(a) Inventories as of December 31, 2012 and 201 1are as follows:

{in millions of Won) 2612 2011
Finished goods W 1,475 832 1,556,573
Merchandise 703923 1,185,496
Semi-finished goods 1,876,196 2,163,124
Raw materials 2425367 2,563,837
Fuel and materials 8G3 137 758,333
Construction mventories 1,324,873 1,245,546
Materials-m-transi 2,007 106 2857434
Others 93,007 168,895
10,799,441 12499238
L.ess: allowance for inventories valuation {214,795) (215,594)
W 10,584,646 12,283,644

The amounts of valuation lesses of inventories recognized within cost of goods sold during the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were W 76,483 million and W 146,391 mitlion, respectively.

9, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Details of non-current assets held for sale and related Habilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are
as follows:

tin milfions of Won)
2012 2011

Subsidfaries (*1,2) POSCOH (1) Subsidiaries (*4) Total

Assets
Trade accounts and notes receivahle and
other fnanciad assets

Invenories

Property, plant and equipment 119G 16,857

738G

Infangble assets 3
45 883

Other assels - -
1190 16,887 22150 129037
Liadilisie s

Trade sceounts and note pavables and
ather fnancizl abiities ) . IR0y I8 S04
Borrowings . - 144,920 144,920
{nher labilities - - EERE 53178
- - 226,607 226,607
Nut assets W 1,190 16,587 85,543 102 430
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(*1) The Company determined to dispose of the shares of Kyobo Life Insurance Co., Ltd., an associate
of Daewoo International Corporation, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, in order to secure
investment funds and improve the Company’s financial structure.  The investment was
reclassified as a non-current asset held for sale at the beginning of the bidding process that started
during the six-month period ended June 30, 2012. The amount measured at the lower of its
carrying amount and fair value less costs o sell of Kyobo Life Insurance Co., Lid, was
¥ 1,150,720 million as of June 30, 2012. The Company recorded an impairment loss for the non-
current assets held for sale of W258,381 mulhion, The transaction was completed on September 5,
2012, The Company recognized a gain on disposal of assets held for sale of W45,874 million.

(*27) POSCOAST CO., LTD. determined 1o dispose of its land and building and classified as non-
cusrent assets held for sale as of December 31, 2012, The amount measured at the lower of those
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell of some land and building was W 1,190 million,
the Company recorded impairment loss for the non-current assets held for sale of W 70 mullion.

{#33 POSCO planned to dispose of equipment of existing steef manufacturing plants due to the
completion and expected use of a new plant.  The relevant equipment was reclassified as non-
current assets held for sale at December 31, 2011, Some of those non-current assets held {or sale
were disposed of by sale, and others were reclassified as property, plant and equipment due to the
cancelation of plans to sell during the year ended December 31, 2012, POSCO recognized a gain
of W1,150 million and a loss of W9,391 million from the assets held for sale during the year

ended December 31, 2012,

(*4) The Company determined to dispose of Daewoo Cement (Shandong) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
Daewoo International Corporation, one of POSCO’s subsidiaries, in order to close down a non-
core business and collect long-term receivables and securities, pursuant to the board of director’s
resolution on July 28, 2011, Daewoco International Corporation entered into a sales contract with
China United Cement Group Co., Ltd. on August 9, 2011 and completed the disposal of relevant
non-curtent assets held for sale on June 28, 2012, The Company recognized a gain on disposal
of assets held for sale of 146,309 million.
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16, Investments in Associates

(a) Detatls of invesiments in associates as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

fine pilfions of Woni

2012 2011
Company Nugnber of shares Owaers Bip (Yo} Acquisition cost ook value Book value
[Promiesticd
Kyohao Life serance
Co, Lid (%1} W - - - - 1377104
Sungi Geotee Co., Lid. F7193.510 3302 I9ETT 181,361 P94 542
SNNC Co., Lid. FI0LOGD 49 Ky SRS 147.338 154,13
POSCO-ESM Co, Lid (53 [BECIEE LS 503043 EERELH 42388
Busan-Cinbae Light Raf Trans
Cer Lad, S Ol 2500 45 Ry 76 M2
Cheongna BT Co. Lid (%3 - - . - 35.564
Blue ccean PEF 333 27.52 33300 33839 547
METAPOLIS Co., Lid, (¥%4) 4225280 40105 15410 - 15674
POSMATE Co. Lid 411573 45135 125 46,204 2245
CHUNGIT ENTTRPRISE
CITY DEVELOPMENT
Co, LT TARIRIAN 25,40 18640 9414 RN
MIDAS Informaiion Technology
Coo bad. (953 - - - - 12475
Poscochemtech Misubishi
Carbon Tech (%6} 289000 BT RYIG 28060 -
D arems Co Lid 1536.3494 41,59 17683 je.44d EE
incheongimpo Highway Co. Led EUIREY 20,04 15.356 13680 35600
Cravolen Tidal Power Plant
Co. Lad 2380059 YR 1394603 11.544 AR
Others sasas 02926
A 15985 565
[Foreign]
Rery Hill Holdings Py Lrd (37 12,540 REER Y -
POSCO-NPS Niobim LLC 500 48646 IMROR
AMUCTOWAY Pry Lad 4900 123018 168212
CEP(Compatda Siderdrgica do Peeem 415739274 2000 214761 124231
Nickel Mining Company SAS 3234698 A49.0) 146.699 168292
KOBRASCS ERUIOVAL R TS St 113847 128084
KOREA LNG Led 2403 .00 55,976 127 561
Eureka Mofy LLC - 20,00 LR K 1% 772
DMSA. AMSA - 4,05 124320 11536
BX STEEL POSCOG
Cold RolledBheer CoLud - 5.4 R 43,577
CAME Resources Py, Lid 1220 3334 40,388 55 465
Sewth-East Asiy Gas Pipeling
Comprny Lid FAS 219000 230 FRLTTG 144,831 136173
Poschrome Py, Lid 43350 50,00 19,892 21324 4674
USE-POSCO Indostries (94 - S0 RN - 16380
NOR LLC - 20,40 Mg 39313 4,160
Others 156,151 [
TAIR 6T 1846094
W 3039201 W 3831459

(*1) The Company determined to dispose of the shares of Kyobo Life Insurance Co., Ltd., an associate
of Daewoo International Corporation, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, in order to secure
mvestment funds and improve #s financial structure. The tramsaction was completed in
September 2012,
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(*2) This entity was newly established during the year ended December 31, 2012,

(*3) Excluded from associates as the contract on entrusted voting rights expired during the year ended
December 31, 2012,

(*4) As the Company’s share of losses exceeded its interest in this entity, the carrying amount of that
interest was reduced fo nil and the recognition of further losses was discontinued. Unrecognized
losses in this entity are W 17,952 million during the year ended December 31, 2012.

{*5) Excluded from associates due to disposal during the year ended December 31, 2012,

(*6) The Company is not able to exercise significant influence on the investee even though the
Company’s percentage of ownership of above 50%.

(*7y This entity was acquired during the year ended December 31, 2012,
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(b} The movements of investments in associates for the vears ended December 31, 2612 and 2011 are

as follows:
1y December 31, 2012
(i millions of Won)

Copmpany

Dee. 31, 2611
Book value

Shave of
profits (lossesy

COrther increase
{deercase} (F1}

Pec. 31, 24412
Boak value

[Domestic]

Kyoho Life Insurance Co., [1d

Sungjin Geotes Co., Lid,

SNNC Co., Led

POSCO-ESM Co., Lid.

Busan-Gimhae Light Rail Transit
Co., Ltd,

Cheongna 8T Co., Ll

Blue ocean PEF

METAPOLIS Co., Lid.

POSMATE Cao,, Lid.

CHUNGIU ENTERPRISE
CITY DEVELOPMENT
Cor, LTEY

MIDAS information Technology
Co,, Ed

Poscochemtech Mitsubishi
Carbon Tech

L trans Co., Lid.

Incheongimpo Highway Co., Lid.

Carolim Tidal Power Plant
Co., Led

Crthers

{Foreign}

Roy Hill Holdings Pty Ltd.
POSCO-NPS Nichium LLC
AMCHEWAY Py Ll

CSP (Compania Siderurgica do Pecem)

Nickel Mining Company SAS
KOBRASCO
KOREA LNG L,
Eureka Moly [LC
DMSA, AMSA
BX STEEL POSCO
Cold RolledSheet Co., Lid.
CAMI. Resources Pry. Lid,
South-East Asta Cas Pipeline
Company 1td
Poschrome Pry. Lid
LISS-POSCO Industries
NCRLLC
(hhers,

W 1377114 37038 (1ALEISD)
164,642 (17,162) 3,581 181361
15413 15,157 21,745} 147,539
{56003 42548 42358
34227 {26026) - a0
35,504 {729} {34835} -
3597 (4,542) 2410 33,839
13674 {15674) - -
22409 2,158 21637 46,204
21026 8534 {146} 29414

12476 £330 (14006}

- {860} 28,920 28,660
361G 1208 H1L.566 lo444
3,500 {370 13,557 13.680

11,895 {451} - 11,544
62,926 (3,842} (6,159} 52,925
1985565 (5,138} {1,369428) 016999
- (10,537 343,660 321329
374,868 19,159 (45421 348 646
HOR212 (38,7063 (6,488} 123018
124231 {25201 G345 214761
68,292 {£2,795} (3,798) 146699
128,884 IRT2 (43879 1135847
127,901 12,647 (40,6223 9,970
H9.772 - {3364 213,136
119,556 (1,178) 5,946 124326
G5.377 2650 {5.33%) 92,888
55465 11,390 £4,628%) &2.227
136,175 - 8656 144 X35
24,674 (311} £3,03%) 71.324
16,880 (5933 {10,947 -
24,107 (452) 13,648 39,303
171,500 (13.862) (1487) 156,151
1,546,094 (17,564 595732 2428262
ki 3831659 (22,707) (769,696) 3,035,261
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{*1) Other mcrease or decrease represents the changes in Investments in associates due to acquisitions,
disposals, dividends received, change in capital adjustiments arising from translations of financial

statements of foreign investees and others.

2y December 31, 2011

fin miltions of Won)

Dec. 31, 2010

Share of

(Fther increase

Dec. 31, 2011

Company Book walue profifs (fosses) {(decrease) (* 1) Book value
[Domestic]
Kyobe Life Insurance Co., Lid W 1,314,808 42456 (20,1443 1,377,114
Sungjin Geoteo Co,, Lid 227243 (336503 1347 194,042
SNNC Co, Lid, 145 466 48,605 {40 5400 154131
Busan-CGimhae Light Rad Transn
Co., Lid. 42,151 17924y - 34,227
Cheongnz IBT Co., Lid. 39607 (40433 B 33,564
Blue ocean PEF - 1478 34,493 35,971
METAPOLIS Co., Lid, 372666 (16997 - 15,674
POSMATE Co., Lid. 20,989 ERES (17213 22 408
CHEUNGIU ENTERPRISE
CIETY DEVELOPMENT
CGL LT, 21317 (146} (145 21,026
MIDAS Information Technology
Co., Lid. G457 3089 i)} 12,476
Ul trans Co., Lid 3920 {1.506) 1,506 3610
Incheongimpo Highway Co., Lid. 34049 {245) [ 3504
Garolim Tidal Power Plant
Co., Lid. 10,881 (164 1,278 1,995
Orthers 126 4G5 {5,064) (6] 415) 62,926
2,000,961 (9,629 (85,0025) 1,985,565
[Foreign}
POSCO-NPS Nivhium LLC - 5,658 369,210 374,868
AMUT{WA) Py Lad 213446 (32,879 (12,355) 168,212
CSP (Companda Siderurgica do Pecem) - {1.661) 125892 124,231
Nickel Mining Company SAS 1804671 {1075 15,3063 168292
KOBRASCO 141,939 36071 {49,966 128,884
KOREA LNG Lid 133,793 $.026 (13518) 127,561
Fureka Maly LLC HIG, 377 {754y 1,349 109,772
DMSA, AMSA 10,536 a8 18,982 119,556
BX STEEL POSCO
Cold RolledSheet Co,, Lid. 39313 1.797 4,467 95577
CAMI. Resources Py, Led, 5740 14,517 (27453 35465
South-Fast Asia Gas Pipeline
Company Ltd. 56,634 (25 79,564 136,175
Poschrome Py, Lid 29261 1422 {5,949 24674
USE-POSCO Indusiries A0 (31 585y 2,463 16,880
NCR LLC 23,931 {85} 261 24,1407
Olers 119426 (14,367 06,447 L7E5400G
1.305.464 {19 0685 5359690 1,846 (04
W 3306425 501,569 474,665 3,831,654
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(*1} Other increase or decrease represents the changes in investment in associates due to acquisitions,
dispesals, dividends received, change in capital adiustments arising from translations of financial

statements of foreign investees and others.

(¢} The fair value of iInvestments in associates for which there are published price quotations as of

December 31, 2012 are as follows:

(in millions of Won)

Company

Fair value

Sungijin Geotec Co., Lid. ¥y

184,830

(d) Summarized financial information of associates as of and for the years ended December 31, 2012

and 2011 are as follows:

1y Becemnber 31, 2012

fin millions of Wowj

Company Assels Liabilities Equity Sales Net income {Jogs)

[Domestic]
Sunggn Geoteg Co., Lid FUER] 630 PHEEZ AR (28.21%)
SNNC Co. Lad 77273 6174 33497 RFENES LG
POSCO-ESM o Lid 49287 067 33220 {1423
Busan-Gimbae Light Rai Transt

Co. Lud RERRUN 756,606 3405 16,811 {HI0HE)
Bl ccean PEF 347.208 224,338 22960 429.210 {16,304}
METAPOLIS Co. L. 321942 312,720 9207 21063
POSMATE Ce.. Lid 118.077 14,550 3,497 FO4,705
CHUNGIU ENTERPRISE CITY

DEVELOPMENT COLLTD. 335716 280540 K376 226271 36971
Poscochemtech Mitsubishi Carbon Tech A74014 247 46,767 (1433
Uf trans Co. Lid 0532 12832 B3 {33
Incheonganpe Highway Co. Lid 44714 334 44380 t32%y
Crarolyn Thls? Power Plant Col Lid 3476 b5 JRYM) LAY
|Forewmj
Ray Hill Holdings Pty Lid b §05. 2400 1295966 AR.321
POSCG-NPS Niohium L1 } 1440 6497 351 ARAY
CSP(Compania Siderurgics do Pecem) FOBE OS5 16551 1071554 - {12613
MNickel Mg Company SAS 445,344 Y266 3154078 P02 {33981
KORBRASCO 231524 388 AITH53 ARG 2R3
KOREA TNG Lid 345,841 4 548777 HRL5Y2 107,953
DASA AMEA TS ARG 50063401 RN+ - {29457
BX STEEL POSCO Cold RolledSheet Co YI2937 579340 ML Lste.0t? 2296
CAML Resources Py, Lid W8T F0.5602 139215 2841534 34,162
South-East Asia Oas Pipeline Company L 1341510 TR 7RI - .
Poschrome Pry. Lid, 33000 ERE 318 6D {HOG)
LiSS-PUSCO Industries A2 TET 55681 {38914} Y990.356 {52.287)
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2} December 31, 2011

fi mliions af Won)

Company Asseds {fabilities fojuity Sales Netincame (loss)
[Domestic]
Kyoba Life Insurance Co., Lid, k4 GOLE28, 181 35786580 RUER R FLET0607 487,785
Sungily Geotee Cao., Lid. TIT665 511.548 106,317 H63.879 (3R.894)
SNNC Co fad HHO05G 169318 3474 473473 87,246
Busan-Gimhae Light Radl Transy
Ca. Lid RETAR2 126910 LA90 {31696
Cheongna T Co.. Lid, 3333606 [69.92% (20320
Blue ccean PEF IB3080 B 33T
METAPOLIS Co. Lid, 37441 44,466 21333 {36861
POSMATE Co. Lid, G403 54086 16021 4.397
CHUNGH! ENTERPRISE CITY
LOPMENT COLLTD. M2 88T 2REARS 46402 B7.454 XL
MIDAS nformation Technokgy
Cen, Lad, FLITH 40761 S0.581 41
il trans Co, Lid P27y 13413 (H3
Incheongimpo Highway Co. Led 1518 RN - [EAEE
Carolim Tidal Power Pl
Co.. Lad. 37626 3 317333 - (513
{Foreign}
POSCOWNPS Niohigm 11O EECNEY A 11433 HL3TT
CEP{Comparma Siderurgioa do Pecenm) 6228 1657 621053 - (1302}
Wickel Mining Company SAS 496318 04,600 A 618 142456 (13883
KOBRASCO 314458 6091 287767 P30G.725 TS
KOREA LNG Lid 24164 HyA492 (3677 95385 92 A0
DMSA, AMSA SA7.261 1579755 P R27.5000 3% 934
BX STEEL POSCO
Cold RolledSheet Co. Lid, {99540 745318 1421784 7488
CAMIL Resources Py, Lid 217677 His 456 TIRTTR 46,567
South-East Asw Gas Pipeline
Compary Lid. S9AHT2 S3.140 543,832 - (949)
Poschrome Py, Lad. 61,740 4119 STt 96,785 1028
LISS-POSCO Industrics 470,563 434,732 36,241 1062310 (61.478)
{¢) Joint venture as of December 31, 201215 ag follows:
Operation Ownership Location
Mt Thorley 17V Mine development 20% Australia
POSMAC IV Mine development 20% Australia
Ch IV Mine development 5% Australia
RUM IV Mme development 1004 Austraha

73



Folio159

POSCO and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consoclidated Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2012

i1. Investment Property, Net

(a) Investment property as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 arc as follows:

2612 2011
iin mitlions of Wonj Accrmulated depreciation Accuinubated depre clatios
Acgnisition cost sl impuirme ni boss Boak vahe Acguisition cost and impairment luss Brah, value
Eand W 244 A4} IHRIZ 53,157
Buridings SOGAST 86154y 3 ¥
Siructyes (4,171
Teal il (231,760

As of December 31, 2012, the fair vaiue of investment property is W 837,511 million, among
which the Company evaluated investment property of 7 subsidiaries including International
Business Center Corporation as its book value amounted to W 64,653 million since it 1s believed
that fair value is approximately same as book value.

{(b) Changes in the carrying value of investment property for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 were as follows:

1) For the year ended December 31, 2012

Business
fin willions of Wonp  Beginning  Acguisitions  combination g posals Depreciation (*1}  Others (*2} Erding
Land A LR 15832 1442 (3B5TH 1473y ER 2Ha82
Ruildings 331,733 13,857 T560 {6.730% (15044 9427 204,503
Structares 6373 - - - {3773 155} 5
Tenal W 327533 29,685 3,002 (45,305 (158413 22,113

(*1) Impairment losses of investment property amounted to W 1,053 million are included.
(*2) Includes reclassification resuiting from changing pwpose of use, adjustment of foreign
currency translation difference and others.

2) For the year ended December 31, 2011

Business
(in pilfions of Won)  Beginning Acquisitions combination Eisposals Depreciation (*1)  Others {(*2}) Ending
Land WORTA64 41,243 G4 {37505) [RESIE 38,301
Buitdings 278,361 109757 - (56,943) {22,783 {6,649}
Siructures 3,540 G072 - - (64(H (2,649 6373
Tosal W 493 365 1574672 04 (114,858) (37433 29,263 527533

(*1) Impairment losses of investment property amounted to W 23,048 million are included.
(*2) Includes reclassification resulting from changing purpese of use, adjustment of foreign
currency transtation difference and others.
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

(a) Property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2012 and 201 1are as follows:

Wiz 0

Aceamutired de preciston

Aogudsitiay cost amd frapd foss Crrvg mizs i ennis

Kecumularud dopreciition

Acquisiting cost sd
g 2 i

{31y & PR L Bty

{b) The changes in carrying value of property, plant and equipment as for the years ended December
31,2012 and 2011 were as follows:

1y For the vear ended December 31, 2012

fire milliony of oy Hutciness
Besimning Acamcitions (*i} cosbination Bis pog s e preciation {72} Others (V3] Ezeching
Land w T840, HeX i) T [icias) k¥
Fhusibfings (39756
Hroctares -
Wk sl oquEaen £ 504
Vehiclrs 41
Tos 411 t1.0813
Furnbare amd fawres H {3.3069)
Capitat Lease Assets 1236} z
Corsira Hon- - progress - - i3 Al
Fenal W 2ot (296,140 (2303958 L 2ZR00.659) 32LIT6ITR

(*1) Acquisition mcludes assets transferred from construction-in-progress.
(*2) Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment amounted to W 12,977 million are

included.
{(*3) Includes reclassification for changing purpose of use, adjustment of foreign currency
translation difference and others.

2} For the year ended December 31, 2011

tie miltians of Wang Husiness
Beginning Acquisitions (1) comitnasion LY frosg als [ preciation Oihers (1 o Eading
Larsi W 2011851 ERREY 106 (RSN H - 0421
Budldings 155116 5 (2750597} 455750
Srucnares [EEICEN] A5610
t1605340) GREA6T

Machinery snd equpimen

25 1177
1535 {46575 £8.34%
0 {145] 114051
1i1536, : .
W 31814 {150,305 (2144475

(*1Yy Acquisition includes assets transferred from construction-in-progress.
(*2) Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment amounted to ¥ 25,852 million are

mchuded.
{(*3) Includes reclassification for changing purpose of use, adiustment of foreign currency
translation difference and others.
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(¢} Borrowing costs capitalized and the capitalized interest rate for the vears ended December 31, 2012
and 2611 were as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 1011

Weighted average expenditure W 3,131,866 1433877

Borrowing costs capitalized H31.794 78,777

Capitalization rate 3.25% 5.48%

(d} Pledged as collateral assets

(i miflions of Won) Collateral right holder 2012 2011

Land {*1) Korean Development Bank and others W 545,654 IRT006

Buildings and structures {*1)  Korean Development Bank and oihers 33157 139,109

Machinery and equipment Korean Development Bank and others 1285452 218816

Construction-in-progress The Export-Import Bank of Korea and others 1.486,743 -
W 3645608 739081

(*1) Investment properties are incladed.

13. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

{a} Goodwill and ofher intangible assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

IGi2 2R4F
i mtffiens of Woarj Accumuisted Acvcnmuiated
Acquisiion depreciation Gowernment AcynisHion depreciation Covernme st
cost and inipairnie nd Joss 2ranls cast and impabment loss prants
Goodwl W (22758 EATIITR i18.95%) -
Frfelkectial propesty ripfis (43 448y [ERELH JEA TG 116259
Fremimm i vental [RENG%3] . £5.MT -
Developmment expense 15,367 Q0,108 13008
Port facilties usapge rights [REGRIHEH AT
Ixploration and evalmtion assets ECRE [FrERSH 1,374
TG FAARI00 - LA RN -
et LT85 (57568 -
k2 i LILO9TY 44k
HHTD G0 SHED 856 (3T

(b} The changes in carrving value of goodwill and other intangible assets for the vears ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

1y For the yvear ended December 31, 2012

Increase Deerease
din milfiane of Wong Bepinning — Acgeizltions Pevelpnwment Huginess combination Disposals Aumarization Impginme pt foxs  Oahers (¥3y Fading
Goexbwedt v 1§ W Rt . PRIy RIS
Tnteliectual property Tighis Wils2 - [ {24,529y
Premagm w e ERR . 621 4
Develpment ¢xp | 468 IGEES

Part faciities usage righis

Exphoration and ov (1671 Ent

Mining develiprne

Customes Fefinshps . . - (RETEy

et dtanside assels K PRELEAY i Nt e (i3] o7
W Sy 4TET AbJEY [ 6D ] LISTO £} Jany 2054
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(*1) Acquisition amounts nclude goodwill amounting to W 77,298 million related 1o the
acquisition of PONUTech Co., Lid.
(*2) Premium in renfal includes memberships with indefinite usefis Hives,

(*3) Includes ranstation adjustment and reclassifications.

2} For the year ended December 31, 2011

Tnvrepes Decrease
din e s g sl Begining Acquisiticuy Development  Business combimuion Dis posufy Anmgriimtion Impuizmient foss  Oibers (%33 Ending
Goedwilfo* 1 k AR [EER T

el propery righes He e .
Preimpamn i reseai (903 4
ST SX[RTEE 262 5%
- 158506
g3 sy - RIG0 iy
K A L) RN ] TR L5558k [EEREKES)

(*1) Acquisition amounts include goodwill amounting to W 119,260 million related 1o the
acquisition of POSCO Thainox Co., Ltd. in 2011. An impairment loss of W 14,958
million is related to the negative capital of DAESAN (CAMBODIA) Co. Ltd.

(*2) Premium in rental inchudes memberships with indefinite useful lives.

(*3) Includes translation adjustment and reclassifications.

(¢} For the purpose of nnpairment testing, goodwill is allocated to individual operating entities
determined to be CGUs.  The goodwill amount as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Reparing Total munber of CGES
SRS 22 L CGlis 2012 0
steet i t POSCO- Thamon Pubbic Comguny Lented. (%3} W T 1 B924F
POSCOWET Collad IH95% 30555
Others ¥4y 14086 2ra2
Trading 3 3 Dracwon Iesmiong? Corporation (4 1163822 L6352
Others 11004 1336
E&C 3 H POSCO fngineering Company (%) 104,617 194637
EPC EGUATIES LLF EYEIE) 031
Cithery 11.294 11780
Chbers Bl k1 PONUTech Co,, Ld TR -
POSCC ENERGY Ce Lid, 26471 26471
Oy 19423 19,207
Faeat £ 15 4 1733001 1656817
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{*1) Recoverable amounts of Daewoo International Corporation were determined based on value-in-
use.  As of December 31, 2012, value-in-use i3 estimated by applying 7.60% discount rate and
2.8% terminal growth rate with 5 vears, the period for the estimated fisture cash flows, based on
management's business plan.  No hmpairment loss of goodwill was recognized during the vear
ended December 31, 2012 as the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying value of the CGU.

The estimated recoverable amount of CGU exceeded the carrying valae by W 1,087,136 million.
Value-in-use of the CGU was affected by the assumption such as discount rate and terminal
growth used in discount cash flow model.  When the discount rate increases by 0.25%, value-in-
use will be decreased by 4.43% and when the terminal growth rate decreases by 0.25%, value-in-
use will be decreased by 3.8G%. There is no effect on the impairment loss of the goodwill.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU.

{(*2) Recoverable amounts of POSCO Engineering Company were determined based on value-in-use.
As of December 31, 2012, value-in-use is estimated by applving 11.15% discount rate and 1%
terminal growth rate with 5 years, the period for the estimated future cash flows based on
management’s business plan.  No impairment loss of goodwill was recognized during the year
ended December 31, 2012 as the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying value of the CGU.

The estimated recoverable amounts of CGU exceeded the carrying value by W 171,253 million.
Value-in-use of the CGU was affected by the assumption such as discount rate and terminal
growth used in discount cash flow model. When the discount rate increases by 0.25%. vahie-in-
use will be decreased by 2.91% and when the terminal growth rate decreases by 0.25%, value-in-
use will be decreased by 1.88%.  There is no effect on the impairment loss of the goodwill.

recoverable amount 1s based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of the CGLL

{*3) Recoverable amounts of POSCO- Thainox Public Company Limited were determined based on
fair value, which was calculated to 30% control premium added to the current stock price as of
December 31, 2012, And no impairment loss of goodwill was recognized since there was no
objective evidence of impairment on December 31, 2012,

{(*4) The Company recognized goodwill impairment loss of W 7.230 million, which was oceurred

when POSCONST CO., LTD. merged into POSCOAST CO, LT for the vear ended December
31,2012,
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14, Other Assets

Other current assets and other long-term assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won)

2012 2011
Other current assets
Advance payment B 1,205,969 1035846
Prepaid expenses 189,647 180,369
Cthers 2,564 3927
W 1.398.180 1,220,142
Other long-term assets
Long-term advance payment W 2,119 2,895
Long-term prepaid expenses 178,934 190,741
Others (*1) 212,733 436,651
W 393,786 630287

(*1} The guarantee deposits of W257 878 million related to the Australia Roy Hill iron ore mine
were transferred to investments in associates during the year ended December 31, 2012,
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15. Borrowings

(a} Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term borrowings as of December 31, 2012 and

2011 are as follows:

i millicns of Wonj

Short-torm borrowings
Bank overdrafls
Short-term horrowings (*1)

Current portion of long-term labiities
Current portion of long-tenm borrowings (*D)
Current postion of foreign ban
Current portion of  debentures (%1}
[ess @ Current portion of
discount on debentures ssued
Add : Premum on debentures redemption

Inte rest
Bank rate (Y} Ig12 kAl 3}

BOA, others .4-1.0 ki 123,685 233,864
Shinhan Bank, others 3,313 7586 943 9335 182
TI10678 9,572,986

Korean Development Bank, others {1.5-0.0 98,504 428 409
NATIXIS 2.0 931 951
Korean Development Bank, others 16-70 1899430 THLO30
(2,644} (884)

2414 -

2,798,670 1,218,524

e

Yo 10509348

10,791 510

(*1) Property, plant and equipment, short-term financial assets, available-for-sale financial assets and
other assets amounting to W 3,629,296 million, W 11,050 million, W 624,187 million and W 65
million, respectively, are provided as collateral related to short-term borrowings, long-term

borrowings and debentures.

{b) Long-term borrowings, excluding current portion as of December 31, 2012 and 201 Lare as follows:

fin millions of Wons

Long-terin borrowmgs (Y1)
Less : Present value discount

Forewgn oan (*2)

RBonds (*13.4)
Less : Discount on debentures isued
Add : Premmm on debentires redemption

Add - Premsam on debentures issued

fmterest
Bank rate (o) 1012 2081

Korean Development Bank and others 3.6~33.0 WS I6RTI 46142391
(44.293) {302,118y

NATIXIS 20 2000 307
Korean Development Bank and others F5-49.0 9,336,960 776,893
(62,943 £94,356)

{5,635 21493

- 833

W12 412.085 1,020,207

{*1) Property, plant and equipment, short-term {inancial assets, available-for-sale financial assets and
other assets amounting to W 3,629,296 million, W 11,050 million, W 624,187 million and W 65
million, respectively, are provided as collateral related to short-term borrowings, long-term

borrowings and debentures.

(*2) Korea Developiment Bank has provided guarantees related to this foreign loan.
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(*3) In 2609, one of the controlling company's subsidiaries, Dacwoo International Corporation, 1ssued
convertible bonds with a face value of USD 300 million and a 5 year maturity. All of these
convertible bonds have been converted to equity stocks of the subsidiary during the year ended
December 31, 2012,

(*4) POSCO issved exchangeable bonds with SK Telecom Co., Ltd. ADRs through Zeus(Cayman) Lid.
August 2011, The Company accounted for these exchangeable bonds as long-term borrowings.
POSCO provides guarantees for Zeus {Cayman) Lid,

16. Other Pavables and Other Financial Liabilities
(a) Other pavables as of December 31, 2012 and 201 tare as follows:

fin millions of Won)

2012 2011
Current

Accounts payable W T37R02 1,048 895
Accrued expenses (*1) R68.015 457071
1605817 1.505.966

Non-Current
Accounts payable 117,462 149,308
Accrued expenses 24950 20,067
142412 169375
W 1.748.229 1,675,341

(*1) During the year ended December 31, 2012, a fine of ¥ 117,629 million was imposed on POSCO
and POSCO Coated & Color Steel Co., Ltd. for price fixing galvanized steel sheets as a result of
Korea Fair Trade Commission’s mvestigation.

(b Other financial liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 201 lare as follows:

(in millions of Won)

2012 2011
Current

Dividends payable 7.487 5,822
Derivatives liabilities 34022 146,903
Fance lease babities 16,044 15,295
Financial guarantee liabilities 7.819 7,510
Withholding 205,556 129,694
321,828 305224

Non-Current
Dervatives labilitics 100,220 48,934
Finance lease habilities 32961 29.504
Financwul guarantee labilities 17,493 24,732
Long-term withholding 68,549 78,015
219223 181,185
W 541,051 486,400
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17. Provisions

(a} Provisions as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

(i millions of Won) 2012 2011
Current Noep-current Curre nt Neon-eurrenf
Proviston for bones payments W 42,904 - 47682 -
Provision for construction warrantics 23489 27227 19,656 3967
Provision for legal contingencies and claims (*1) - 30920 - 38,847
Others 11,438 41,051 2094 39520
W 71831 100088 69,432 109,343

{(*1) As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the amount includes provision of W 23,784 million and
W 38,847 million, respectively, for a potenfial claim in connection to the spin-off of the trading
division of Daewoo International Corporation i 2000 (note 35).  In addition, the amount includes
provision of W 7,126 million for obligation to payment guarantee related to borrowings incurred
in the process of disposal of Daewoo Cement (Shandong) Co., Ltd. during the year ended
December 31, 2012,

(b) The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period.

Key assumptions for the estimation

Provision for bonus payments Estimations based on financial performance
Provision for construction warranties Estimations based on historical warranty data
Provision for legal contingencies and claims Estimations based on the degree of probability of an unfavorable outcome

and the ability to make a sufficiently reliable estinate of the amount of loss

(¢) Changes in provisions for the vear ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

fin milfions nf Won) Beginning Incrense Litilization Reversal Others {“13 Ending

Provision for bomss payvinents W 47 /%2 343,062 {347.262) {523) 153} 42.504
fon for constriction warranties 3123 24,694 {05 {3470 144075} .716

font fon fegad contingencies and claims 38847 RAAG - {16163} {363y 3020
Oythaers 3oz 14.208 {34530 (L% 1687 23389
hid 7RIS 380808 {66706 {31 H58) (1347 i 77526

{*1} Inciude adjustments of foreign currency translation ditference and others.

{d) Changes in provisions for the vear ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

(i miiins of Wong Hegimning Fncrease Eitilization Reversaf Others (%13 Ending

Propisioe for howus paynends w 1788 WLAGD {20888 - -

Provismm {or consiruciion warrantes 49068 754 {11.6243 [BIRXES] (16211

Provision for Jegal contingencizs and clains 126.6026 - {15629 (52.350)

Others 2286 371 1ho2 (13 39238 41.623
W 215038 61687 (314500 {38207 (29.123) 178,773

(*1) Include adjustments of foreign currency franslation difference and transfer to non-current labality
held for sale (related to Daewoo Cement {Shandong) Co., Lid.}
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18. Employee Benefits
(a) Defined coniribution plans

The Company operates a defined contribution plan for participating employees.  Though the
Cornpany pays fixed contributions into a separate fund, employee benefits relating to employee
service in the future is based on the contributions to the funds and the investiment earnings on it
Plan assets are managed by a rustee within a fund separate from the Company’s assets.

The expense related to post-employment benefit plans under defined contribution plans for the vear
ended December 31, 2012 and 20171 was as follows:

(in millions of Won)
2012 2011

Expense related to post-employment benefit plans
under defined contribution plans W 16,520 8,874

(b} Defined benefit plans

The Company also operates a defined benefit pension plan for employees. The employees who
chose a defined benefit pension plan will receive a defined payment upon termination of their
employment if they fulfill the condition to qualify as a recipient. Before the termination of
employment, the Company recognizes the pension liability refated to defined benefit plans at the
end of the reporting period, and measures it at the present value of the defined benefit obligation
less the fair value of the plan assets. The Company uses the projected unit credit method in the
actuarial valuation of plan assets and the defined benefit obligation.

(¢} The amounts recognized in relation to defined benefit obligations in the statements of {inancial
position as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2011

Present value of funded obhligations W 1,394,675 1,158,329
Fair value of plan assets (1064711 (832,771
Present value of non-funded obligations 15,724 [ 4,609
Net defined benefit obligations W 345,685 340,467
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{d) The changes in present value of defined benefit obligations for the vears ended December 31, 2612
and 2011 are as follows;

{in millions of Won) 2612 2611

Defmed benefit obligation at the beginning of period Wy £ 173,238 1467853
Current service cost (1) 212,450 207,871
Interest cosis 51,351 67372
Actuarial losses 83.050 43,166
Busmess combinations 1,684 221
Benefits paid (116,846) (593.369)
Others 5472 {19,876)
Defined benefil obligation at the end of pericd W 1,410,309 1,173,238

(*1) This amount includes loss from a plan settlement in the amount of W 3,704 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011,

(e} The changes in fair value of plan assets for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as
foilows:

(in millions of Wown) 2012 2011

Fair value of plan assets at the begmming of period W 832,771 964,727
Expected return on plan assets 37,670 38,244
Actarial gains and losses 2,157 3,073
Contributions of participants {*1) 267420 190,909
Business combinations 906 354
Others {490) 14059
Benetits paid (75,723} (378,505)
Fam value of plan assets at the end of period W 1,064,711 832,771

(*1) The Company expects o make a contribution of W267.420 million to the defined benelit
plan assets in 2013,
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(£} The fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

{in millions of Won) 2012 2011

Equity instruments W 12,002 7,703

Debt instruments 147303 103,074

Deposits 743,884 538,260

Others 201,522 183,734
W 1,064,711 832,771

{(g) The amounts recognized in the statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2081
Current service costs W 212,450 207871
Interest costs 51,351 67,372
Expected retum on plan assets (*1) (37,670} (38,244}
W 226,131 236,999

(*1) The actual return on plan assets amounted to W 39,827 million and W 41,317 million for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The above expenses by function were as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2612 2011

Cost of sales W 165,675 177.020

Sefling and administrative expenses 60456 39,979
W 226,131 236,959

(h) Accumulated actuarial gains (losses). net of tax, recognized in other comprehensive income as of
and for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2011

Beginning W (182,702) (152,125)
Current actuarial losses {62,527} {30.,577)
Ending W (2452293 {182, 702)

[l
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(1) The principal actuarial assumptions as of December 31, 2012 and 201 tare as follows:

(% 2012 2011

Driscount rate {¥1) 3.29-4.46 3.86~5.42
Expected retum on plan assets (¥2) 3.29~5.10 2.00~5.29
Expected future mereases in salaries (%3} 1.64-6.72 1.403~7.35

{*1} Discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of our benefits obligations and that are
denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

(*2) The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is a weighted average of the expected
returns of the various categories of plan assets held.  The management’s assessment of the
expected returns is based on historical return trends and predictions of the market for the asset
over the life of the related obligation,

(*3) The expected future increases in salaries are based on the average salary increase rate for past
three-years.

All assumptions are reviewed at the end of the reporting period.  Additionally, the total estimated
defined benefit obligation includes actuarial assumptions associated with the long-term characteristics
of the defined benefit nlan.
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19. Other Liabilities

Other liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2612 2011
Other current labilities
Due to customers for contract work W 520,104 449 470
Advances recetved 1,280 865 973,427
Einearned revenue 46,963 36,935
Withholdings 162,073 114,941
Deterred revenue 235 362
Others (*1) 283474 224,496
2311654 1,799,631
Other long-term Babilities
Advances received 312.668 1,547
Unearned revenue 841 1,200
Others (F1) 64,305 81,756
377814 84,503
W 2,689,468 1,884,134

(*1) Includes other current liabilities amounting to W 274,490 million, W 204,653 million and other
long-term Habilities amounting to W 14,939 million and W 14,857million as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively, due to proportionate consofidation of joint ventures which are
owned by POSCO’s subsidiaries.
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28, Financial Enstruments
(ay Classification of financial instruments
1) Financial assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

{in niillions of Won)

2012 2011

Fmancmal assets at far value through profit or boss
Fmancial assets held for rading W - 50,861
Dertvatives assets held for trading 71,354 108,751
71,354 159612
Available-for-sale financial assets 3,914,521 4,608,597
Held-to-maturity investments 34,488 35574
Loans and receivables 19,787,951 19,902 456
W 23,808314 24,706,239

2) Financial liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2011

Fmancial habilities at fawr value through profit or loss
Derivatives liabilities held for trading W 185,142 165.837
Designated as financiai liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss - 333,004
185,142 528,841

Fmancial iabilities evaluated as amortized cost
Trade accounts pavable 4,301 787 4,397 662
Borrowings 24921433 26478713
Fmancial guarantee liabilities 25312 32242
Orthers 1,802,175 1,882,179
31,140,707 32,790,796
W 31,325,849 33 319,637
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2002 and 2011 were as follows:

December 31, 2012

fis ity of o)

Fisance income and costy

CGatn and boss

Cain and Joss

3} Finance income and costs by category of financial instrument for the years ended December 31,

Inevest au foreiyn oo fareign Lxuin anid Onhey
ineane 3 vidend CHIPERCY CHITRIRY foss en egmprehensive
{gasi) income  iransackions traastarions disposal Ciliers Total uss
£ 13 485,543 -
fal sxsets [JE J2A47% FEHGY f22R4T {R1ATEH
e s [etes 1324y [ -
2RRLET (IR 263 IR [EENI] [RREEI]
(3083504 [EERNEIES
(BT T 348 AR 455 B05 - {TREL 159953 -
amortized cos
W [5G 63 124 455 06210 193 (it [40.954 (3063 2104 93425 (814713
Ay -
2y December 31, 2011
i miHions of Won) Finance inconse and cogfs
Gatwand Toss  Galn and loss
inferest o foreign at ferelgn Gadn and iher
IBCOTE [¥videmd LUrTENey cHErrenty loss on comprehensive
ety o transactions transiations dispsal Oithers Tordal 1655
Ernancial 25 a fair walue " N
¥ % R
through profiy or foss
Availabie-for-sale fimmnoral assets PE3ERY
Held-e-mataridy anesinends - -
L and recebables (26 139 H5571 [CINREEH 143,180
) - - (3066643 1150963 1837627)
. {788,348) - {14065 (17867 (27556} tE274220) -
amoriized cost -
W STARAED L33 480 flh M)y (170,896} 450,018 (261473} (6762763 (12357585
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(b} Credit risk
1) Credit risk exposure

The carrving amount of financial assets represents the Company's maximum exposure (o credit
risk.  The maximun exposures to credit risk as of December 31, 2012 and 201 1is as follows:

{in millions of Wan) 2012 2611
Cash and cash equivalents W 4,680,526 4,508 682
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 71,354 159612
Available-for-sale fmancial assets 203,352 G9.400
Held-to-maturity investments 34488 353574
Loans and other recetvables 3,927 248 3670158
Trade accounts and notes receivable 11037973 11450515
Long-term trade accounts and notes receivable 142,204 183,061
W 20,097,145 20,197,042

The Company provided financial guarantees for the repavment of loans of associates and third
parties. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the maximum exposure o ¢redit rsk amounted to
W 4,496,666 million and W 4,542.734 million, respectively.

2} Impairment losses on financial assets

13 Allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

fin millions of Won) 2012 2011

Trade accounts and notes receivable W 379.536 303,186

Other accounts receivable 47,565 36453

Long-term loans 42,721 61,222

Other assets 5035 5,860
W 474,877 406,721
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2 Impairment losses on financial assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were
as follows:

{in milliony of Won) 2012 2011
Bad debt expenses on trade receivables W 79,258 92,197
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 224,171 152,804
Other bad debt expenses (*1) 44,115 11,155
Impamment of held to maturity financial assets - 379
Less: Reversal of allowance for doubtiul accounts - (57875}
Less: Impaiment of held to matwnty financial assets (793 (268)
i 347465 198,592

{(*1) Other bad debt expenses are mainly related to other receivables and long-term loans.

3 The aging schedule and the impaired losses of trade accounts and notes receivables as of

December 31, 2017 and 2011 were as follows:

(in millions of Won} 2012 26871
Trade accounts and Trade accounts and
nates receivable Impasrment notes receivable Empairment

Not due W 9106425 32063 6,154.045 8137
Over due less than 1 month 1,313,554 4,387 4 868,928 233
| month - 3 months 2R 429 3264 356622 1,506
3 months - {2 months 313,251 41,261 301875 37032
Over 12 months 447 954 278,531 355,862 236,278

ki 11,559,713 379,536 11,936,762 303,186

() Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 were as follows:

fin millions of Won) 2012 2011
Beginning W 406,721 357,063
Bad debt expenses 79258 92,197
{Reversal ofy other bad debt expenses 44115 (46,7201
Other {55,217y 4,181
Ending W 474,877 406,721
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{c} Ligquidity risk

1} Contractual maturities for non-derivative [inancial Habilities, including estimated interests, are

as follows:

Cartractual T venr T.ater than
i iifions af Wonp Baok value cash fow {73} Within | year - 8 veary 5 yeirs Fotal
Tosdernasive financial fabifies
W 23G1RT 4385004 2593
; 4502773
Qiher firarncial fabifites TRG2ITS JRG2ITS 42557 1365
Borrowings {2} 24521433 ITAGE 00 F1.680467 AT 27441006
kil A R 38203441 HIRGS0TT 4759082 28263441

(*1) For issued financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount of the guarantee is allocated
to the earliest period in which the guarantee could be called.
(*2} Includes cash flows of embedded derivative instruments in refation to exchangeabie bonds

{exchange night).
(*3) Includes estimated interest.

2) The maturity analysis of derivative financial Habilities is as follows:

(in millions of Won) Lyear Later than .
Within 1 yvear - 5 yeary 5 years Total
Derivative financial abilities
Currency forward i 38,129 3247 63376
Currency futures a7 - - 67
Currency swaps 94499 A5G 4,525 749,143
Others 17,227 25329 - 42,556
W 84 922 95,645 4,525 185,142
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{d} Currency risk

1y The Company has exposure to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The exposure to
currency risk as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in mitlions of Won) 2612 2011

Assets Liahilities Assels Linbilities
USD W 3933448 9,121,803 3,852,909 10,912,882
FUR 317,381 330481 275012 616,454
PY 239,569 2017179 236,046 2,353,794
Others 264299 65,679 130,753 136,294

2y As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, provided that functional currency against foreign currencies
other than functional currency hypothetically strengthens or weakens by 10%, the changes in
gain or loss during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

{in millions of Wonj 2012 2011

10% increase 0% decrease 10% mcrease 10% decrease
UsH W (318,745) 518,745 (705,997} 705,997
FUR (131 1,310 {33, 544) 33,544
JPY {177,761 177,761 (211,775) 211,775

{e} Interest rate risk

1) The carrying amount of interest-bearing financial instruments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011
are as follows:

{in millions of Won) 2012 2011
Fixed rate
Financial assets W 7325825 7086835
Financial labiiies {15,301,208) (24,169,245)
W {7.975383) {17.082,410}

Variable rate
Financial liabilities b {9,620225) (2642 472)
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2y Sensitivity analysis on the fair value of financial instruments with variable miterest rate

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, provided that other factors remain the same and the interest
rate of borrowings with floating rates increases or decreases by 1%, the changes in gain or loss
during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(i millions of Won) 2012 PR R
199 increase 1% decrease
W (96202 96,202

% mcrease 1% decrease
(2425 26,425

Variable rate fmanciz! nstroments

(I} Fair value

1} Fair value and book value

The carrying amount and the fair value of financial instruments as of December 31, 2012 and

201 1are as follows

tin millions of Wonj 2412 2011
Book vale Fair value Book value Fair value
Asgsets measured at fair value
Financial assets held for trading W - - 50261 30,861
Avatable-for-sale financial assets (*1) 3,346 606 3,344,606 4,359,202 4356202
Dertvatives assets held for trading £+2) 71,354 71,354 108,751 108,751
3420960 3,420,968 4,518 814 4518814
Assets measured amortized cost £¥3)
Cash and cash equivalents 4HR0.526 4680526 4,598,682 4,598 632
Trade accounts and notes recetvable FHIBOL7T T,1860,177 033576 11,633,576
Loans and other receivables 3927 H8 3927248 3,670,198 3670,198
Held-to-matury mvestments 34 488 34 458 35,574 15574
19,822.439 19,822 430 19.538 030 19,938,030
[ iabilities measured faw value
Dertvatives Babilities held for rading (%2) 185,142 185,142 195,837 195837
Convertible bonds - - 333,004 333004
185,142 185,142 528,841 528,841
Lzbiities measured amortized cost (¥3)
Trade accourds and notes payable 4.3G1,787 4301,787 4,357 662 4397662
Borrowmygs 244921433 25387344 IHATRTIA 2ETH3 230
Financial guarantee labigies 25312 2502 2242 32242
Crhers 1,862,175 I 802175 LRRZ 7Y LER2 TG
W 31,140,707 31,601,618 32,790,796 33,105,313

{*1) The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets publicly traded is measured at the closing
bid price quoted at the end of the reporting period. Meanwhile, the fair value of unquoted
available-for-sale financial assets is calculated using the valuation resuits from an external
pricing service in which weighted average borrowing rates of interest of evaluated companies
are used as a discount rate.

(*2) The fair value of derivatives is measured using valuation models such as Black-scholes model
and others in which the market vields on government bonds are used as a discount rate.
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{*3y The fair value of financial assets and Habilities measured at amortized cost 13 determined at the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market interest rate.
The fair value is calculated for the disclosures m the notes. On the other hand, the Company
has not pertormed fair value measurement for the financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortized cost except borrowings since the fair value 13 close to their carrying amounts.

2} Interest rates used for determining fair value

Inferest rafes used to discount esiimatad cash flows as of Pecember 31, 2012 and 2011 are as
follows;

2012 2612
Interest rate of borrowings (%) 1.47-7.22 L8O ~4.62

33 The fair value hierarchy

{13 The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in measurements.

Level 11 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or libilities.

Level 20 inputs, other than quoted prices, that are ohservable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on abservable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).

12y The fair values of financial instruments, by valuation method as of December 31, 2012 and
201 1are as {follows:

a. December 31, 2012

i mitlions of Wonj Level i level2 Leveld Total
Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets W 2,5940933 - 758,673 3,349 406
Dervatives assets held for trading - 71,354 - 71,354
W 2,504,033 71,354 758,673 3,420,964
Financial Liahilties
Drertvatives kabiities held for trading - 185147 - 185,142
W - 183,142 - 85,142
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b. December 31, 2011

(i mitlions of Won) Fevel | fevel2 Fevel 3 Total

Financmi Assets

Fiancial assets held for trading W - .861 . 50,861
Available-for-sale financial assets 31419961 - EACMEY] 4356.202
Drerivatives assets held for trading - 108,751 - {08,751

W 3419961 139612 939241 4518 814

Financial Labidities

Drerivatives Habifities held for trading k= - LG5,837 - 195,837
Convertible bonds 331084 - . 333004

W 333,004 165,837 - 528 841

(3 Changes in fair value of financial instruments measured by Level 3 for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2611 are as follows:

{in millions of Won) 106172 2011

Beginning W 939,241 805,160
Valuation (182,927) 157329
Acqusition and others (¥1) 36,729 98,242
Dsposal and others {*1) (28,370) {121,4960)
Ending W 758,673 939,241

{(*1) Included change in amounts due to change of fair value level.
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21, Share Capital and Contributed Surplus

{a) Share capital as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(share, Won) 2012 2011

Authorized shares W 200,000,000 200,000,000
Par vahkie 5,000 3000
Issued shares (*1) 87.186,835 87,186,835
Shared capital {*2) 482 403,125 600 482 403 125 000

{*1 As of December 31, 2012, total shares of ADRs of 52,204,944 are equivalent to 13,823,736 of
cormmaon siock.

(*2) As of December 31, 2012, the difference between the ending balance of common stock and the
par value of issued common stock is W46,469 million due to retirement of 9,293,790 treasury
stocks,

{b} The changes i issued common stock for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:.

fshare] A2 G
Nunter of Number af
Essued shares Treasury shares outstanding shares issued shares Treasury shares  ouwlstanding shares
Breginning BTASGRIAS £9.942 30Ty TT24 A4 §7. 184 855 CHELS3H5T) TIRIATS
Acquisiion of weasury shares - - - - (131.384) (131 3803
Prisposal of Geatury shayes - - - . 342855 42088
Erding 87186835 {9042 391 T34 454 BURE A 19542 391} T 244444

{c) Capital surplus as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2612 2011
Share premium W 463805 463 823
Gains on disposal of
treasury shares 763.867 763,867
Other capital surplus {(122.878%) {77240
W 1,104,814 1,150,452
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22, Reserves
{a) Reserves as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

{in millions of Won) 2412 2011

Accumulated comprehensive loss
of mvestments in associates ke {129,159} {16,186}
Changes i the wrealized fair value of

available-for-sale mvestiments H7.956 154,617
Currency translation differences {8,591) 283516
Others (18,356) {16521)

W {88,150) 405426

{by Changes in fair value of available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as
follows:

{in millions of Won) 2012 2011

Beginning balance W 134617 1,381,667
Changes in the uza.reelilized fair value of (189.664) (1.095.009)

avatlable-for-sale investments

Reclassification to profit or loss upon disposal (54.089) (252,102}
Impanment of available-for-sale securities 150,869 120,978
Others 6,223 (917}
Ending balance W 67956 154,617

23. Treasury Shares

Based on the Board of Director’s resclution, the Company holds treasury shares for the business
purposes including price stabilization. The changes in treasury shares for the vears ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(share, in millions of Won) 2012 2011

Number of shares Ameount Number of shares Ao unt
Beginning W G042 391 2,361,406 10,153,057 2,403,263
Acquisition of treasury shares - - 131,389 61.296
Bisposal of treasury shares . . {342,955) (73,153}
Ending W 0047 391 2,361,406 4042 391 2,391 406
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24. Sales

Details of the company sales for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

(in mitlions of Won) 2012 2011
Revenues
Goods sales W 55,123,774 59,915,941
Services sales 3488362 2.440.639
Construction sales 4660811 5,297 847
Rental ncome 32056 39,862
Others 298,048 1,244,391
W 63,604,151 68,938,725

25, Construction Contracts

{a) Construction contracts in progress as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

(in million of Won) 2612 2011

Ageregate amount of costs incurred W 8343117 14,711,524
Add: Recognized profits 650,555 1,36947%
Less: Recognized losses (213,055) (310,647)
Cumulative construction revenue 3,789.617 15,770,356
ess: Progress billing {7.691482) {14,638,181)
Foreign currency gains and losses {2,589 {1,966)
Others (130,941) (218.263)
W 964,605 011,946

{by Amount unbilled due from customers and due to customers for contract work as of December 31,

20172 and 2011 were as follows:

fin million of Won) 2012 2011
Unbilled due from customers for condract work W 1493709 1,361 416
Due 1o customers for confract work {529,104} (449470)

W 564,605 911,946
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{c} When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognized in prolit or loss in proportion (o the stage of completion of the contract.

The Company estimates the stage of completion of the confract based on the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs.

The estimated total contract costs are based on the nature and characteristics of an individual
contract, historical costs of similar projects, and current circumstances.  Only those contract costs
that reflect work performed are included in costs incurred to date.

The fotlowing are the key assumptions for the estimated total contract cost.

Key assumptions for the estimation

Material Estimations based on recent purchasing contracts, market price and quoted price
Estimations based on standard monthly and dally labor cost

Labor cost
Estimations based on the historical costs of similar projects, market price and quoted price

Outsourcing cost

The management continually reviews all estimates involved in such construction contracts and

adjusts them as necessary.
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26. Selling and Administrative Expenses
(a) Adminisirative expenses

Administrative expenses for vears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

fin millions of Won) 2012 2011
Wages and salarics W 604,682 606,819
Expenses related to defined benefit plan 61,261 60,271
Other employvee benefits 170,734 164.508
Travel 52,817 56,635
Depreciation 218.747 172,807
Communication 15,088 13,061
Electric power 11,305 7.529
Taxes and public dues 39,664 50,617
Rental 93268 65,55%
Repairs 11,769 14919
Entertainment 18,239 17,905
Advertising 55777 70,939
Research & development 192,321 212472
Service fees 264,439 286,635
Supplies 10,166 14,357
Vehicles maintenance 22442 21,491
Industry association Fee 11,487 10,200
Traming 17.772 24375
Conference 17,745 21,739
Warranty expense 13,148 12,606
Bad debt allowance 79,258 92197
Others 37,334 37412
W 2,129.463 2,035,053
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(b} Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the vears ended Pecember 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

{in millions of Won) 2012 2611
Freight W FAT2.817 1,406,268
Orperating expenses for distribution center 4,327 8,115
Sales commussions 74,308 85410
Sales advertising 4,575 1,204
Sales promotion 17,525 16,179
Samples 7489 7,321
Sales msurance premium 32,065 19915
Contract cost 52,176 62,986
Others 8,406 4,730
W 1,678,088 1,612,128

27. Research and Development Expenditures Recognized as Expense

Research and development expenditures recognized as expense for the vears ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 were as follows:

{in millions of Wonj 2012 2011

Selling and administrative expenses W 192 321 212472

Cost of sakes 385,128 380,177
ki 377449 592,649
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28, Adjusted Operating Profit

Adjusted operating profits which include the other profits or losses excluded in operating profit but
reflect the results of the Company’s operations for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were
as follows;

(in millions of Won) 2012 2011
COrperating profit on the statement of comprehensive meome W 3653108 W SART.694
Add
Gam on dsposals of property, plant and equipment 42790 13,812
Rental revenues 1.898 6,510
CGain on disposals of mtangble assets 96 933
Gain on disposals of mvestment in associies 39441 2,247
Gain on disposals of assets held for sake 193333 -
Grant income 3.198 1,228
Reversal of other bad debt alowance - 57.875
Reversal of other provisions 16,037 35620
Outsourcing neome 29136 42,136
CGain on disposals of wastes 38.597 11,348
Gain from claim compensation 31,613 68,853
Penalty income from early termination of contracts 15054 38,570
Others 36,617 27,780
448,120 306,941
Deduct
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment {65.486) {60,550}
Loss on disposals of mvestment property (3,197} (8,826)
Loss on disposals of assets held for sake (9510} -
Loss on disposals of investment m assocmies {15119 -
Idle tangible assets expenses {38,297} (16,381}
Impairment loss of assets held for sale (258451) -
Gther bad debt expenses {44,115 (11,1535}
Dionations {73,963 (66.558)
Loss on disposals of wastes (45480} {30,585}
Penalty and default losses (149437} (39551}
Tmpawment joss of property, plant and equipment and others {72,259 (99071}
Others (41,151} (33,356}
{809,465} (366,533
Adpusted operating profy kil 1901763 W 5408107
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29, Finance Income and Costs
Details of finance income and costs for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

{in millions of Wony 2012 2011

Finance income

Inferest hcome W 378807 216,234
Dividend mcome 124475 143 880
Gain on foreign currency transactions 935457 454,103
Gain on foreign currency translations 436,740 259014
Gain on transactions of derivatives 407,791 549 439
Gain on valuations of derivatives 94 492 111,637
Gam on disposals of available-for-sale investments 112,095 454,543
Others 7.206 1.569

W 2897 063 3,160419

Finance cosis

Interest expenses W {R71,457) {788,348)
Loss on foreign currency transaciions {839.241) {1,620.394)
Loss on foreign currency translations (243,091} (529.910)
L.oss on transactions of derivatives {309,067) {512.882)
Loss on valuations of derivatives {139 604) {188,742}
Impagzment loss on available-for-sale nvestments {224171) (152804}
Loss on disposals of available-for-sale mvestments {306,286} (1.003)
Loss on Financial guarantee (3R442) {1,606}
Others (76,279 (71,612}

W {2.797.638) (3,866,695}

104



Folio128

POSCO and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2012

30, Other Non-Operating Income and Expenses

Details of other non-operating income and expenses for the vears ended December 31, 2412 and
2011 were as follows:

(in millfons of Won) 2612 2611
Other non-operating income
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment W 42,290 131812
Rental revenues 1,898 6,510
Cam on disposals of ntangible assets 806 953
Gain on disposals of mvestment m assocmtes 36441 2247
Caar on disposals of assets held for sale 193333 -
Grant ncome 31608 1.228
Rewersal of other bad debt ellowance - 37875
Reversal of other provisions 16,037 35,629
Ouisourcing ncome 29,138 42 136
Gam on disposals of wastes 38,597 11,348
Gam from claim compensation 31,613 68,833
Penalty meome from early termmation of coniracts 15,054 38,370
Others 36,617 27,780
W 448,120 306,941

Other non-operating expense

Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment W {65486) {60,550
Loss on disposals of investment property (3,197 (8,826)
[Loss on disposals of assets held for sale (9,510} -
[oss on dispesals of mvestment n associafes {15,119 -
fdle tangible assets expenses {31,297 {16,881
Impairment oss of assets held for sale (258451 -
Other bad debt expenses (44,115) (11,i55)
Donations (73.963) (66,558)
Loss on disposals of wastes (454804 {30,385)
Penalty and default losses { 149437, {39351
Impaiment loss of property, plant and equipment and ott (72.25% {99.071)
Others (41,1513 {33,356
ki (809 465} {366,533}
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31. Expenses by Nature

Expenses that are recorded by nature for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as
follows;

{in millions of Won) 2012 2011
Changes i inventories W 14161271 17.546.701
Cost of merchandises sold 25997220 26,650,240
Employee benetits expenses (¥2) 2889829 2639966
Outsourced processing cost 8,896,642 8,331,110
Depreciation expenses (*1) 2,405,709 2,133,010
Amortization expenses 137,991 133,289
Electricity and water expenses 337,507 715265
Service fees 670,919 630,223
Research & development expenses 577449 592,649
Freight and custody expenses 1A472.8Y7 1 406,268
Commission pawud 74308 85410
Loss on disposal of property, plant, and equiprment 65486 60,550
Donations 73,963 66,558
Other expenses 2479337 2.846,326
W 60,760,508 63,837,565

(*1) Includes depreciation expense of investment properties,
(*2) The details of emplovee benefits expenses for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were
as follows:

(in millions of Won} 2012 2011
Wages and salaries W 2647178 2,394,093
Severance benefit 242,651 245873
W 2889 829 2,639,966
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32, Income Taxes

(a) Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

fin millions of Won} 2012 AN

Current mcome faxes kil 795601 1,009,246

Deferred income tax due to emporary differences 134324 (318,722
Less: Ttems recorded directly in equity 32,654 317,591

fncome tax expense W 082 837G 106K, 100

(&) The following table reconciles the expected amount of income tax expense based on statuiory rates
to the actual amount of taxes recorded by the Company for the nine-month period ended December

31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2011

Net neome before income (ax expense W 3,368,486 4,782,395

ncome tax expense computed al statutory rate 515174 1,157,340

Adjustments: 167705 (89.231)
Tax effects due to permanent differences 48,220 [13,798)
Tax credit (188,713} {193,633
Linrealized deferred tax assets F15.836 AR905
Tax rate change effect - 17,661
Over (under) provisfon from pricr years 1,776 (15,730
Difference m tax rate 165661 28,341
Others 24 985 19,032

Income tax expense W 982,879 1,068,109

Effective tax rate (%) 2918 22.33

{¢) The income taxes charged (credited) directly fo other comprehensive income
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

during the period

(in mitlions of Won) 2012 2611

Net changes i the unrealized fair value of avadlable-for-sale securities W 22585 36827

Gains on sale of treasury stock - {22078}

Others 10369 31.628
s 32,954 316377
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{d) The movements in deferred tax assets (liabilities) for the vears ended December 31, 2612 and

(e) Deferred tax assets and Habilities for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

()

2011 are as follows:

iin ons af Wes)

Dreferred coime ws dae o letpanry J2 oo i

Reserve for specisl repirs
ARweance for doutafug nec
Feserve for rechiviogy devehipsoens

Degrecintion

cobaed Bvshives

Pregusid expegses

BITRCHE 258 08 [

58 8y FERERT CHNT
Trefeaest henert &

Acoviad mooaie
Chleys

Lexiss. iqyding oon
Giibuse

Deferred van fom 1ax cre

Tax credit cacrviorward md oty
Defirred iy effect dne niareadoed gaiis Cassen) and ofaers

of Wang

Tead TEEIEI N, e 1y TRl
Restrve {0 specel regrmms

e fo divebafid accntmis

Raserve oy oclmoksn dessbnnis
Dreprecation
i poads or o

LR O LI BT

ot gversory wakanica
THA (3

Prepsy] expenses

Buprrnaens inss o property, Plant and coniencis

L om foredm cury
Defired bonedd abligs
Plan 5
Prowissn for consmn i bgses

[

15

Provision i constiug

A ppmpeialod retained cammgs for wechioion developuset
Aoyl meorae
ks

rread e

Lo { gk
Litrers

feahers

e g (i

i ek atfiors

Deductible and addible temporary difference amounting W 1,952,989 million and W

il

I3

Beginning ne 4113cc) Ending

Beinaing

Ine {hac)

Eading

H

50 A

124 A

184,621

RN ]

5 {ROR A
153,369 PRET)
050 PR

TR
RS

(312,594} 131543413 [ELx kAT

(3985

177.357

are as follows:

2412 1012
Assers Liabiliries Ney Assels Lisbilitics Net
o L2459
[l
a4
{1608
13,8345
A 230 0 RS ¢
14341y 43098
2224 . i
! - FEXH
t451) (165} {iA5}
3,197 8,534 L]
A6 L0T
pEEH
A4 L0
iidg
W i3

3,095,821

millicn related to subsidiaries and associates are not recognized as deferred tax asseis and
liabilities due to remote possibility of realization.
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33. Earnings per Share

(a) Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as
follows:

(Wan, excepi per share information) 2012 2011

Prof attribute to controlling interest ks 2462 0% 504484 3.648,136025.973

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding (413 77,244 444 T72518148
IETS 47224

Basic and difuted carnings per share

{*1) The weighted-average number of common shares used o calculate basic earnigs per share are
as follows:

(sharej 12 26114

Total number of common shares ssued ¥ 87,186,835 87186835
Wetghted-average number of ireasury shares {9,947 391} (9935017
Weighted-average number of commaon shares outstanding W 71244444 77251818
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34, Related Party Transactions

{a) Significant transactions with related companies for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

were as follows:

fin slfions of Wonj

Subsidiaries (%3}
PORCCY B&C Co., Lad
POSCOPES Co, Lid.
POSCO Coated & Color Steel Co. Lid,
POSCONCT Co, Lad.
POSCO Chentech Ca., Lad
POSCG CHCOL LTI
FOSCO TMC Co. Lid
FOSCO ART Co. Ll
Ersewos Imernatmnal Corp.
POSCO NET CGLU LT,
FOSCO Amenca Corporation
POSCOD Camada Co. Lad
POSCO Asia Co, L
POSCO-Tapan Co., Lid,
POSCO-ndin Dol Steei Processmg Centre Py, Lid
FOSCO-Mexin Co., Lad,
Daewoo Intermaitonal Singapore Fe, Lid
POSCO Maharashira Steel Py Lid
POSCG (Swhou) Automoiive Processing Center Co, Lid
POSCC-Thadend Bangkok Provessing Cemer Co.. Lid
Crhers

Aggocites
Posmate Co., Lud
SNNC Co Lad,
SUNG HN GEGTEC Co., Lid,
DONCG BANGMETAL IND.CGLTD.
POSCO SAS
LSS PORCO Induseries (UPD
FoschremeProprctaryy Lud
Chbess

Sales and others (71}

Yarchave and others (¥IF

Surhon Steel Processing Center Cou Lid

412 i It
ELA R 530 LASL 080 LERT 605
207051 [REIR)- 3 1383851 1406245
459,543 RELRI 5490 FRGY
347 1,337 408915 ST ER3
31617 413643 B RE] 755515
217 S5 19,355 JERS 1hins2
133235 toRI 1432 834
X7 AG3 )L N BT SEA7S
1806857 7 AR
1BO50% 4734
26450 ERARLI 733 i
- . 205125 FRGOAT
1,929,568 TEROTE 17313 IR0
1,439,580 §.628 065 28,7 34860
Ha4 433 [EEMERS 15 -
RRET2A) 347018 452 i
- . 13471 145029
135042 2340
128974 TR -
FEL N 5,288 153 63
4758 u54.145 986,190
ENIGE FARR.204 £,278480
22044 [REEH] 46,058 33357
2511 4,787 379054 47130
27697 44451 - -
89,0094 24748
20280 13974 - -
43 47504 Hil 24
58 - B8 T 125582
3TN0 9021 14311 L4087
05469 360613 Y7555 379,305
12906547 12701918 4395 563 (857,504

(*1) Sales and others include sales and other operating income which is composed largely of sales

of steel manulactures (o subsidiaries and associates.

and these are priced on an arm’s length basis.
(*2) Purchase and others include purchase of raw materials, property, plant and equipment,
overhead cost and other operating expense, which is composed largely of sales of steel

manufactures to subsidiaries and associates.

force and lerms that would be available to third parties.
(*3) The Company provides guaranices for its related party as of December 31, 2012 (Note 35},

Sales are mainly sales of steel products

Goaods are purchased based on the price lists in
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(b} The related account balances of significant transactions with related companies as of December

31,2012 and 2011 ave as follows:

i millions of Wonp

Subssbiies

POSCO E&C Cu, Lid

POSCC Processmed Service

POSCO Planec

POSCGICT Co, Lid,
FOSC Costed & Color SteeiCo Lid
cinpany Lid.
POSCO TRC OO LT,
POSEO AST o Lad
Praewecs atemmpins) Comp.

LT

Corparation

Asir Co, bad.

SCO-TBPC o, Lad

Oingdao Pobang Staiess Sweel Col Lid
POSCO-Vietnan Co., Lid,

POSCO-Tapam Co., Lad,

POSCO-India Dedhi Steel Procesimg Cenire Py Lid,
POSCO-Mexivo Uo., Lad,

{hhers

Assuctane
Posmate Co., Lid
SNNC Qo Lid,
DONG BANGMETAL INDOG LT
SEING N GEOTEC o L
Pesclirome Pry, Lol
ihers

(*1) Receivables include trade accounts and notes receivable and other receivables.
include frade accounis pavables and other payvables.

Recerables (%13

Pavables (4 1)

{(c) For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, details of compensation to key management

officers were as follows:
{in millions of Wonj
Short-term benefits

Retirement benefits
Fong-term benefits

24612 2038 2512 it
W 1O 47 33,630 I3E9TR
Ad.504 SRR 1635
267 o
87 3
108 363
655758
I3RE24
63545 32340 -
102,845 ITATG 2244
17986 27381
ALY 48.713
251 422 - -
3540 32302 673 L5A6
- 384 -
131668 PTEE0R - .
127626 81,3355 5817 83,261
P60 £ 245, 991 TTAA461 26573
7% - 6315 700
24 s EYRE] 30T
. PTG
$.844 4427
. 1273 -
453 - S04 Ry
SR 183 446537 M
¥ 12620 L7137 S2OO9% S87967
Payables
2012 2011
W 109,614 93231
25049 23407
22462 26,971
W 157,125 143609

Key management officers include directors (inchuding non-standing directors), executive officials and
fellow officials who have significant influence and responsibilities in the Company’s business and

operations.

In addition to the compensation described above, the Company provided stock

appreciation rights to its executive officers and recorded stock compensation expenses amounted to
¥ 430 million and reversal of stock compensation expenses amounted to W 4,223 million for the
vears ended Pecember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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35, Commitments and Contingencies
{ay Contingent Habilities

Contingent liabilities may develop in & way not initially expected. Therefore, management
continuously assesses contingent liabilities to determine whether an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of
future economic benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a comtingent
Hability, a provision is recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change in
probability occurs (except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be
made).

Management makes estimates and assumptions that affect disclosures of commitments and
contingencies. All estimates and assumptions are based on the evaluation of current
circumstances and appraisals with the supports of internal specialists or external consultants,

Management regularly analyzes current information about these maiters and provides provisions
for probable contingent losses inchuding the estimate of legal expense to resolve the matters.
Internal and external lawyers are used for these assessments. In making the decision regarding the
need for provisions, management considers the degree of probability of an unfavorable outcome
and the ability to make a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of loss.

112



POSCO and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2012

Folio120

(b} Details of guarantees
(i midlions of Wan)
Gugrantors

Guareniee beneficiary

Financial instiution

Foreign cutrency

Wirn equivalent

{The Comnpany]
POSCO

Dacwoo eermations] Corporstion

POSCO E&C Qo Lad

POSCOP&S Co.Lud
POSCOHICT Col brd

¥ Enerey Uo., Lid

Engmeersge O Lid

POSCO FAPAN Co, Lud

Draew o Textile Fergana LEC
POSCO F&ECICHINAY Co Lk

irerationat Business
Center {ovporation

Cuangdong Pohang Costed
SteeiCo. Lad,
POSCO Investiens Cou Lid)

POSCO Maharashiva Steel
Pvt, Lid
FOSCO VST Co., Lid

POSCO-Mexico Co. Lid

fuz Polang Stainbesg
Steed Co, Lad
POSCO ASEAN TST
Steel ndustry
FOSCO Bleatrival Steed
bha Prvate Lited
PTORRARKATAL POSCO

PT. B Ints Aermdo

Draewoo mernational
America Corp.

Daewoo [nernstional
Austratin Holdings Pry, Lid.

Drisewe o Paper Manotactring Co. Lid,

Drpevecsr Tentlle Bakhara
LEL

Dripeve e International
MENICO S A de OV

POSOC ABSAN TST S

Brazd Szo Pask Swetl

Processing Center Co.. Lid.
Draew oo Internationsl
Preuschiand Grabi
HOMNG KOWG POSCO F&C

HOHINAY vestiment Co, Lid

Tternationat Busiess Cemer
Corparation

POSCO F&C Vietnam Co. Lid.

SANTOS OMES. A

POSCO Canada Py, Lid
POSCO T Indonesis
VECTUS Lat

POSCOICT BRASHL
PARTICIFACORS L1134
TECHREN S RN

PO IHIC PN

POSCO-IERPC CoL Lad
POSCORIEPC Col Lad
POSCO-H0GPC o Lad
Nenesys e,
Eraew oo Texube Bukhara LLO
HEOMCG KOG POSCO Pl
(i Invesimeny o, Lad,
POSCO F&C Co, Lad,

CEL Tndusery

SMBC and others

BOC and others

HSBC

HSBC and ahers

Esport-lmport Bunk of
Korea and others

AN ZE Tapei and ahery

HERC and others

Frpert-immpor: Bastk of
Korea and others

Creditor

MHZEIHG and ol

SRAB and ahers
INET and others

fport-Tmpors Bank of

Karea and others
Enport-topors Bank of Korea
Shinhan Bank

Korea Exchange Bank

HSBC
Expert-Fnpor Bank of
Kaorea

SAEC

NG aud others
SMBC

Shirdia Bask
Woor Bank

Esport-Traport Busk of
Korea and others

ANZ

Fookmm Bank (Hong Kong

Cxpert-bmport Bank of
Korea and others

CETE Beuador

KEB Panama

Hanz Bank

FOSCO havestemt Co. Lid,
POSEO lavesumens Co, Lad

Rorez Exchange Bank

W Bk

wohange Bask
»

Wores Exchange Bank

Horen B

W oort Bank

wiho Bank and others

Hipo hank and others
R ivor bank and others
Agora Bunk

NBLE
Waoori Barrk (B

Eupwat-topost Bank of
Horea and obers

LIST

LIS

LiSED

LISy
LISTY

Lisis

LIS

[RRN]

FAZ 600000

IEOELOOG
AU
200068
SO

5 GRS
244 FIE
2R} RS

I FGR T2
(RS

185392 500

B4 (L0

2 HEION.0G0

FELOOOL00
RGeS

12008003

P35O 00
24850060

23 G600

RUOATRR A
QOO

REULIRCES
3 OKLOGE
230000

HOOE0
S 000000
16500 400

RECTIRELH

IERKLGIEET
12A4R4.500
T SGUO0
ALK HRY
BETIH0

ORI
GHIZETG
HITH AT
IRARLD
3 £330
A SGGO00
FHRTS0.000
A5 OO0
3286250
33000000

20,000,600

i3L31T

HLESE
33052
74883
406241

O9H2E
26212E
AL eiins

484007

7370

i

30972

1296352

20,351
536

12853

13388
36714

78

23421

21422

EA e

14,731
2350
F7673

3213
6,778
13372
1607
4284
4652

EESRE)
T
4n34
3369

£y

R
14814
108
35240
35346

21422
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th millinns of Won)
LB Enters

Cuarantee beneficiary

Fingnelal nsthution

Horeboa currency

W equivalent

[Associnies]
POSCO

Daewoo Internations)

Corporatian

POSCCE&C T L

POSCO PES Co L1d

POSCO T Qo Lid,

FRC0 Engmeering Co. Lid.

Trgewes Uzt Co.L rd.
FOSCE CHEMTECH Co. Lad

{(ihers]

Dacwoo Invermation:

Componation

POSCO &0 Co. L1d
POSCE Plant Eng

ety Co, Lad

POSCOCT Co Lad,

POSCG WTECH (o bed
Prsco Engineering Co., Lid

POSCALCTUM Company, L1d

(¢} POSCO E

B3 STERL POSCO Cold Rolled
Sheet Co., L4d.
Linired Spirat Pipe,
POSUIE THantm

DMSA L AMSA

TRAEAL KOS T

Toegisza Wind Power O
Pl Co bad
THEGALEINY

THENTS

B it ihes

e Valley PPV Corporstion

R o g

Uiframs LRT Co., bad

CHUNGIL ENTERPRISE T Y
DEVELOFMENT Co. Lid,

Traewar gitveering THAILANIN
o Lid. and others

T Wampn Heorle Power

shanghal Lansheng

CHEMTRCH CHOSUN REF

Arrdrarovy Project
Trvestments Lingied
Shenid ntemationat
Coerporatikm
ALD PEV and others
Cyeongpo wind power peneration and others
O CALTEX MO and others
BTLY

s and silvers

NI L

Rumrma Sk
Ehyuriday
Poliang iy

ar O, L and oilers
oy Lk

BOC and others

Shinhan B
Shinfan Bank
Expost-brpont Bank of

Korea and nibiers
Fapoa-dmpont Bank of

Kires and o
M Bank and oibers
Phasza Bank
oot Bank

Shiifien Benk and otbers

Fuknoka Bank

Crnstruction Goarantee Coopersive
NH Bank

Cithank Karea In

P Bunk Woorl ndonesia

Expart-itiport Bank af
Kores sird SMBC

China Comsrraciian Bank

Korea Exchange Hank

Erpisri-bmpo st Bank of

Kores and others
Erpost-hopost Bask of

Kaoved and others
Kaorea Bxchange Bank and oihers
KB Bank and athers
Korea b pe Bank
Fvobo Life Insurance

and athiers

aTE

marantes Insurgaee Ca, Lk
Hang Bank snd ofhers
Flancit(
Seoul Grarantes Msuance (o Lad,

Engrineery

[R5 119G
LISTy !
LIS
LisD
LISDy
Li813 £ 9SO IRKT
BLRW
KRW
STy e
985 155,608
Y RERNEEELL
KRW 4,638
KEWw 253
[ ) 19,303,008 20672
A48 A
A4 3577 () #3 5T
Y [ER) 33000 IERE:
LS[ Rt G217
LD KRR
LISE 0,207 65 G649
KRW
HRW
LISE
REW
KERW TR0
KEW 3
KRW 04760
KRw i %
EW kL)
Ry 0 A00.000 EERE
FLR 5.0085.000 R3]
a1 LW 1652
g
itk
ERW REEER A
hYR 40,000 000 53,052
LESED IORIASRAZ0 4300 654

» Co., Ltd. has provided the completion guarantees for Samsung C&T Cormporation

amounting o W2,024.503 million while Samsung C&T Corporation and SK E&C have
provided the construction guarantees or pavinent guarantees on customers’ borrowings on behalf
of POSCO E&C Co., Lid. amounting to W 1,276,581 million as of December 31, 2012,
POSCO E&C Co., Ltd. provides payment guarantees on borrowings of customers such as Asset
Backed Commercial Paper amounted to W 518,178 million and Project Financing loan
amounted to W 280,536 million as of December 31, 2012,
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{dy Conumnitments

POSCO

POSCO E&C Co., Ll

POSCOICT Co, Lid.

POSCO Specialty Steel
Co., Led.

POSCO entered into long-term confracts (o purchase iron ore, coal, nicke! and others, These
confracts generally have ferms of more than three vears and provide for pericdic price
adjustments to the market price. As of December 31,2082, 217 miflion tons of won ore and 27
milion tons of coal remained to be purchased under such long-term contracts.

POSCCO entered inte an agreement with Tanggoh Liguefied Natural Gas (ENGY Consortium in
fndonesia to purchase 5350 thousand tons of LNG annually for 20 vears commencing in August
2005, Purchase price 5 subject o change, following the change of the monthly stendard off
price (JOCO) and also price ceiling & applicable.

As of December 31, 2012, POSCO entered fmo commimments with Korea Natonal O
Corporation for long-term foreign currency borrowings, which are fimited up to the amount of
USD 486 million, USD 3.54 milion and USD 4.12 milon, respectively. The borrowings are
refated o the exploration of gas hydrates in Aral Sea, Uizbekistan, the exploradon of gas
hydrates in Namangan-Chust and the exploration of gas hydrates in Western Fergana-
Chenavard, respectively. The repayment of the borrowings depends on the success of the
projects. POSCO s not liable for the repayment of il or part of the money borrowed if the
respective project fails. POSCQO has agreed to pay a certain porton of its profits under certain
conditions, as defined by the borrowing agreements.

POSCO E&C Co., Ltd. has bank overdraft agreements of up to ¥ 20000 millon with Woori
Bank which is included i the it of comprehensive loan agreements and W 3,000 milion with
Korea Exchange Bank., Also POSCO E&C Co., Lid. has comprehensive loan agreements of
up to W 360000 milion and USD 308 milion with Woorl Bank and W 83,000 milion with
Kores Exchange Bank.

As of December 31, 2012, in relation (o contract enforcement, POSCO ICT Co., Lud. was
provided with W 123999 miflion and W 48651 million guarantics from Seoul Guarantee
Insurance and Korea Seftware Fmancial Cooperative, respectively.

As of December 310 2012, in relation to transfer of military camp based on Changwon city &
fand development projects, POSCO ICT Co., Lid. provided Kyongnam Bank and other banks
with W 520,000 million fund support under fund support agreements hetween POSCO ICT
Co., Ltd. and Unicity Tth LLC.

As of December 31, 2012, in relation w Incheongimpe Highway investment projects, POSCO
ICT Co, Lid. provided Korea Development Bank and other banks with W 175,000 million fund
support under fund support agreements between POSCO ICT Co, Lud and incheongimpo
Highway INC.

As of December 31, 2012, m relation to Busan sansung tunnel projects, POSCO ICT Co., Lud
provided Korea Development Bank and other banks with W 17600 million fund support under
fund support agreemments between POSCO ICT Co., Lid. and Busan Sansung Tusnel Co., Lud

POSCO Speciaky Steel Co., Lid. has a loan agreement, secured by trade accounts receivable,
of up to W 1,081,447 million with Woori Bank and others. POSCO Specialty Steel Co., Ltd.
has used W 133,489 mitlion of this loan agreement.

POSCO Speciaity Steel Co., Lid. has agreements with Woort Bank and nine other banks for
opening letters of credit of up to USD 313 million, and for a loan of up to ¥Wi20,975 million.
POSCO Speciaity Steel Co., Lid has used USD 202 million, EUR 666 thousand for opening
fetters of credit and W 7.043 million for Korean Won lpans.
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(e} Littgation in progress

As of December 2012, the Company and certain subsidiaries are defendants in legal actions
arising {rom the normal course of business.  Details of amount claimed are as follows:

i wafliues of Won, in thousand of foreign currencies)

Karean Wes
Coammpany Eegal actions € Iadin samanupt ¢ guivate i Eresripiion

PORCO I Py A EOM £

Lawsil oy clim for derneses 1

”

14 ERW SEARZ 82 Lawsuf op chibs for dasages
POSCO E&C Co Lad. F KRW FLORY FLOE3 Lawsu om chim for paymenm
POSIG Pl meermg Co., Lid 9 KRW 2374 L3740 Lawsod on clim for pavment
POSCOGICT Ca, Lad 12 KRW (SR h A018  Lawsuil on < laim for paymea
POSCO ALS Co, Lid 1 KR 57 T2 Imposed bigh fax rale
POSCO NETECH Qo Ll H KRW Tt i
POSCO America Comporation 3 LisEy - -
POSO BE&C Ching Uo., Lid { CNY E¥isaH 66 Lawsut on chim for paviment of wink complied.
sefated wil the subconracior and second subeomtractor,
POSCO-Malysia SEN. BHD. I MYR 3742 24023
POGSCO Enginecring Co., Lid A KRW 1462 1662 Lawsult on clim for denmges
Kowang Yang SEFC Co. Ll 1 KEW 55493 S6U3 Lawsug on ol for pavment
Dacweo Internationz | Corporation M FLiR 3164 TIHE Lawsud on cldm B damkees 0
t IR HASE B4y ATAGRT
3 Lsh 1GR3 W T8

(*1) Civil lawsuits with Nippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Corporation

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Nippon Steel & Swmitomo Metal Corperation had
filed civil lawsuits against POSCO and POSCO Japan Co., Lid., a subsidiary of POSCO,
relating to claims of prohibiting production and sales of grain oriented electrical steel sheets
used improper acquiring trade secrets and of seeking compensation worth W 1,230 billion in
Tokyo District Court, Japan.  Through first and second trials in October and December 2012,
the Company submitted its answer fo claim that Japan court didn’t have a jurisdiction on this
lawsuit as it should be judged by Korean law and the Company developed a grain oriented
electrical steel sheets by the Company’s own technologies.  As of December 31, 2012, Japan
couwrt hasn’t made any judgment.

In addition, Nippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Corporation had fifed civil fawsuits against
FOSCO and POSCO America Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of POSCO, relating to claims of
infringement of intellectual property rights related to production of grain oriented electrical steel
sheets in New Jersey federal court, the United States.  As of December 31, 2012, the Company
is under discovery proceeding prior to the official defend.

Due to the early stage of the litigations, the Company is not abie (o reliably estimate the amount
of compensation, if any, that might be awarded to Nippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Corporation.
Consequently, it is not possible for the Company to make an estimate of the expected financial
effect that will result from the ultimate resolution of the civil lawsuits.  The Company has not
recorded any provision for those lawsnits as of December 31, 2012 because management
believes the possibility of unfavorable outcome is not probable.  In the opinion of management,
the foregoing lawsuits and claims will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position, operating results or cash flows,
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(*23 In May 2002, Industrial Development Bank of India Limited, the creditor of Daewoo Moters
Fndia Lid, for which Daewoo Co., Ltd, provided guarantese, filed lawsuits against Dacwoo Moters
India Ltd., Daewoo Co., Ltd. Paewoo Engineering & Construction Co.. Lid, and Daewoo
International Comoration (a subsidiary of POSCO} seeking for the disposition of assets and
judgment of debt of Daewoo Moters India Ltd. in India Delhi Mumbai Court.  The Company has
reasonably estimated the fikelihood and amount of the outcome and reflected in the provision for
logs contingencies.

The Company believes that although the outcome of these matiers is uncertain, the impacts of these
malters are not expecied o be material to the Company’s financial statements,

{ey Other contingencies

Gemypany

Preseription

PR

POSCOESC Col bid

Bl eetdr Fracrmmtivnal raporation

POSCO R Co L3d

Frgineering Co. Lol

FORCO-IPC Co, Lad,

Dhaewon orrationsd Tap

s bhank ol wd 5% oTBOTES, A
and outstanding

3R 2012, POSCE B&EC © i pronided 1en Dlank pr
mree o Lid and other (nanc

coflaterat for

armepmiig W61 303 withor, w Kores Howsing

As of Becerber 31, 2017 Dacwos iz o b ‘ K oy medes and thirteen blenk checks to Korea Nationa!

wial sainitens as collaseral for

Az of Decersber 71,  Erineeriy Co. bid hes peovided oue sote o Mans Tank Tormmal Coo Lid & collaiest for the paaaniee on

pesformanee for contrac

hers,

As of Drecember 3 2002, POSCOBKPE Co, Lid bas provided o tundred fves noies as collzieral for borvowings, (1PY TI7THITTEY 45% of
vt Higo bk, Bad )

bormewings from the Kinsloushu Bank, Led | 30% of borro

Aw of December 21 2002 Deewno memational Fapan pravided one Nondred: ffieen notes recenabie (JPY 363771 819 fo Resana bank Lad

ax collztersl for bans from banks,
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36. Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Adjustments for operating cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2011
Trade accounts and notes receivable W 878% (2402, 346)
Other financial assets {392,090} (187,607)
Inventories 1,450,431 (2,538,178)
Other current assets (198,157) (310,397)
Oxher long-term assets ({141,037 47929
Trade accounts payable 225086 265993
Oxher financial labilides 357502 260306
Oxher current abilites 583,159 34,93
P rovisions 17,108 (36511)
Payment severance benefits (116,846) (574,759}
Plan assets (191,696) 252671
Other long-term liabilites 252068 (12,791)
W 1,933 358 {4,850,747)

37. Non-cash Transactions

Significant non-cash transactions for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

{in millions of Wonj 2012 2011

Ceanstruction-m-progress transferred to other accounis W 1273475 3235317

Other non-current assel (rapsferred to vestiments n associates 25T RTIR -
315536 76677

Convertible bhonds
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38, Business Combinations

The Company has acquired additional shares in POSCO-Thainox Public Company Limited from its
previous largest shareholder on September 23, 2011 in order to expand its footpring in the cold-
rolled stainless steel sheets and coils market in Southeast Asia and to achieve ifs synergy effects
with its existing operations in the region. The Company obtained control of POSCO-Thainox
Public Company Limited. since its voting interest increased from 15.39% to 75.32%. There is no
contingent consideration.  The resulis of operations of POSCO-Thainox Public Company Limited
have been consolidated from the date of acquisition. Therefore, comparability with POSCO’s
consolidated financial statements for prior vears is impacted accordingly the amounts of revenues
and net profit of POSCO-Thainox Public Company Limited since the acquisition date included m
consolidated revenues and net profu amounted to W 92,798 million and W 11,658 miliion,
respectively.  Goodwill recognized in this business combination is as {ollows:

(in millions of Won) Amount

1. Consideration transferred

Fair valse of investment held before acquisition (¥1) W 99,387
Cash 390474
Total 489.856
II. Non-controlling mterests {¥2) 121413
Total 611,269

HI. Acquired identifiable assets and liabiitics

[Assets)
Cash and cash equivalents 62,080
Trade accounts and notes receivable and other fimancial assets 102,464
Inventories 149901
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 340,487
Other assefs 20,129
Total 675,061
{Liabilities]
Trade accounts and notes payable and other financial liabilities 147382
Borrowngs 11,803
Other habilities 23,867
Total 183,052
Total acquired net assets 492 009
IV. Goodwili recognized W 119,260
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(*1) Upon acquisition of the business, a W 57,080 million re-measurement gain on the
Company’s existing investment in the acquiree prior to acquisition date (acquisition cost:
W 42,302 million) was recognized as finance income. The fair value of this existing
investment was determined using quoted market price of the shares on acquisition date.

{*2) The non-controlling interests at the acquisition date were measured using their proportionate
share in the recognized amounts of POSCO-Thainox Public Company Limited’s identifiable
net assets

After obtaining control, Company acquired additional 19.61% of shares amounting to W 126,927
million through tender offer. In results, the percentage of shares increased from 75.32% to
94.93% as of December 31, 2011. Cairying value of POSCO-Thainox Public Company’s net
assets is W 667,571 million. Regarding this fransaction, non-controlling interests decreased by
W 95,885 million and related differential amounts amounting to W 31,043 million was deducted
from consolidated capital surplus since it is equity transaction between consolidated entities.

Pro-forma Information

The following summarized pro forma consolidated statement of comprehensive income
information assumes that the POSCO-Thainox Public Company Limited acquisition occurred as of
Tanuary [, 2011. The pro forma results reflect certain adjustments related to the acquisition, such as
increased depreciation and amortization expense on assets acquired from POSCO-Thainox Public
Company Limited resulting from the fair valuation of assets acquired in place on acquisition date,
September 23, 2011, The pro forma results do not include any anticipated cost synergies or other
effects of the planned integration of POSCO-Thainox Public Company Limited.

it the Company had acquired POSCO-Thainox Public Company Limited as of January 1, 2011,
pro-forma consolidated revenues and pro-forma consolidated net profit for the year ended
December 31, 2011 would have been W 69,243.204 million and W 3726225 million,
respectively.
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39, Operating Segments

(a) Our operating businesses are organized based on the nature of markets and customers. We have
four reportable operating segments— steel, construction, trading and others. The steel segment
includes production of steel products and revenue of such products. The engineering and
construction segment includes planning, designing and construction of industrial plants, civil
engineering projects and commercial and residential buildings, both in Korea and overseas. The
trading segment consists of exporting and importing a wide range of steel products and raw
materials that are both obtained from and supplied to POSCO, as well as between other suppliers
and purchasers in Korea and overseas.  Other segments include power generation, liquefied natural
gas production, network and system integration and logistics.

(b} Segment profit and loss is determined the same way that consolidated net after tax profit for the
period is determined under IFRS without any adjustment for corporate allocations.. The accounting
policies used by each segment are consistent with the accounting policies used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. Segment assets and Habilities are measured based on total
assels and liabilities in accordance with IFRS without any adiustment for corporate allocations.
Also, segment assets and liabilities are based on the separate financial statements of the entities
instead of on consolidated basis.  In addition, there are varying levels of fransactions amongst the
reportable segments.  These transactions include sales of property, plant and assets, and rendering
of construction service and so on.  Inter-segment transactions are accounted for on an arm’s length
hasts,

(¢} Information about repostable segments for the vear ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:

1y For the year ended December 31, 2012
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2} For the vear ended December 31, 2011

Sivcd {rniding Comsmaction Lhers

Texal

91 6] BRSO 3400

liabilit s 2316591 3554007 AR

(d) Reconciliations of total segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities, and other significant

items to their respective consolidated financial statement line items are as follows:

1}y Revenues

(in millions of Won) 2612 2011

Total revenue forreportable segments W 96,589,238 99,046,240
Elimination of mter-segment revenue {32,985,087) (30,107515)

W 63,604,151 68,938,725

2y Profi

{inmillions of Won} 2012 2011

Total profit for reportable segments W 3,218,130 4,194,654
Goodwill and PP&E FV adjustments {38,456) (39,485
Elimmnation of inter-segment profits {774,047y {440,87%)
Income tax expense 982,880 1,068,100
Profit before income taxexpense W 3368486 4,782,395

3y Assets

(i millions of Won) 2012 2011

Total assets forreporiable segments W 99328277 5509938

Equity-accounted investees {15,365 984) {13.393184)

Goodvall and PPEE FV adiustments 3657016 4 357,046

Elimination of nter-segment assets {8,349 458 {8.064.562)
ki 76,265,851 78,408,838
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{(e) Revenue by geographic area for years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Wonj 2612 2001

Domestic ki 47,602,025 53,986,976
Japan 23806518 2,386,578
China 6022875 60070, 588
Asia 3,157,469 2645428
North America 1,792,706 1,281,506
Others 2 558,425 25672949
Total i 63,604,151 G5 438 725

in presenting information on the basis of geography. segment revenue is based on the geographical
focation of customers.

(I} Non-current assets by geographic area as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as foliows:

(i millions of Womn) iz PALE D]

Dresiic W 31213290 29 386,052
Japan 236,532 320009
China 1,745,076 1,474,983
Asia 162,715 1,752,302
Norih America 125,306 16,702
Others 1,957,112 1,181,597
Total W 38,459,931 34,2725 645

Non-current assets by geographic area include investmenti preperty, property, plant and equipment,
goadwill and other intangible assets.

{g) There are no customers whose revenue is 10% or more of total conschidated revenues.



Folio108



Folio107

Separate Financial Statemenis
December 31, 2012

{(With independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)



Folio106

Table of Contents

Page
Independent Audifors’ BEeDOrT ... I
Sepavate Finnucizl Statements
Separate Statements of Financial POSIION ..
Separate Statements of Comprehengive IRCOME 5
Separate Statements of Changes 10 FQUILY oo 4
Separate Statements oF Cash FIOWS o 7
Motes (o the Separate Financial SEAISIMENIS i 9
Independent Auditors’ Review Report on Internal Accounting Control Systemy ... 76

Report on the Operations of Internal Accounting Control System . 78



Folio105

Independent Auditors’ Report

Based on a report ortgimally issued in Korsan

The Board of Direcfors and Stockholders
POSCO!

We have audited the accompanying separste statements of financial position of POSCO (the
“Company’) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the related separate smatements of comprehensive
meome, changes i equity and cash flows for the vears then ended.  Management is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of these separate financial statements i accordance with Korean
international Financial Reporting Standards.  Our responsibility 18 (o express an opinion on these
separate financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the Republic of
Korea. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the separate financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes
examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the separate financial
statements.  An audit also mcludes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
mmade by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement preseatation. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opimion.

In our opinion, the separate financial statements referred o above nresent foirly, in all matenal

=cts, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2012 and 2611 and its financial

resy

performance and its cash flows for the vears then ended, in conformity with Korean Wiermational
Financial Reporting Standards.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attenfion to the following:

The procedures and practices uiilized m the Republic of Koren 1o audit such separate Onancial
statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other countries.  Accordingly,
this report and the accompanying separate {inancial statements are for use by those knowledgeable
about Korean auditing standards and their application in practice,
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Seoul, Korea
February xx, 2013

| This report is effective as of February xx, 2013, the audit veport date.  Certain subsequent events or i
cirenmstances, which may occur between the audit report date and the time of reading this report, |
could have a material impact on the accompanying separate financial statements and notes thercto. f
Accordingly, the readers of the audit report should understand that the above audit report has not been 3

| updated to reflect the impact of such subsequent events or circumstances, if anyv. ]




Folio103



POSCO

Separate Statements of Financial Posilion

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011

Folio102

(i miflions of Won)

& gaets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade accounts and notes recelvable, nat
Cxher recetvables

Crher shor-temn financlal assels
Iveniories

Assets held for sale

Crher cupvent assets

Total current assels

Long-term trade accounts and notes receivable, net
Oiher recefvables

Other long-term firancial agsets

Invesments in subsidiaries avd associates
Investment property, net

Property, plard and equipment, net

Trtangible assets, net

Crher lorg-term assess

Total non-euyrent asseis

Fotal asests

See qccompanying notes to the separate financial statements.

Hates Deeember 31, 2012 Docsmbar 31, 2011
519 b 1,752,560 i, 137,887
41933 ABTO0 470,747
71923 B VIS R ALY
AYAY B3 1050834
g EAGAL 7144 7T

iz - 14,687

7 A7 587 723612
288471 139247595

51933 274 24
719,33 58,732 57937
71933 2970033 5775121
Y 4,100,053 12824776

3 110,526 117418
12 22165735 21533135
i3 2975841 222896

& 10771 2774

32 710565 38801081

N 523 435 52 127876

-
%
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(in millions of W)

Hotes Deeember 31, 2012 Deceomber 31, 2011
L iahilities
Trade accoumes payable 1933 978,581 [,395.844
Short-rerm borrow ngs & 1415 PARTAC S 2,794 380
Orbher payables 15,1923 LR3I LOS5510
Cither shoreterm financlal Tabiives 15,1933 33543 i3788
Curent Incomne tax fabilides 1 54355 182715
Provisions & 473 4451
Crer current abifides 18 7845 48455
Total surrent Habilitiss 4547517 SO15 145
Long-term borrowings 7141 7487 254 338016
Crher pavables 15,19 382 6469
Crher long-tenm financial fabilides 1519 88,130 K810
Deflned benefit iabilides 17 0255 176,648
Deferred tax labilides 31 772,312 448,552
Crher long-rerm liabliides 18 3842 4H0}
Total pot-cugrent HabHities 8512376 10114715
Tatal isbilities 13155888 5129840
Shareholdery equlty

Share capital .8 482403 487403
Caplead surplus % 1,227,692 1227657
Accumdated other comprehersive come Z21 3362 154,707
Treasury shares 2 (2,391,406) {2,391,906)
Retained earings 73 39842 457 381228620
Total shareholders' squity 33164548 I7ERRO16
Total Hebiiities and shareholders’ onuity W 52,3204 52727875

See gecompanying notes o the separate financial statemenis.

__«;
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FOSCO

Separate Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
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(in millions of Worn, except per share information)

Bevenue
Cost of sales

Gress profit

Seling and administrative expenses
Adminstrative expenses

Selfing expenses
Cperating profic

Finance meome anxd costs
Finance mcome
Finance costs

Crber non-operating ncome and expenses
Other non-operating neome
CGther non-operating expensas

Profit before ncome fax

Income fax expense

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income
Net changes i the wnrealized far value of
available-for-sale investmenis, net of tax
Defined beaetit phan actuarial losses, net of tax

Total compre hensive income, pet of tax

Basie and difuted esrnings per share

Wetes G612 81t
453 W 35664933 39171703
26,3033 (31041500 (33077807
4 /23033 7093 896
FQ25 2630 {X53 G08} (846,330
352630 (979,578) (G718
27 1786 597 4330382
19,28 1,336,539 1,240,359
18,24 {759,291) {1.370.668)
272933 68,737 45640
1627203033 {33436G1) (179,093
3172272818 4063720
3t {622,758} (876,875}
2.4599.523 3,188,845
21 {153.34%) (922,331)
17 (435824) (2,145)
W 2,300,354 3.264369
3z W 32356 41,279

See aocompanying noies (o the separate financial statemienis.
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Separate Statements of Cash Flows

For the vears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Folio97

(i nrflions of W) Motey

December 31, 2012

Brecember 33, 2811

Cash flows from eperating actvities

Frofit for the perind

Adiustments for:
oty for defined benefli plans
Depreciation
ATnortizanion
Fmans income
Finance cosis
Gam on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss an disposal ofproperty, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of vestents in subsidiaries and associates
Income tax expense
Otherg, net

it
iy

Changzes mooperating assets and habiities

Interest received
[nterest paid

Dividends received

Income taxwes paid
Met eash provided by operating setivities

Cash flows from investing activities 36
Procesds from disposal of short-term financial mstruments
Proceeds Gomdisposal ol available-for-sale mvestinenis
Collection of long-term bang
Procesds from disposal of nvestment in subsidisnies and associates
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipmen
Proceeds from disposal of agsets held for sale
Acauisition of shovt-tonm fnancial investimenis
Acquisition of available-tor-sale mvestments
Issuance ot long-tenm Joans

Acguisition of mvestment i subsidiaries and agso

Acguwisition of property, plant and equipment
Acauiziton of nangible asgets

Crilrers

Met cash used i mvesung activities

See accompanying notes fo the separare financial statements.

W 2459 523

L7 1y

FAARGT

HIIRG

3,188,845

P25 600G
1738466
7
(743,797}

L]

1 470,440 {1,958 3610
F11,309 122,212
(443,470 {378,497
175,556 267310
(310,907 (937599
ki 3670885 3,186,450
3182714 5108712
501,185 392,619
14,760
22125
}.549
(3.731.276)
: (345389
(12,687 (20,039
(3,056,628 (2,275,307
(2 494 BE (3,304 378y
{92,776% {75 494
747 -
g (2,896,787) (4,062,121
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Separate Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

fim niiHians of Won) Motes

Becember 31, 7017

Folio96

Becember 31, 2011

Cash flows from finsneing ascthvitdes 36
Procesds fiom borowings

Proceeds from long-term fnancial Habilities

Proceeds from disposal of treasury shares

Repayment of borowings

Repayment of long-tern Ananclal liabilities

Acguisition of treasury sharves
Payment of cash dividends

Met wash provided by (used ) fnancing activities

Effect of exchange rige changes on eash held

MNet increas e i cnsh and cash equiwalents

Caxh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenss at beginning of the penod

Cash and cash eguivalents at end of the pericd

See goeeampanving woes o the separate Jinanciel siarements.

5,693,070
3781
164,384

(3686447}

(3,757

(61296}

2,150,474 138877
- 2200
BIA6TE 465456

1437882

ki 1,752,560

P137 882




POSCO
Motes to the Separate Financial Statements Folio95

As of December 31, 2012

i. Heporting Eatity

POSCO (e “Company™) is the largest sieel producer in Kores which was incorporated on April 1
1968, under the Commercial Code of the Republic of Karea to mzmufaciore and sell steel rofled
products and plates in the domestic and overseas markets.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Korea Fxchange since 1988, The Company
owns and operstes two steel plants (Pohang and Gwangyang) and one oifice in Korea, and it aleo

operates internationally through nine of its overseas Haison offices.

A of December 31, 2012 and 2011, major shareholders ave as follows:

212 _ 2011

Shareholder's name Number of shaves Ownership (%) Number of shares Ownership (%)

National Pension Service 5225654 5,999 5937323 6.81%
Mippon Steel & Sumiiamo Metal Corporation (£} 4304712 50T 4394712 F.04%
SK. Telecomn Co., Lid, . - TARI 310 2.85%
KB Financial Group Ine. and subsidiaries P 19,773 B, - -
Pohang University of Science and Technology 1,905 000 2 18% LS05.000 218%
Shinhan Financiat Group Ine, and subsidiaries 1845054 2.43% LETORTY 215%
Orthers 71896642 32 47% TO597.611 30.97%
7,180,833 LO0.00%% 87,186,83 HIGLO0%%

(513 MNippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Corporation owns American Deposttory Receipts (ADRs) of
the Company, each of which represents 0.25 share of POSCO’s common share which has par
value of W 5,000 per share.

As of December 31, 2012, the shares of the Company are listed on the Korea Exchange, while ifs
depository shares are listed on the New York, Tokyo and London Stock Exchanges.

%, Statement of Compliance

Statement of compliance

The separate fnancial statements have boen prepared in accordance with Korean Infernational
b.oas preseribed in the Act on External Awdits of

Financial Reporting Standsrds  (“K-IFRS
Corporations.

These financial statements are separate financial statements prepared in accordance with K-JFRS No.
1627 “Consolidated and Separare Financiol Statements” presented by a parent, an investor in an
associate or a venture in a4 jointly controlied entity, in which the investments are accounted for on the
basis of the divect equity interest rather than on the basis of the reported results and net assets of the
invesiees,



POSCO

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements, Continued
As of December 31, 2012

Folio94

Basis of measurement

The separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
following material items in the statement of fnancial position, as described in the accounting policy
below,

{a} Derivatives ingfrmments are measured af fair value
(b} Financial mstrumenis at fair value through profit or loss (FVEPL) are measured at fair value
(o) Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value

&
(dy Defined benefit Habilities are measured at the present value of the defined benefit obligation less

the fair value of the plan assefs
Funetiona) and presentation eurrency

These separate financial statements are presented in Korean won, which is the Company’s funciional
currency and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Use of estimates and judgenments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with K-IFRS requires management o make
iudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the

reported amounts of asseis, labilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Fatimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions o accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about critical judements in appiving accounting policies that have (he most sigmficant
Juag YIig p £

effect on the amounts recognized in the separate financial statements is meluded in the following

notes:

@ Nete 7 - Other Financsal Assels
@ Note 11 - Investment Property, MNet
@ Note 12 - Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment within the next financial vear are included in the fellowing notes:

@ Note 17 - Emplovee Benefits
& Note 34 - Comunitments and Contingencies



POSCO
Notes to the Separate Financial Statements, Continued Folio93
As of December 31, 2012

Changes in acconnting policies
ta} Changes in accouniing policies
1} Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The Company has applied the amendments to K-IFRS Noo 1107, “Financial Instrizmenis:
Disclosures™ since Japuary 1, 2012, The amendmenis require disclosure of the natwre of
transferred assets, their carrying amount, and the description of risks and rewards for each class of
transterred financial asset that are not derecognized in their entirety.  1f the Company derccognizes
transterred financial assets bue still retains their specific risks and rewards, the amendments reqguire
additicnal disclosures of their risks.

23 Presentation of financial statements

The Company adopted the amendment to K-IFRS No. 1081, “Presemiation of Financial
Statemenis " from the annual period ended December 31, 2012, which prescribes the Company’s
operating profit to be caleulated as revenue less: (1) cost of sales, and (2) selling and administrative
expenses, and presented separately in the statemnent of comprehensive income,

Addittonally, in the notes to the financial statements, the Company provides voluntary disclosure of
the entity-specific measure of operating performance presented as “adjusted operating profit” which
ig calenlated base on the Commpany’s own oriferia.  In doing so, the Company is required fo
disclose: (1) a reconciliation between the entity-specilfic measure of operating performance and
operating profit or loss presented on the face of the statement of comprehensive income, and (2) the
fact that the measure of operating performance disclosed in the notes is calculated based on the
Company’s own criteria,
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(b} Iinpact of changs in accounting policy

The Company retrospectively applied the amendment to KAIFRS No. 1001, for which the mpact is as

follows:

{in mitlions of Wons

Orperating profit before adoption of the amendnient
Add

Lass on disposaks of property, plant, and eaquipment

Reversal of other bad debt expenses
bpairment logs of property, plant, and equipment

Loss on disposals of other long-tenm sssets

zible as

Loss on disposals of nfanghle ssses
Pronutions

fdle tangihe assels expenses

fmpairment loss of Ivestment i subsidiaries and assocites

Loss on disposals of Iwvestment W subsidiaries and asgo
Eoss on disposals of assets hekd for sale

Miscellaneous loss

Preduct
Gain on disposals of property, plant, and equinmoent
Cain on disposaly of other long-term sssets
Gain on disposals of mtangible asses

Cinles

Gaiy on disposals of vestment in subsidiaries and associates

Reversal of Bnpairment of properey, plant, and equipment
Galn on disposals of assets held for sale

fiscellaneaus ncome

Cperating profit after adoption of the amendment

Approval of financial statements

The separate fingncial statemenis were approved by the Board of Directors on February 7, 201

2012 203
i 2535033 4,196,729
34994 &03,174
. (51
- L8116
[2t -
6495 -
a17 A2y
62684 0,787
33,743 16,568
[ -
17,575 -
4,391 -
120,573 27379
334,301 179,993
(27638 {18400
(2133 -
- (38}
(8,693) (7143
(1,600) -
{1150} -
{3E38T) (34043}
[GENET (45 6405
Kid 2789 597 4,330,382

-
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Motes to the Separate Financial Statements, Continued Folio91
As of December 31, 2012

3. Summary of Siguificant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Compapy i oreparation of i3 separate financial
statements are included below.  The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all periods presented in these financial statements, except for those as disclosed in note 2,

Investments in subsidiaries and sssockates

These separate financial statements are prepared and pxmempd in accordance with E-IFRS No. 1627

“Congolidated and Separate Financial Statemenis”.  The Company applied the cost method to

mvesiments in subsidiaries, sssocistes and joint ventures in accordance with K-IFRS Mo, 1627
Dividernds From & subsidisry or asgociate are recogpized in profit or loss when the right o receive the

dividend is established.
Foreign currency transactions and fransiation

Foreign currency fransactions are initially recovded using the spot exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.  Af the end of each
reporting period, foreign currency monelary items arve iranslated using the closing rate.  Non-
monetary fems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the original transaction.  Non-monetary items that are measored as
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date fair value is initially
determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary lfems or on translating monetary items at
rates different from those at which thev were translated on inifial recognition during the period or in
previous financial statements are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.  When
gaing or losses on non-monetary ifems are recognized in other comprehensive income, exchange
components of those gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.  Conversely,
when gaing or losses on non-monetary ifems are recognized in profit or loss, exchange components of
those gaing or losses are recognized in profit or los

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, and shorf-term Investments in
highly liquid securities that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with maturities of three
months or less from the acquisition date and which are subject to an nsignificant risk of changes in
value,  Bquity investments are excluded from cash and cash eguivalents.



POSCO
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Mon-derivative financial assets
The Company recognizes and measures non-derivative financial assets by the following four
categories: (inancial assels at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, loans
and receivables and available-forsale finaneial assets.  The Company recognizes fnanecial assets m
the separate statement of financial position when the Company becomes a party fo the contraciual
provisions of the instrument.

Upon initial recognition, non-derivative financial assets are measured at thew fair value plus, in the

case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are direcily
atiributable to the asset’s acquisition or issuance,

{(a} Financtal assets at faly value through profit or Joss
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or

designated as such opon imitial recognition.  Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are
ots at fair value through profit or loss are

recognized in profit or loss when incurred.  Financial ¢
measured at {air value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss,

{hy Held-to-maturity financial assets

A non-derivative financial assel with a fized or determinable payment and fixed maturity, for
which the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, is classified as held-
to-maturity financial assets.  Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial assets
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

{c} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market.  Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective nterest method unless the effect of discounting is

immaterial.

(Y Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assefs that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at fafr value through profit or loss, held-
to-mraturity financial assets or loans and receivables,  Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at far value, with changes in fair value, not of any tax effect, recorded i other
comprehensive income in equity.  Tnvestments in equily instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked (o and must be serled by debvery of such vnguoted equity instruments are
measured at cost.  When a financial asset is derecognized or impairment losses are recognized,
the curulative gain or Joss previcusly recognized i other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.  Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognized
in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Separate Financial Statements, Continued Folio89
As of December 31, 2012

{e} Derecognition of non-derivative lnancial assets

The Company derecogrizes non-derivative financial assets when the conivactual rights to the cash
Hows from the financial asset expire, or the Company transfers the rights to receive the contractual

cash flows from the financial asset as well as substantiatly all the risks and rewards of OWE'EL:w?}Ip
of the financial asset.  Any interest in a transterred Bnancial asset that is created or retained by tf
Clompany is recognived as o separaie assed or Dabibity,

If the Company refains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred
the wansforred financial assets and

financial assets, the Company continues (o recognize
recognizes fnancial Habilities for the consideration received.

{f) Oftsetting a financial asset and & Hnancial Hability

Financial assets and financial Habilitics are offvet snd the net amount 1s presented in the separate
statermenit of finencial position only when the Company currently has a legally enforcesble i ;l fo
offset the recognized amounts, and there is the intention to settle on a net basis or (6 realize the
asset and settle the lability simultaneously,

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Costs are determined by using
the moving-weighted average method.  The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories o their present location and
condition.  The atlocation of fized production overheads to the costs of finished goods or work in
progress are based on the normal capacity of the production facilities.

When inventories are sold, the carrving amount of those inveniories 1s recognized as cost of goods
sold in the peried in which the related revenue is recognized.  Inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. The smount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable
value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in the period the write-down or loss
oecurs.  The amount of any reversal of anv write-down of Inveniories arising from an increase in
net realizable value 18 recognized as a reduction m the amount of inventories weogrired as a cost of

goods sobd w the period in which the reversal cecurs.

[4
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Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current agsets or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities thal are expected o be
recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use are classified as held for sale. In
order to be classified as held for sale, the assets or disposal groups must be available for immediate
sale in their present condition and their sale must be highly probable.  The assets or disposal groups
that are classified as non-current asseis held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying

amount and fair valee less cost to sell

The Company recogrizes an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-down of an asset or
disposal aroup to fair value less costs to sell, and o gain for any subsequent increase in fair value less
costs to sell, ap to the cumulative impairment loss previously recognized in accordance with K-TFRS
No. 1036 “Tmpairment of Assets”

A non-current asset that is classified as held for sale or part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale is not depreciated {or amortized).

Investment property

Property held for the purpose of caming rentals is classified as mvestment property.  Investment
property is measured initially at its cost.  Transaction costs are inchnded in the Initial measurement.
Subsequently, investment property is carried at depreciated cost less any accumulated impairment

losses.

Subsequent costs are recognized in the carrying amount of investment property at cost or, if
appropriate, as separate items if it is probable that futwre economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized.  The costs of the day-to~day servicing are recognized in profit or
logs as incurred.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporfing date
and adjusted, if appropriste.  The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and after initial recognition, are carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.  The cost of property,
plant and equipment includes expenditures arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the
asset, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for if
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and, when the Company has an
obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of dismantling and TEmoOving
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

LAY



POSCO

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements, Continued Folio87
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Subseguent to initial recognition, while an item of property, plant and equipment, except land, which
shall be carried af its cost less any accummlated depreciation, any acouraulated impairment losses and
government grants, land 18 carried at cost initially measured.

The cost of replacing a part of an item is recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property.

plant and equipment, i the following recognition criterfa are met:

{aj it is probable that future economic bensfits associated with the item will fow to the Company; and

tb} the cost can be measured refiably.
The carvving amount of the replaced part is derccogmized at the time ihe replacement part is
recognized. The costs of the dav-to-day servicing of the item are recognized in profil or loss as

incurred.

ftems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use or, in
respect of self-congtructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.  Other
than land, the costs of an asset less its estimated residual value are depreciated. Land is not
depreciated. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is recognized i profit or loss on a
straight-line basis, which most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the assei, over the estimated useful Hves of each component of an ifem
of property, plant and equipment, Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obiain ownership by the end of
the lease term.

Hach part of an item of property, plant and cquipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the ttem s depreciaied separately,

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Huildings 20-4) years
Structures 2040 vears
Machinery and equipment 15 years
Vehicles 4.9 vears
Tools 4 years
Fariiture and fixtures 4 years
Lease assets 13 years

The estimated residual value, vseful Hves and the deprecistion method are reviewed at least at the end
of each reporting peried and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted
for as changes in accounting estimates.

16
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Borrowing costs

The Company capitalizes borrowing costs divectly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifving asset as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized
in expense as incurred. A qualifying asset is an asset that requires a substantial pericd of time to get
ready for its infended use or sale. Financial assets and inventories that are manufactured
ctherwise oroduced over a short peried of dme are not qualifying assets.  Assets that are ready for
their intended use or sale when acquired are not qualifying assets,

To the extent that the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpese of obtaining a qualifying
asgef, the Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible tor capitalization as the actual
borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less sy investmen! income on the
temporary investment of those borrowings,  The Company immediately recognizes other borrowing
costs as an expense. 1o the extent that the Company borrows funds generally and uses thern [or the
surpose of obtaining a gualifying asset, the Company shall determine the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization by applving a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.  The
capitalization rate shall be the weighted average of the borrowing costs applcable to the borrowings
of the Company that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the pwpose of obtaining & qua}ifyinﬁz asset.  The amount of borrowing costs that the Company
capitalives during & period shall not exceed the amount of borrowing costs mcurred during that period,

intangible assets

Intangible assets are measiwed initially at cost and, subsequently, are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment fosses.

Amortization of intangible assets except for goodwill is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use.  The residual
value of intangible assets is zero.  However, ag there are no foresceable limits to the perieds over
which club memberships are expected to be available for use, this intangible asset is determined as

having an indelinite useful life and not amortizaed.

Intellectual property rights 5-10 vears
Development cost 4 vears
Port faciliffes usage rights 2-75 years
Oither intangible assels 4261 vears

5 with finite useful lives are

Amortization periods and the amortization methods for intangible as
reviewed at the end of each reporting period.  The useful Hives of intangible assets that are not being
amortized are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to defermine whether evenis and
circumstances continue o support indefinite useful life assessments for those assefs.  Changes are
accounted for as changes in accounting estimates.
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Expenditures on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding. are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. D@ve_(‘zp}‘nem
expenditures are capitalized only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are p;ombi e, amd, the

Company ntends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the

asget.  Other development expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as incurred,

Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they mcrease the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which they relate.  All other expenditures, including
expenditures on infernally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in profit or less as

=l

incurred.
Covernment grants

Government grants are not recogimized unless there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the grant’s conditions and that the grant will be received. Government grants whose
primary condition is that the Company purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets are
deducted from the carrying amount of the assets and recognized in profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the life of the depreciable assets,

Government grants which are intended to compensate the Company [or expenses mewred are
deducted from the related cxpenses

Leases

The Company classifies and accounts for leases as either a finance or operaiing lease, depending on
the ferms.  Leases where the Company assumes substantiaily all of the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Al other leases are classified as operating leases

(a) Finance leages

At the commencement of the lease term, the Company recognizes as finance assets and finance

Habitities the lower amount of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the

minimuom lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.  Any mitial direct costs
are added to the amount recogmzed as an asset.

Mintmum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and Fhe reduction of the
outstanding lability. The finance charge i3 allocated to each period during the lease term so as o
nroduce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the ,iahzhty Comtingent
rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

The depreciable amount of a leased asset is allocated to each accounting period during the period
of expected use on a systematic basis consisient with the depreciation policy the Company adopts
for similar depreciable assets that are owned. I there is no reasonable certainty that the Company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of

18
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the lease term and irg usetul life.
{1y Operating leases

fease chbligations under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.  Contingent rents ave charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Brupatrment for financial assets

A financial asset not carried al fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date fo
determine whether there is objective ovidence that it is mmpaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that & loss event has occurned after the initial recognition of the asset, and
that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be
estimated rebiably,  However, losses expected a8 a result of fiture events, regardless of likehhood,

arg not E‘@C-(}g}"ii'%ffd..

Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the holder of the asset about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor
est or principal payinents

{b) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in inte
(¢} the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating o the borrower's fnancial diffieulty, granting
to the barrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider

(dy it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization

(&) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties

{1} observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group.

in addition, tor an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged dechine
in s (air value below Uts cast s objective evidence of impairment.

s have obiective evidence that they are impaired, impainment losses are measured and

It financial ass
recounized,

14
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{a) Financial assets carrted at amortized cost

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at smortized cost is caleulated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of ite estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. I il is not practicable to obtain the
instrument’s estimated future cash flows, impairment losses would be measured by using prices
from any ohservable current market fransactions.  The Company can recogaize impairment losses
divectly or establish a provision to cover impairment losses. I in a subsequent period, the
case oan be related objectively to an avent

amotnt of ihe impaémzem lose decrenses and the de
occurring after the impairment was recognived (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit
rating}, the previously recognized fmpairment loss shall be veversed either divectly or by adjusting
an atlowance aceount,

{byFinancial aseets carried af cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred on an unguoted equity
instrument that 16 pot camed at faiy valee because fis fair value cannot be reliably wmieasured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the mpairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrving
amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impaivment logses are not
reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

o
(92
o’

When a decline i the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized in
other comprehengive income and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive meome shall be reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has
not been derecognized.  Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for an mvestment in an
equity instrument classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or less. 1, in a
subseguent veriod, the fair value of a debt ingtrument clagsified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event oceurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in profit or loss, the fmpairment loss shail be reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognized 1 profit or loss.
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Irmpairments for non-financial sssets

The carrying smounis of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than agsets arising {rom cmplovee
heneilts, inventories, deferred tay assets and non-current assets held for sale, are reviowed #t the ond
of the reporting peried o determine whether there is any indication of impaiiment. I any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount i3 estimated.  Intangible assets that have
indefinite usefu! lives or that are not yet available for use, irrespective of whether there is any
indication of impairment, are tested for hmpairment annually by comparing their recoverable amount

fo their carrving amount,

Management estimates the recoverable amount of an individual asset. I it is impossible to measure
the individual recoverable amount of an asset, then management estimates the recoverable amount of
a cash-generating unit CCGU™L A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. The value in use is estimated by applying a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU for which
estimated firture cash flows have not been adjusted, to the estimated future cash flows expected to be

wenerated by the asset or CGUL

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable

amount.  Impaitrment fosses ave recognized in profit or loss.

Any impairment identified at the CGU level is used to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the CGU on a pro rata basis.  An impairment toss is reversed if there has been a change in the
astimates used to determine the recoverable amount.  An impairment foss is reversed only o the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amertization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Berivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
neasured at fair valne, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

{a} Embedded derivatives

Frmbedded derivatives are separated irom the host contract and accounted for separately only if the
following criteria have been met: (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and
the embedded derfvatives are not ¢learly and closely related o a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative that would meet the definition of a derivative, and (b) the hybrid
{combined)} instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair
value of separable embedded derivatives from the host contract are recognized immediately in

profif or loss.
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Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is not designated as a hedging mstrument are

recognized invnediately in profit or loss.
Noo-devivative (inancial Habilities

The Company classifies pon-derivative finsucial labilities into finapcial labilities ar fadr value
through vrofit ar loss or other financial Habilities in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of financial babibities. The Company recoynizes financial habilities
in the separate siatement of financial pesition when the Company becomes a party to the coniractual

provistons of the fimancial Kability,
(a} Financial fabilities at fair valoe through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value throngh profit or loss include financial lishilities held for trading.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, and changes therein are recogpized in profit or loss. Upon ipitial recognition,
transaction costs that are diveetly attributable fo the acquisition are recogmized in profit or loss ag

incurred.
() Other financial Habilities

Non-derivative financial Habilities other than financial Habilities at fair value through profit of loss are

classified as other {inancial Habilities.

Financial guarantee labilities are initially measured at their fawr values and, i not designated as

financial liabilities at fair value through orofit or loss, they are subsequently measured at the higher

of:

[} the amount of the best estimate of the expendiiure required (o setile the present obligation af the
end of the reporting period; and

2y the amount mitially recognized less, cumulative smortization recognized on a siraight-line basgiz
over the guaranies period

Al the date of iattial recognition, other financial liabilities are messured at fair value minug

.

that are directly attributable (o the acquizition. Subsequent to initial recognition,

fransaction o

The Company derecognizes a fnameial Hability from the separate stalement of Hnancial position when

it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the coniract is discharged, cancelled or expires).
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Employee benefits

(2} Short-term emploves benefits

Short-term emplovee benefits are employee beneflits that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the emplovees render the related service. When an
employee has rendered service to the Company during an accounting period, the Company
recognizes the undiscounted amount of shovt-term emploves benefits expected o be paid in
exchange for that service ag profit or loss.  If the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
which can be reliably measured, the Company recognizes the amount of expected payment for
profit-sharing and bonuses payable as labilities.

(b} Retireinent benefita: Defined contribution plans

For defined contribution plans, when an employee has rendered service to the Company during a
period, the Company recognizes the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in
exchange for that service as an accrued expense, after deducting any contributions alveady paid. If
the contributions already paid exceed the contribution due for service before the end of ihe
reporting period, the Company recognizes that excess as an asset (prepaid expense} to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to a reduction in future payments o a cash refund.

(e} Retirement benefits: Detined benelfit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company’s net obligation in respect of detined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amownt of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its presept value. The fair value of plan
assets is deducted. The calculation is performed anoually by an independent actuary using the

projected wnit credit method,

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated m the same
cwrency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The Company recognizes all actuarial
gains and losses arising from actuarial assumption changes and experiential adjustments in other
comprehensive income when incurrad.

When the fair value of plan assets exceeds the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the
Company recognizes an assei, to the extent of the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction in the future contributions to the plan.

P
Lt
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Past service costs, which are the change in the present value of the defined benelits obligation for
employes service in prior periods, resulting in the cwrrent period from the mtroduction of, or
change to posi-employment benelits, ave recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested.  To the extent that the benefits are already vested
immediately fotlowing the iniraduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the Company
recognizes the past service cost immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has o present legal or constractive obligation as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodving economic benefits will be

equired to settie the obligation, and a reliable estimaie can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The risks and uncertainties that nevitably surround many events and cireumstances are faken inta

gecount 1 reaching the best estimate of a provision,  Where the effect of the tme value of money is

material, provisions are determined at the present value of the expected i futere cash flows.

Where some or all of the expenditures required to setile a provision are expected (0 be reimbursed by
another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received it the entity settles the obligation.  The reimbursement shall be

treated as a separate asset.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. I 5t is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic bepefits will
be required to seftle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

A provision 18 used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognized.
Share capital

Connnon stock is classified as equily and the incremental costs arising directly attributable to rhe
issuance of common stock less their tax effects are deducted from equity.

If the Company reacquires its own equity instruments, the amount of those instruments (“treasury
shares™) are presented as a contra equity account.  No gain or [0ss 18 recognized in profit or loss on
the purchase. sale, issuance or cancellation of s own equity mstruments.  When treasury shares arg
sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized ag an increase (o equity, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is recorded in capital surplus,
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Hevenue

Revenue from the sale of goods, services provided and the use of asseis 1s measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net of refurns and allowances, trade discounts and volume
rebates, which are not significant for all periods presented.

{a} Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of activities 1s measured at the fair value of
she consideration recetved or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rehates,
Revenue 15 recognized when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales
agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be
estimated reliably, there is no confinuing management involvement with the goods. and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably.  The appropriate timing for transfer of risks and rewards
varies depending on the mdividual terms and conditions of the sales contract.  For international

sales, this timing depends on the type of international commercial terms of the contract.
{lyy Rental income

tose on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Rental income from mvesiment property, net of leass incentives granted, is recogmized in profit or

Finance ineome and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale fnancial
assets), dividend income, gaing on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and changes in
the fair value of fnancial assels at fair value through profit or loss.  Interest income is recognized as
it accerues in profit or foss, using the effective interest rate method. Dividend income is recognized in
profit or foss on the date that the Company’s right (o receive payment is established.

Finance cosis comprise interest expense on borrowings and changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value throungh profit or loss,  Borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss using the

affective interest rate method.
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Fncome tax
Income tax expense comyrises current and deferred (ax. Current tax and deferred tax ave recognized in

profit or loss except Lo the extent that it relates to ftems recognized divecly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

{ay Current ax

-aF, using

Current tax is the expected tax pavable or receivable on the taxable orofit or loss for the
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.  The taxable profit is different from the accounting profit
for the period since the taxable profif is caleulated excluding the temporary differences, which will
be taxable or deductible in determining faxable profit of future periods, and non-taxable or non-
deduetible itewns From the aceounting profit,

(b} Deferred tax

The measurement of deferred tax Habilities and deferred tax assets reflects the tax consequences

that would follow from the manser in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
pericd, to recover or settle the carrving amount of its assets and labilities.

Preferred tax is recognized, using the asset-liability method, n respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available againgi which they can be
utilized. However, deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: taxable
temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not 2 business combination and that atfects neither
accounting profit or loss nor taxable income.

The Company recognizes a deferred tax liability for ail taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures, except to the extent that the
Company is able to confrol the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1 is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresecable future. The Company recognizes
a deferred tax asset for deductible femporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will
reverse in the foresesable fiture and taxable profit will he avallable against which the temporary
difference can be uiilized.

The carrving amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available o
allow the benefif of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized.

26
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Delerred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecied o apply o the

perfod when the asset is realized or the Hability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws} that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.  The measurement

of defesred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow

from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting penod o recover or
ihe

settle carrying amount of ts assets and Habilities.

Dreferred tax assets and lsbilities are offset anly if there 15 4
|

egatly enforceable right to offser the

related current tax lishilities and assets, and they relate {0 ncome taxes levied by the same tax
authority and they infend to settle current fax liabilities and assets on 2 net basis.

Earnings per share

Management calculates basic earnings per shave ("EPS™) data for the Company’s ordinary shares,
hich is presented af the end of the statement of comprehensive income.  Basic EPS is caleulated by
«;%;‘m ing profit attribuiable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares ouistanding during the perind, adivsted for own shares held,
New standards and bterpretations not yet adopted

The [ollowing new siandards, interpretations and amendments o existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Company for annual periods beginning afler Japnary 1, 2012, and
the Company has not early adopted them.  Management believes the impact of the c.;nmndmcmb o
the Company’s separate financial statements is not signibcant.

13
oy
11

{a} Amendments to K-FRS No. 1019 “Emplovee Benefits”

The standard requires recognition of aciuarial geins and losses immediately i other
comprehensive income and to calculate expected return on plan assets based on the rate used to
discount the defined benefit obligation. The standard will be applied refrospectively for the
Company’s annual periods beginning on or atter January [, 2013,

EDYKATFRS No, 1113 “Foidr Falue Measurement™
The standard defines fair value and a single framework for fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements.  The standard will be applied prospectively for the Company’s
annual periods beginning on or after Jarmary 1, 2013,

() Amendments to KRS No, 1001 “Presemration of Financial Stafements”
The amendmenis require presenting in other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they

are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments).  The
amendment s mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012,

e
3
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4, Financial risk managemeont

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instroments:
e credit risk
e liguidity risk
«  market risk
o capital risk

visks. the

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the zbove
Company’s objectives. polictes and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s
management of capital.  Further quantitative disclosures arve inchuded throughout these separate

financial statements.
{a) Risk managementt policy

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’™s risk management famework.,  The Company’s risk management policies are
established to identify and analvze the risks faced by the Company, o set appropriate risk Hmies
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to Hindts,  Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities,

The Company, through ils trainiing and management standards and procedures, aims o develop a
disciplined and constructive control envirenment in which all emplovees understand their roles and
obligations.

by Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a cugtomer or counterpaity o a financial
instrument fails to meet its confracival obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s
receivables from customers and investment securities.  In addition, credit risk arises from finance

guaraptees and unused sales contracts,

The Company implements a credit risk mapagement poliey uwder which the Company only
transacts basiness with counterpariies that have a certain level of eredit rate evatuated based on
financial condition, historical experience, and other fctors. The Company’s exposure (0 credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.  The default risk of o
nation or an mdustry in which a customer operates its business does not have a significant
influence on credit risk. The Company has established a credit policy under which cach new

customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness,
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The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represenis its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivabies. The main components of this allowance are a
specific loss component that relates to individually sigmificant exposures, and a collective loss
component established for companies of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred
but not ver identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of
pavrent statistics for similar financial assets.  Debt securities are analyzed individually, and an

expected loss shall be direcily deducted from debt securities.

Credit risk algo arises from transactions with fnancial institutions, and such transactions include
transactions of cash and cash equivalents, varicus depesifts, and financial instruments such ag
derivative contracts.  The Company manages its exposure fo this credit visk by only entering into

transactions with banks that have high intemational credit ratings. The Company’s Treasury

Department authorizes, manages, and overseas new transactions with financial institutions with
whom the Company has no previous relationship.  Furthermore, the Company {imits is exposure
to credit visk of financial guarantes confracts by swrictly evaluating their necessity based on internal
decision making processes, such as the approval of the board of directors.

{c) Liquidity risk management

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with s financial lishilities that are seitied by delivering cash or ancther financial asset.
The Company’s approach to managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that # will always
have sufficient guidity to meet its Habilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,

without ncurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage fo the Company’s reputation.

The Company’s cash flow from business, borrowing or fnancing i1s sufficient to meet the cash
requirements for the Company’s strategic investmenis. Management believes that the Company is
capable of raising funds by borrowing or financing if the Company is not able o generate cash
flow requirements from its operations.  The Company has committed borrowing facilities with

various banks.
(d}y Market risk management

Market risk means that the fwir value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auciate
because of changes in market prices. The goal of market risk management is optimization of

profit and controlling the exposure to market risk within acceptable limits,

1y Curreney risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk own sales, purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company, Korean Won,

The Company’s management mounitors currency risk regularly for hedging foreign exchange

CXPpOsUre.
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2y Interest rate risk

The Company mostly horrows at fixed interest rates. The Company’s management monitors
interest rate risks regularly,
(e} Management of capital risk
The fundamental goal of capital management is the mmodmization of shareholders™ value by means
of the siable dividend policy and the retirement of freasury shares,  The capiial structure of the
Company consists of equity and net debt, deducting cash and cash equivalents and cuwrrent
fpancial  instruments  from borowings.  The Company applied the same financial sk

management strategy that was applied in the previous period.

The equity ativibutable to owners as of December 31, 2012 and 2017 are as follows:

(i wmillions of Won) 2612 2013

Total borrowings GA03.774 V1632396
Fegs: Cash and cash equivalenis 1,752 500 1,137,882

Net borrowings 7TR51.214 1494514

Total equity 39164545 37,598,616

Net borrowings-to-equity ratio 20.05% 27.91%

A Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as {ollows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 piis e}

Checlung accounts i 66 149987

Time deposits §320.060 SHOL00

Money market oust 321400 157 960

Money market Buwds 00060 20,000

Money market denosit account 08 -
W 1,752 560 1,137 882
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4. Trade Accounts and Notes Hecelvable

Trade acoounts and notes receivable a3 of December 31, 20172 and 2011 are as follows:
i millions of Won) 2012 2611
Current
Trade accounts and notes recerable Eia 4,059 066 4322187
Less: Allowance tor doubtful accounts (11,976} ¢ 1,945}
4 OR7.030 4220242
MNon-Clarrent
Trade acoounts and notes recevable 507 257
Less: Allowance for doubtlud accounts (228) g
274 24
s 4,087 304 4220266

Trade accovunts and notes receivable sold to financial insthiutions, for which the derecognition
corgditions were not met, mmounted fo W 238 680 million and ¥ 342 307 million as of December
31,2002 and 2011, respectively, and are included n shovt-term borrowings (note (4],

7. iher Receivahles and Finaneial Assets

£y Other receivables ag of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won)

Current
Oiher aceounts receivable, net
Accrued income

Allowance account for evedi losses

Mon-current
Long-term oans
Long-terin other accounts receivable

Allowance scoount for credit losses

2012 2011
W 391263 330,615
12,531 10,585
(10.571) (10.571)
393203 330,629
66,775 68.716
6,410 3,674
(14453 (14,453
58,732 57937
W 451953 188,566

3
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{by Other showt-term financial assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 sre as follows:

(i miilfions of Wonj

2612 2011

Financial assets at fair valie through profit or loss

Financial asgets held for nading W 50,132
Avatable-for-zale financial assets

Short-term available-for-sale securitizs (honds) L0000 -
Held-to-mmturity mvestments

Current porfion of held-to-maturity securities (bonds) 29.981 -
Loans and other recevables

Short-terim fimancial metroments (1) 786049 982,112

Cash deposits (%2} 12,699 17,175

Orther checking accounts I,53¢8 1 ALS

W 930,316 1,050,834

T4

{*1) sShort-term financial instruments amounting to YW 3,400 million and W 1,670 million are
secured in relation to long-term: borrowings from a forestry association as of Decamber 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

(*2) Deposits are resiricted in relation (o government assigned projects.

{cy Other long-term [nancial assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows;

(in mitlions of Won)

2012 2811
Fiancial asset at fair value thwough profit or loss
Derivative W 6016 -
Available-for-sale investments
Long-term available-for-sale securfiies (bonds) 18,642 15,045
Long-term available-tor-sale equity securities 29428915 3716014
Long-term available-for-sale securities
(mvestment i capital) 00 00
Held-to-matority mvesunents
Held-to-matority secunties (bonds) - 29,903
Lean and other recetvable
Cash deposits (*1) 40 40
Deposits 1920 13,619
W 2970033 3775121

£*1) The Company is required to provide deposits to maintain checking accounts and accordingly the
withdrawal of these deposiis is resiricted.

[
)
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(dy Long-term available-for-sale equity securities as of December 31, 2612 and 2017 are as follows:

s miliions of g P 1411

Het \.i?xmu in faly
E Aqcurmtbsiod

Raaher of Avopision Fair E iy nrend Boak Buak

shares CrarersHp T ) CeNi wibtier el o idy HitEd value wirhire

(%13 As of December 31, 20112, 2294961 shares equivalent to 200654,65% American Depository
Receipts ("”"ADRS“} of SK Telecom Co., Lid. have been pledged as coliateral for
exchangeable bonds issued.

(*2y The Company recorded impairment loss for investment of 3K Telecom Co., Ltd, amounting
to W 272,079 willion prioy to January [, 2012, During the vear ended Drecember 3 1, 2012,
there was a Turther impairment foss of W 35 491 million recognized in profit or foss.

{*3) The ownership, number of shares, and book wvalue of the securities were d@ucaqed as
compared to December 31, 2011 because the Company partially disposed of is shares during
the year ended December 3 1, 2012,

(*4) The Company recognized WI4,870 million of impairment loss on marketable equity
securities of Seoul Semiconductor Co., Lid., UNION STEEL and others for the year ended
December 31, 2012 due (o significant decline in the fair value of those shares during the
c<m"c-:ﬂ:;;>cmdiw period.

{*5} Fair value is based on an analysis performed by an external professional evaluation agency.

{*6% These non-marketable equity securitics are recorded at cost since fair value cannot be reliably
mieasured.

d
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2, Invenfories

Inventories as of Decamber 31, 2012 and 2011 are as foilows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 2611
Finished goods W 370517 974 585
Serai-finished goods P A46 058 Lotla4it
By-products F1.399 764
Raw materials VIST 976 1 465347
Foeland materinls a7 G508 596,100
Materizls-in-transi i.169.201 2184 547
Others 621 575
5404 030 7,145 175
Adlowance for nventories vakation (370 {466}
W 5,403,660 7,144,709
The amount of valuation losses of inventories recognized within cogt of goods sold during the vear

ended Decomber 31, 2012 and 2011 were ¥ 370 million and W 466 million, respectively.

9. Oiher Assety

Other current assets and other long-term assets as of Decomber 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

fin millicns of Won)

16012 2001
Chther current assets
Advance paymenis W 4,505 4935
Prepaid expenses 38177 18,677
W 42,682 23612
Other lorg-term asseis
Long-term prepaid expenses W 3216 9452
Others (*13 2,568 262,335
Less - Allowance for doubtful accounts (133 {13}
W 10,771 271,774

(%1} The guarantee deposiis of ¥W237.878 million related o the Australia Rov Hill iron ore mine
were transferred to investments in associates during the year ended December 31, 2012,



POSCO

Wotes to the Separate Financial Statements, Continued

B of December 31, 2012

Folio68

16, Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

{a} Investinents in subsidiarics

(i willions of Won)

~subsidiaries

Assocmies

(B Details of subs

ELTE ey

s andd carrying value:

2017

and associates as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are a8 follows:

2011

ks 12,463,345
F236,708

11.621.134
1,203,642

W 14,100,053

12,824 776

ss of December 31, 2002 and 2017 are as follows:

itz i

Pugabir ol Eranership Agigsidon MNetassel Book Book

iTromes e Coemery Principad eperations shares %y st vafue value
Dmewen temational Co. Lad, Mooz G2 ] ko A7

Koo

Nasrea

Triw

Clvers (33 Coimgs

BRI

BN

Lot
Ay
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H) 2611
Hundber of Craparshiy Avctsifon Mot ngset Rank Bk
Cradey Princinat opeiaions s e 1% % cosi value
T a8 greshng 4453 w
i o)
b1
HURRES]
freife
Tid
il
Hemg Koy
Rfesdon
FAN Ca, Lt SRA2E
dae Fobang
Stel O LA
P At Ching 47,354
cessing Center Co. Lad,
SEANTEY Teevkeizy AL 146,285
wlry
HLTER L3
Yty
lnadia Private
e 255545 48777
Sreed g fhetnemg and Saleg REREEE] HGAR [EAGK) FHI)
FUMSCORURTIRIAY & 4 i el SRR D Ev L] A H
i [REENIS Ui
245, AT
W 121632345 1368124

1y As of Decembe

which has 4.72% of ownership in POSCO M-TE

31, 2012, this was cla

ssified as an investment in a subsidiary as the Company
has control over of more than half of the voting rights by virtue of an agreement with Postech,

H Co., Lid.

(%2} As of December 31, 2012, this investment is collateral for the Company’s guarantee provided

tor certain borrowings of its subsidiary from banks,

()
i



POSCO

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements, Continued Folio66
As of December 31, 2012
(¢} DPretails of associates and carrying values as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
It 3y
Acomizifion Book
Comntry posti* 1) ~.s
T L Horen ; PFRETR

SRELL R 43 (K}

(*1y Although the Company holds less than 20% ownership, the Company classifies its investment in
Rov Hill Heldings Pty Lid. within invesiments in sssociaies, as the Company has signifieant
influence over the operating and financial policies over the entity.

(¥2% Representing 100% of the associates” amount,

(d} As of December 31, 2012, theve are no restrictions on the ability of subsidiaries and associates (o
transfer funds to the controlling company, such as in the form of cash dividends, repayment of
loans or payment of advances.

i1, lovestment Property, Net

{ay Investment property as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

612

A

Acinisition cost

Aconmulated

depreciation

Baek value

Aecwatated

Apvepdsition cost depreciation

Book waive

Land B 41819 4LEN -

Baikdirgs 1927 {47,230 i4

Streiures EN R (R R3] 30343 3384
Toead 13874 {50,348 (39,0126} 117418

The fair value of investment property as of December 31, 2012 is W 310,000 nullion.

Lod
1
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{by The changes in carrying value in investment property for the vears ended December 31, 2012 ana

2011 were as follows:
by For the vear ended December 31, 2012

fin millions of Won)

Beginning Aeguisition Disposal Deprecistion {71} Cihiery (%2} fnding
Land 43,358 - B {1547y 41811
Buihdings 48,776 - (255} {21745
Struotures 3,384 . {154y {1723 hXIIE
Tovgad W {17418 - - (30991 (3,743 111520

{13 The useful Life and depreciation method of investment properts

property. plant and equinment.

(*1y Mainly inchudes assets transferred from property, plant and equipment in relation to change

i rental ratio and the purpose of use.
23 Feor the yvear ended December 31, 2011

{in mmrdlions of Won}

are identical to those of

Beginning Acquisition Dieposal Peprecintion ("1} Cnthers (%2 Frding
Land W 11877 - - 1381
Frutldings 48,514 a4 153 (2,953 TR
Strueiures 1R - (195} 36497
Tuial i w2273 56 {153) (3,150 28,362 117,418

(*1) The useful life and depreciation method of imvesiment property are identical to those of

property, plant and equipment.

(*2) Mainly includes assets transferred from property, plant and equipment in relation to change

n rendal ratio and the purpose of use,

12, Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

(a} Property, plant and equipment as of Decamber 31,

fin aifions of Wos)

2012 and 2011 are as follows:

MG 2011

Aequisition Acpnmulated Aecumuiated Book Aegoisithmy Aecumulated Aceamulaied Baok
oSt deprechntion frnpair ment it cost depreciation rnpaiv iiend btz

] (113}

. {400

(175 {152y 12888014 $16,778327 (98TY

13,4339 164878 -

- 0,653 (139787 (25

(5 A7.4351 A HEZHN (5

T4 ¢ {3,155} -

. ER AL . .

R A (27 543 5633 1365 42 575,070 {21,047 D66y {1125

[
fon)
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{(h} The changes in carrving value of property, plant and equipment for the vears ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 were as follows:

1} For the year ended Diecember 31, 2012

(o mitlicns of Won) Beginping Aeguisitions (M) Bisvosals Pepreciation Others (¥1) Ending
Land (10,242} - 1447 1367822
Buldings {3,269} (237038 G546 2,734 839
Structures (21.140] (165632) ] 2LHA TS0
Machinery and cqmpment 11382501 128
Yelicks [ {78931

Touk (2 (15,0233 -

Furniture and fxiures {156} - 3
Lease assets 82481 - - {637y 7644
DRt HoT- F-progress 2310159 7561233 - - (1927 8% 259435903
Total W 21,533,135 4474754 (26,6263 [ER RIS (19148205 JE 166,733

(%1 Includes the acquisition cost of W 1.913.521 miffion for items transterred from construction-
in-progress in relation to the expansion of raw materials processing facilities, establishment of
IFINEX fzciltties and others.

(*2} Represents assets mansferred from construction-in-progress o miangible assets and other
property, plant and equipment as well as assets transferred from invesiment property and
assets held for sale.

2y For the year ended Drecember 31, 2011

fa anillions of Won) e inning Acquisithens ("1 s posals Depreciation  fmpaizment (") Others{*1.,3) Fading
L WL 0AR 04 HELEGY 1943y - - i1.351)
Buildings 2502213 384.977 {28836} {273y 123150)
Sirte oy 1,042 405 31663 {1220y { %} {1423 {6334
wachinery and equipment TLT36.029 2356617 (36315 {1301 849 (24.394) {14384}
WVehiches IRT753 a07 s {8747 .
E 17807 24367 (i3 {14077 12}
o fitives 33,345 31933 - {25155y %) -

olg 2918 - - (63T} - -
Conslructinn-ir-p 2033740 J3035 - - - {3.719.037)
Foad B L0 7097168 {30728 (1735316 124818 (37642833

(#1} Tncludes the acquisition cost of W3.703,723 million for items transferred [rom construction-
in-progress m relation to the expansion of Gwangyang sintering plates and coke establishment
plants and others.

(*2) The Company plans to dispose of certain equipment at an existing steet manufacturing plant
due to the completion and expected use of a new plani. Impairment losses amounting (o
P24 816 million are recognized since the fair value less cost o sell exceeds the carrying
amount. The remaining book value of this equipment is expected to be sold by the first half of
2017 for YW16.887 million, and were reclassitied to assets held for sale.

(*33 Includes assets transferred from construction-in-progress fo intangible assets, other property,
plant and equipment and investment property.
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{cy Borrowing costs capitalized and the capitalized imtevest e for the vewrs ended December 31

2012 andd 2011 were as follows:
2011

ki 472,258

{in mitlions of Won) 1612
W 1,469,474

Weighted average expenditure 7
Borrowimg cosis capitalized 66,371 21,823
Capdalivation rate 4.52%, 4.62%
P35 fistangible Assets, Net
{a) Intangible assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
o millions of o)
2612 T
Acquisition Acewmuiated Accumulated Boak Acctsiilon Accusrul ated Book
COSE depreciation T rment vl e o8t depreciation vabie
in sl prepery riglns W 904 BRI ¢ 3.564)
e [ by 49,5640
[ enpeTISg {AG.RP0} L 2H082
Pave facit {32601} G553
Other wiiangilbke sg {317,004 17,54 43262
Tisiat w 997657 {697.601) {0,215y 292 841 DERGG

(b} Changes in carrving values of intangible assets for the years ended Precember 31, 2012 and 2011

were as [ollows:

1) For the year ended December 31, 2012:

i fi fuvease Dhecrease
cirr millivens o
—— Acgmisition Develonumns Fransfer P Bewre siation Fopabrnse e o
Beginhitng [yevelopnmng Feposa Dhepreciniing Kriiing
B 2 i ©3) ' (1) :
40575 - - B2 [ERHH
7 LAY Lo
PR
PEELS 11757 (1486} 16,495

{1} Economsc usetul life of membership is indefinite,
(2 Includes acquisition cost transferred from construction-in-progress amounting to ¥ 14,788

million.
(*3) Memberships which expire afler a specitic period are reclassified as financial instruments.
However, memberships are reclassified from financial instruments to intangible asset as the

estimate for the possibility of renewal is probable.
{*45 Since the carrying emount excoeded recoverable amount, impatrment loss on memberships

was recognized.

40
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2} For the year ended Deocember 31, 2071
e Docrease
i arillnses of W) frerease Feerease
L Aequisition . , L Reclassificaddon o
Beginning =) Buvelopment Fris posai Brapreciation 3} Haling
W00 7333 . 3195 G :
12140 - 11757y
P2 )
. i1} .
PN NREE (550 (1,757
(*1y Economic useful life of membership is mdefinite.

(*2) Includes acquisition cost transferred from congtruction-l-progress amounting to W1 35,300

mithion.

(*3) Memberships entitled to be returned after 2 specific period were reclassified to financial

deposit,

i4. Borrowings

(2} Borrowings ag of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

fin miillions of Won)

2817

2011

Short-term borrowings

Short-term borrowings W

Current portion of long-term borrowings
Current portion of Joans from foreign fmancial mstitutions
Current portion of debentures
Less @ Current portion of discount on debeniures issued
Add - Cugrert portion of premiunm on debentares redemption

796,662
34,769
901
1,083742
(1,653)
2419

1,786,590

7,571

G51

500,000
(732)

2,116,540

Long-term borrowings

Long-term berrowngs

Foreign loan

Debentures
[ess | Discount on debentures issued
Add: Premmum on debeniores redemption

843,014
2,009
6,680,162

(53,616}
15,635

892,296
3071
3,502,852
(81,696}
21,493

7487334

9338016

9,603,774

11,632,396

41
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(b} Short-term borrowings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Wan) Annwal
Bank Issummce date  Maturity date  Inferest rate (%) 2611 FAIE S
BOA 2012-09-36 3013-06-03 91120 W 114,003 100,458
J¥ Morgan 2012-07-03 2013-01-03 1.43 75282 J2809G
DEUTSCHE 2120917 201340611 03.91~1.25 133,833 147,420
BBS 220765 AN 3-03-22 120144 121.544 2T
RBS 26 20027 2013-06-12 0.91-1.1% 43 236G 106,237
A and ot - 593,546
Oithers (discount on B 258,650 342307
ACCOTES 1ECEiva gf)?@}
W 796,662 1,796,590

(¢} Current portion of long-tern borrewings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as ollows:

(i miliions of Wont Azeroaf
Borrowers Fvguance date Maturify date  Interest yate (76} Bt It
Aomowings Roen Resources WOE031 0316015 0TS W v 1060
Corporaiint
Borrowngs Korea Resources 2006, 12,28 MIZVEZEAR VA 131 1,310
Corporition
Borrowings Woort Fank 2009.06.11 217.63.45 L5 1,950
Boarowings Woori Bank ELEAE R Nl 7035 175 G}
W oor Bank 20091231 T RS LS i 411
Woort Bank 2010.06.10 R ERITRSY 173 1262
: Woert Bank FOTE 2 2NRO% 15 [rp] 1383
Borrowmes Woorl Bank FOHO02. 1 EOYRIZE T 4 5 F1.533 -
Loans from foreizn NATEXIS (%13 1984.06. 30 034,12, 30~ 2600 | G5
fancial mstituliong 198603 31 27033
Debeniures Diomestie debentures 288 R R 05 213.08.05 (.52 ESENAR -
Drebontures Dewnestic dehontares 187 MOS0 EH VXIS 526 - FB0R
Debentives Sth Samural Privade 0628 ZO¥3.06.18 205 623,543 -
Bty Bonds
Trebentines Frohangeable Fond (2008} 200R.08.19 IR ARG RN 1681534
0790

foreign financial institutions.

(13 As of December 31, 2012, Kovea Development Bank has provided guarantees for loans fom
it
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{d} Long-term borrowings exchuding current portion, as of December 31, 2012 and

follows:

fin nilions of Honi

Borrowings

At
Borroavwers issuance date Maturity date  inferest rate (%) 1611 16i1
Woorl Bank(* 1) 2061031~ T35 3.75-1.73 53319 L3494
A0 2040.12.03
0710 22625 13.657 0441

Korea National

Borrawings

gt

Kowen EXIM Bank

NATEIS (%)

Ergresti debeniures

A s cibovs

muenble Bowd (%3

Urabentures Fxehy

and others

201214

ZOR02 15

163 g W 1.2

68406 30

TORE 330
pIETERY
111128

2 08, H-

RN

=X

2

JOPTARH

2L LR

AT 26

21222

EREC]

I092.140

30T

ERBER )

48536467

9338016

(*1y Shortterm financial instruments amounting o W 2400 million and W 1,670 million,
respectively, are collateral for long-term horrowings from a forestry association as of
Decomber 31, 2012 and 2011,

(*2} As of December 31, 2012 and 2011. Korea Development Bank has provided guarantees for
loans from foreign financial ingtitutions,

(%33 The Company issued exchangeable bonds with SK Telecam Co., Lid. ADRs through Zeus
(Cayman} Lid., an SPV. The Company accounted for these exchangeable bonds as long-term

borrowings.  The Company provides guarantees for Zeus (Cayman) Lid.
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FE, Other Pavables and Other Fiasncial Liabilitles
{a} Other Payables as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are ag follows:

{in millions of Won)

Z012 2811
Charven

Accounts pavable B26LT5 913
Aceraed expenges (54 427314 248 597
1,253 385 FO55.5140

Non-Current
fong-term accounts payable 38958 26871
Accrued expenses 24 6604 [9.618
113,602 106,485
W 1,366,991 1,161,999

{*1) During the vear ended December 31, 2012, a fine of W 98,326 million was imposed for
price-fizing ealvanized steel sheets as a vesult of the Korea Fair Trade Commission’s
investigation.

() Other short-term financial Bahilities as of December 31, 2002 and 2011 are as ollows:

(in milfions of Won}

g1z 2411
Financial guarantee habikties L 7,393 6,336
Dividends pavable 0,493 6,050
Finance lease liabilities 1,088 1168
Withheldings G070 8,396
Drertvative nstruments Habilites G 499 10,898
ki 33,543 33,788

{ey Other long-term financial habilities as of Drecember 31, 20072 apd 2011 sre as follows:

{in millions of Won)

2612 pA e
Financial guarantee labilities W 41,664 11,163
Dervatives habilities 31,256 12771
Finance lease Habilities 6,246 7,824
Long-term withholdings 3,964 9,052
W 58,136 40,810

44
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16. Provisions

The changes in provisions for the vears ended December 31, 2617 and 2011 were as [ollows

1y For the vear ended December 31, 2012

(fi milfions of Won) Begoinning Increase Ltilization Euding

Batimated allowance at the end of perind {*1) % 4451 24 498 (2337100 £,239
(*1} Represents the provision for bomuses.

23 For the year ended December 31, 2011

(i mifllions of Waon) Sevinning fnerease Utilization Erding

Estimated allowance at the end of period W 0582 34,864 {3160.0005 F451

E7. Employee Benefifg

The Company introduced a retirement pension program for ail emplovees in June 2011, The
emplovess and directors smploved with the Company had an option to choose whether they would

join the defined contribution plan or the defined benefit pension plan.

The pension plan benefit is

based on each emplovee’s accrued length of service, including their length of service under the

previcus severance plan,

{a) Defned coniribution plans

The Company operates a defined contribution plan for participating employees.

Though the

Company pays fixed contributions into a separate fund, employee benefits relating to employee
service in the future is based on the coniributions to the Nimds and the investment eamings on ik
Plan assets are managed by a trustee within a fund separate from the Company’s assets.

The expense related (o post-employment benetit plans under defined contribution plans for the
vear ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

(in millions of Won)

Expense refated to post-employment benefit plans
under defined contribution plang

pAIR

261t

6,80
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() Defined hen2fit plan

The Company also operates a defined benefit pension plan for emplovees.  The employees who
chose a defined benefit pension plan will receive a defined payment upon termination of their
employnrent i they folfilf the condition fo qualify as a recipient.  BEefore the termination of
employment. the Company recognizes the pension lability related to uetmcd be E;l plans at the
end of the reporting period, and measures it at the present value of the éu;md mm obligation
less the fair value of the plan asseis.  The Company uses the projected unit credit method in the
sctuarial valuation of plan assets and the defined benefit obligation.

{cy The amounis i'ee.‘ov'm?s:‘a“i iﬁ relation o defined benefit obligations in the statements of financial
posifion as of December 31, 20172 and 20171 are as follows:

{in millions of Won}

2032 2011

Present valie of unded obligations W 817618 650,321

Fair valoe of plan assets {677,362} {513,673}

Net defined benefit obligations kit 140.256 176,648
idy The 1z~m<‘r<,s in present value of defined benetii oblications for the vears ended December 31,

2012 and 2011 are as follows:
{in ndllions of Waon) 2012 20118
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of perind W HEHLA2Y FO13.165
Current service costs G3.066 OB 879
Interest costs 31.156 47,607
Actuarial losses H3,184 6,157
Benefits paid {66,109) (485 4874
Defined benefit obligation at the end of period W 817,618 69G,321
(b) ‘The changes in the fair value of plan assets {or the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are
HGWSZ

{in willions of Won) 1612 2013
Plan assets at the begiming of perind W 513,673 689,162
Expected return on plan assets 23,115 26,386
Actuarial gaing (Josses) 2732 (460)
Confributions of participants (*1} 180,000 45,086
Henels pawd {42, 1587 1 296,995)
Plan assets at the end of period W 677,362 513,673

*1y The Company expecis to make a contribution of W180,000 million to the defined benefit plan
assets in 2013

46
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(1) The fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as fbllows:

(ire millions of Wonj 2612 2611

Deposits ki 677296 513607
Cithers 66 56
Total W 677362 513673

{g) The amounts recognized in the statements of comprehensive income for the vears ended

Decenther 31, 20017 and 2011 were as follows

(i millions of Won) 201z 2811
Crrrent SETVICE COSIS W 9 (166 18,879
hiterest costs 31,156 47607
Expected return on plan assets {*1) (23.115) (26,586}
Total W 107,107 124,600
(*1} The actual return on plan assets amounted o W 25847 million and W 26,426 million for the

years ended December 31, 2017 and 2011, respectively.

The above expenses by function were as lollows:

fn mitlions of Won) pAisy 2611

Cost of sales W 85,298 08,275
Selling and adnnmstrative expenses 26,897 23853
Others 912 TATZ
Total W 107,107 129,600

(hy Actuarial gains (losses), net of tax recognized in other comprehensive income for the vear ended

December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as ollows;

(i millions of Wonj 2812 1611
Beginning i {103,947 (101,802}
Current actparal bsges (G457 (6617
Effect on change of tax vate 14628 4472
FEnding W {149,7713 (103,947)
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B
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ot
]
Bt
il
[
o,

Discount rate (%1 3.47% 4.32%
Fupected return on plan assets (%7) 4 329 3.95%
Fypected future mereases in salaries (%3) 3.30% 2.30%

(*1) Discount rate is the vield at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of our benefits obligations
and that are denominated m the same currency in which the benetits are expected o
be paid.

(%2% The overall expected rate of refure on nlan aszsets is a weighted average of the expected
returns of the various categories of plan assets held. The management’s assessment of the
expected returns is based on historical return trends and predictions of the market for the
asget over the Hie of the related obligation.

{3 The expected future increases in salaries are based on the average salary increase mte for past
three years,

All assumptions are reviewed at the end of the reporting period.  Additionally, the total
estimated defined benefit obligation includes actuarial assumptions associated with the long-
term charactenstics of the defined benefit plan.

i8. Other Liabilities

{a} Other current Habilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(in millions of Won)

2612 pAa N
Urther corrent iabilities
Advances received i 44 488 21,149
Withholdmg 20,962 25534
Unearned revenue 5415 1,772
kil 865 48455
thy Other long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2612 and 2011 are as follows:
(in millions of Wor)
2612 JRET
Oither long-term lahilities
Unearned revenie W 342 1,206
Others 3,000 3,000
ki 3,842 4,200
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ta) Classification of financial instramenis

1y Financial assets as of December 31, 2012 and 20171 are as follows:

fin millions of Won)

Folio54

1812 pAIEN
Financial assets at fak value through profil o losg
Firmneial assets held for trading - 50,132
Derivatives assets 5416 -
Avaiable-for-sale financwul asgets 3062 657 3731554
Held-to-maturity vestments 198981 29903
Loans and recetvables 5833586 6,592 644
W 9,931,640 104047238
2} Financial liabilittes as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as foliows:
(i millions of Won)
1012 2011
Financial Habiliies at fair valie through orofi or loss:
Derivatives Habilities held for tading ke 3755 23 669
Financial liabilitles evaloated as amortized cost:
Frade accounts payable 978,581 1,395,846
Borrowings O.603.774 11,632,396
Fmancial guarantes Habilities (1) 49457 17,4499
Others 1,300,526 1,195429
11,931,938 14,241,170
W 11.972.693 14 264,839
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(*1) Financial gouarantes contracts recognized in financial guarantee liabilities as of December 31

20172 are as follows:
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(i melilions of Won)
Goarantee beneficiary

Fiuancizl institution

Folio52

Forelon curvency

Won eguivalent

CGuangdong Pohang

Car Steed Co., Lid,

BESTERL POSCO Cold Relled

POSCO ASSANTST Y
POSCO Fleetrical Steel India Private Limited
POSCO Investment Co, Lid

CEL Dndustey

POSCD-Mexeo SA DECWV

CO-Vietmam Co., Lid
POSCG-YVST Co., Lid

POSUK Tiapium LLP
PTOKRAKATAL POSCO

United Spiral Pipe, LLO

ANL
BOA
Y]
NG
SMBC

Construction Bank

Comstruciion Bank
China Banl
Ching Bank
BT

s of Blopes

S

HSBC

[HG

S

SCB

KR

SMBC and others
NG angd othors
KB

BOA

BGC

BT L

FisBc

HSBC

NG

SCR

SkiBC

BOA

HSBC

DB
MIZUTHO
SKBC
Export-Import Banl of Rores
ANZ

HSBC
W2
Shindan Bank

e pori-fraport Bank of Koves
ANZ
BTRL]

redil Suisse AG

HSBC

The Tokva Sar Bank, Lid
MZUHO

SCH

ShBC

Shinhan Bank

2612 and 2011 were as follows:

LA
—

[BE1S
LisD
S
CNY
LISEs
YR
LSE
LISEY
LISy
LIST
LISy
UsD
LISD
LISD
LISTy

FO000404
SOO0G.000
24 008,000
3600000

F12.500,000
SEG000
TG 000
RERTY SN ED
O00.000G
L0000

PR 0000
0 (O8O0
HHLOO0000
SELO0GO00
OG0
44,000,600
33,000,000
36,000,000
188,392 500
{4, 000,000
TOOM0,000
46,000,000

IAL.000,000

30,005,000
20600 000
FOEL.O60, 000

H3000.000

ERELEREEY

2E0.000

40,000,006

SL00006

0,606,000

45 D0U000

a49,725 000
JOOL00G.000

5000000

20,000,000

HLOOGO00

LT

37 459

Lo e
19,337

44 266
107,116
R5.68%
32,133

201,787
89977
74977
42,844
G158
32,133

53,555
48,200
TA682
214,220
26,778
21422

21422

ISt (000000 19,280
Us 0,000,000 524,839
Usp 87,500,600 93.721
USH FE000,000) 127461
UsD O 00,004 97470
Usn 91,000,000 57 476
VST 21,060,541 32493
UsD 115,000,000 12,466
UsD 86,800,000 42971
UsD 119,000,000 127,461
LSD 2500000 26,242
UsD 325,497,500 3486,964
CNY 469,600,000 80,715
MYR 240,000,000 83,952
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As of December 31, 2012
(1 Eleceimber 31, 2012
Hisni oy .
i Fipsnee inciame aod costs
Gabs andToss  Gain wod loss
Inferesy o foreign or forelgn {agba and by
fntorae ividend SHFTeHY CUFFEREY fsg au camprebensive
oS imcome {1y trangactions ranstations disposal Others (42 Tirtad 0ss
{cosey 1 £ t bzt disposal 3k z Folad i
et
113385y
PF6.393 -
W 114 857 (3,002 6 (153 315)

(*13 Finance ncome in the statement of comprehensive ncome includes the dividends from

1

subsidiaries and associates of W 112

514 mallion tor the ve
(%2} Others redated to available-for-sale finencial assets mainly represe

December 31, 2011

i agiliens of Wani

inance [peome s cosiy

ar ended December 31, 2012,
ent mmpairent losses.

Gobwand loss  Gada and toss
au fhreign v foreign
CIETEngy

Cradn and
Tuss on
disnasut

Brividend

[3EEautls

CEFTCESY

[easit income (Y13 irsnsaciions feanstations (hers (2

. _ .
- £3200)
158t -

10 409 - HERRES TEN (5453 117495y 03002

B 16,745y

(AT SREY L {173,288 v (87,4975 LA 2163

ki t31A518 133511 (165313 Ry LI i§313.386 (364727

{*1} Finance mcome m the staterment § cotnprehensgive

-

subsidiaries and associates of W 13

{*2) Oihery related to available-for- sa% financial assets wainly represent impairm

LA
b3

income includes the dividends from
1418 nﬂ]imz tor the vear ended December 31, 2011,
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{by Credis risk

by Credit risk exposure

The carrving amount of financial assets represents the Company's maxinum exposurs (o credit
risk. The maximum exposures 1o credit risk as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as [ollows:

(i millicne of Won)

Cash and cash equivalents

Financialassets at Bor valse through orofil or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity mvestments

Loans and other receivables

Trade accounts and notes receivable

Long-term trade accounts and notes receivable

1612

i b,752.560 L137.882
G016 30,132

119,142 15.545

29,981 29,903

993727 1,234,497

1087030 4220242

274 24

W 6983725 6,688,225

The Company provided financial guarantees for the repayiment of loans of subsidiaries and
associates. s of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the maximum exposure (o credit risk amounted to

AL

WO3,651.631 million and W

2y Impairment losses on financial assets

1,500,058 million, respectively.

1 Allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as fellows:

{in millions of Won)

Accous recevable
Other aeooumnis receivable
bong-term loans

ther assets

(27 hmpatrment losses on finenctal assets for th

as tollows:

in millions of Won)

{Reversal ofy bad debt expenssas
Reversal of other had debt expenses

20172 pA N
W 12,204 2173
13,571 1571
14,453 14,453

15 3

W 37.24%

2812

2011

ihas 1613

(2,753}
51

- (o1}

i 10613

{2804y

vears ended December 31, 2072 and 2011 were
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3 The aging schedule and the mpaired o

Drecember 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

es of trade sccounts and notes recelvable ag of

(i millions of Won) 6812 2611

Trade accomts and Trade accounts
notes receivable Impament and notes Fropairment

Mot due W 3758 894 - 3,890,405
Crver due less than T oonth 120,848 11 EALENIR -
I month - 3 monghs FO3 407 584 69.962 -
3 moenths - 12 months LG2 255 0,458 43571 -
Over 17 months 14,104 2151 P 921 2173

7 4,099 508 12,204 4,202 439 2,173
4) Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and

2011 were as follows:
tin millions of Won) 2682 281}
Begmnming W 27242 30613
(Reversat of) bad debt expenses HIREE {2,804}
Others {534 3
Ending ki 37,241 27212
{o) Liquidity risk
fin milfions of Wen Contraciual Within 3 weiles & el i year Late v thus
- Book vaiue cash fow (*3) 3 mnths - & monthe -1 vear - & vears & vears

Waorr-deri,

Traide FTRAR] T AST . .
TH{BG003 G583 [ NES EREE 3342008 ERE AR

Iasted!

1I07.158

174024 352

(%1} includes cash flows of embedded derbvatives Instrumentz in relation o exchangeable bonds (exchange
righi).

(¥2} For issued financial goarantee condracts, the maxdmum ameant of the guarantee 8 allocated o the
earhisst period in which the guarantee could be called.

{*3§ Includes estimated inferest.
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{d) Currency rigk

1y The Company has exposute to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctaate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.  The exposure (o currency
risk as of December 31, 2017 and 2011 is as (ollows:

(ine millions of Won) 2612 2611
Asgsets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
HEUR i 25127 5,554 23,766 11444
s H76.780 4 544 358 288,806 5,842,319
IPY 62,607 LRE3 ST 33,627 2129994
Oihers 46,306 149 1363 13,396
W 1010815 6,468 777 897676 702 357

7Y As of December 31, 2017 and 2011, wovided that furctional currency agamst foreign
i
currencies other than functional cwrrency hypothetically sflf.iif rthens or weakens by 10%, the
changes in gain or foss during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(i millions of Wonj 2612 PALEE

10% ncrease 1%, decrease PG ncrease 109 decrease
HETR i 1,957 {1,957 1,234 {1.234y
HR (372,278 722708 {495 347 495 342
my (180,090 186,091 (Z04,637) 204.637

(&) Interest rate visk

[} The book value of interest-bearing financial instruments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are
as follows:
(in millions of Wonj I6E2 PALER
Fixed rate
Francial assets W 2I82.347 2EA6 554
Fmancial Habihties {9,508 584y (11,525,827,
ki (6,756,647) (9.236273)

Yarmble rate
Firancial Hahilities N (94,7907 {106,569}

2} Sensitivity analysis on the fair value of financial instruments with hixed intevest rate

The Company does not account for derivative instruments such as interest swaps as hedges in fair
value hedging accounting.  Therefore, fluctuations in interest rates do not affect gain or loss,
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3% Sensitivity analvsis on the fair value of financial instruments with variable interest rate

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, provided that other factors vemain the same and the inter
rate of borrowings with floating rates ncreases or decreases by 1%, the changes in interest exper
during vear ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

;_)

(in millions of Won) 2812 2611

1% merease 1% decrease 1% mxrease 1% decrease

Yariable rate . o o
SR (945) 945 (1.066) 066
fnancihl nstrnments

{3 Fair value
1y Fair value and book value

The czirz‘yiﬁﬁ aracant and the fair value of finencial instruments as of Drecember 31, 2012 and 2011
are as follows:

(in millions of Won} 2012 2011

Baok valie Fair value Book vale Falr value

Aswats measured at falr vake

Firancial assets held for radng - - 0132 SHIR2
Available-for-sale fnancial assets (5D I RER 66 2 R53766 3 h“\i 357 3630357
Dertvatives assets (¥2) 6016 GG - -
2859782 28350782 3680489 3630489

Assets measured amortiged cost (53)

Cash and cosh equivalents i, 752 560 1752568 1137882 LI R2
Trade accounts and note receivable 4087304 4087 304 4220266 230,266
Loans and other recetvables G93722 1234497 12344697
Held-to-maturity nvesiments 29581 289 981 29903 29,903

6,863 567 863,567 6,622 548 5,622,548
Eiabilities measured fair value

Dierivatives Babilities (*2) 40,755 40,753 23,669 23669

Liabilities meesured amortised cost (%3}
Trade accounts pavable 978,581 978 SR 1,395,846 1,395 845
Baorrowmngs B 63,774 T 1a5 758 FE632,34% F2.048132
Firamncial guarantee Babiliies SH05T 49057 17489 17,494
Cithers | 300 526 1 30526 1195426 1195429
W 11931038 12473515 14241170 14,656,926

*13 The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets publicly traded is measured at the closing
bid price quoted at the end of the reporting period. Meanwhile, the fair value of unquoted
available-for-sale financial assets is calculated using the valuation resuits from an extemal
pricing serviee in which weighted average borrowing rates of interest of evaluated companies
are used as a discount rate.

(*2) The fair value of derivatives is measured using valuation maodels such as Black-scholes model
and ofhers in which the market yields on government bonds are used as a discount rate.
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{*23} The fair value of financial assets and lHabilities messured ot amortized cost s determined at
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market interest rate.
The fair value is calculated for the disclosures in the notes. On the other hand, the Company
has not performed fair value measurement for the financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortized cost except borrowings since the fair value is close to thelr carrving amounts,

2% Interest rate for detenmiming oy value
Interest rates to discount the asstimated cash fTows as of December 31, 2017 and 2011 are as
foltows:

2617 2011
Borrow mgs P47 ~ 450 P80~ 4,62

3y The fair value hicrarchy
0y The Company classifies [air value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the

sigmificance of the inputs used in measurements.

Level 11 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities.

Level 20 inputs, other than quoted prices. that are observable for the asset or Hability.
cither directly or indirectly.

Level 31 inputs for the asset or Hability that are not based on observable market data
{that 15, unobservable mputs).

(20 The fair value mcasurements classified by fair value hievarchy as of December 31, 2012 and
2011 are as follows:

#. December 31, 2012

fin mitlions of Won) Fevell Poevel 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Asgets

Available-for-eale fneancial ngsets i 2,182,741 - A71025 2R53T66
Derivatives assets - 5,016 - 6016
W 2,182,741 G316 671025 2830782

Financial Linhilities

Drerivatives labilities held tor trading ¥ - 3,755 - 40755

b, December 31, 2011

(it millions of Won) Level i levell Leveld Total
Financial Assets
Financial assels held for trading - 50152 - 0,132
Available-Tor-sale nancial assets 2774838 - 855519 3630357
W 2774838 50,132 %53519 3680489
Famancial Liabilities
PDrerivatives liabilitles held for rading W - 23659 - 33660

i
-~
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% Changes in hmmu&i assets clagsified as level 3 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 were as follows

(inn wiillions of Won) 2017 2011

Beginning W 353,519 603,747
Change to level 3 8,372 98,242
Uther comprehensive ncoms {192 566Y 153530
Erling W G711 025 833310

20. Share Capital and Capital Surplus

(a} Share capital ag of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(share, Won)

2412 201
Avthorized shaves 200,000,000 200,000,000
Par value 3,000 3,000
Issued shares %1} 87,186,835 87,186,835
Shared capiial (%2} ¥ 482.403.125 000 482 403,125 000
{*1) As of December 31, 2012, tofal shares of ADRs of 32,294,944 are equivalent 0 13,823,736 of

comimnon stock.

(*2) As of December 31, 2012, the difference between the ending balance of commoen stock and
the par value of issued commmon stock is W46.469 million due to retivement of 9,293,790
{reasury stocks.

{b) The changes in issued common stock for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:

{share) 345312 iy
Murbor of Treasury Mudor of
lwsuedyhares Treagury shares sgs trmE e shares fesired yharey sharey autsianding sl

7R

2351 TR Al

186835 19047 301} 17244444 37186833
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{3y Capital surplus as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are a5 follows:

(i mitlions of Woin)

2012 2011
Share premam W 463,825 463,825
Ciain on disposal of treasury shares 763,667 763 867
W 1227692 1227692

1. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

{#y Accumulated other comprehensive mcome as of December 31, 2017 and 2011 is comprised of the
following:

fin mitlions of Won) L1012 2611

Accunmibated changes m the wwrealized far value

of availible-for-sale mvestments, net of fax W 3,362 136,707

(b} The changes in the accumulated wnreatized fair value of available-for-sale fmvestments for the
vears ended December 31, 2612 and 2011 were as follows:

{in millions of Won) 1612 2011
Reginning balance ki 156,707 1079038
Changes in the unrealized fakr value of available-for-sale nvestments (206,555} (769627}
Rechssification o profit or loss upon disposal (75518) (331,977
Impairment of available-Tor-sale securities 63,466 (75,4803
Tax effects 63,262 254,753
Ending bakmee ki 31362 156,707

5
&
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22, Freasury Shaves

Based on the Board of Director’s resolution, the Company holds (reasury shares for the business
purp(}ﬁt,s including price stabilization. The changes in ireasury shares for the vears ended December
31,2002 and 2011 are as follows:

(share, in millions of Won) 012 2611
Mumber of MNumber of
shares Armnount shares Amount
Begiming 9,547 391 ki 2.391,406 HiL153957 W 2403263
Acqustion of treasury shares - . F3E38G 61,296
IHsposal of treasury shares - (342955} {73,153
Endmg 2042301 W 2,391,306 Do47 307 W 2,391 406
23, Retained Earnings
{ay Retained earnings as of December 31, 2017 and 2011 are summarized as follows:
tin millions of Won) by pI13 R
Legal reserve W 241262 241,202
Reserve for busmess rationalization QIR 300 918300
Reserve for research and manpower development 1,530,008 1.333333
Appropriated retamed earnings for business expansion 32,710,500 26,507 560
Appropriated retained carnings for dividends 1,858,726 1,626,993
Unappropriated retamed earmings 2 583769 TAGE 297
W 39,842,497 38102620
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(b} Statements of appropriation of retained esrnings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as

follows:

(i millions of Won) 1012 2011
Hetained earnings hefore appropriation

Unappropriated retained earnings carried over from prior vear W 184539 4,501,703
Actuarial losses (45 8243 (2,145
Interin dividends (154489 {193,111

Dividends (ratio} per share
V2,000 (40%) In 2012
W2,500 (50%) n 2011

Brofit for the period 2,409 573 3,188.8435
2583764 7495267

Transfer from discretionary reserve

Reserve for vesearch and human resource development 266 667 133333
Appropristion of retained eaynings
Cash dividends (da3 46T (579330
Dividends (ratiog per share
W OO0 (120%) in 2012
W7 500 (150%) in 2011
Regerve for research and human developmen (3100008 {330.000)
Appropriated retamed earnmgs for husiness expansion (16000000 {6,203,000)
Appropriated retained earnmngs for dividends (185,387) (231733)
(2,558 8543 {7.344.066)
Unappropriated retained earnings carried
forward to subsequent year W 201,582 284,559

The date of appropriation tor 2012 is expected to be March 22, 2013 and the date of appropriation for
2011 was March 16, 2012,

24, Hevepue

Petails of revenue for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as [oilows:

(in millions of Wonl 2017 2611
Revermes
Goods W 35,552,319 39.083,347
Others 112,614 37.861
7 35664933 39,171,703

&1
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15, Selling and Administrative Expenses

{a} Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses for the vear ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were ag follows:
(in millions of Won) 212 I01¢
Wages and salaries 182,363 159201
Hxpenses related to defined benef# plan 21666 26,254
Other employee benefits GLERD 6720
Travel 15,666 RN
Depreciation 24,733 22,57
Amortization 18,214 16,050
Rental 41,332 37513
Repairs 14,080 17,988
Advertising 102,744 94,958
Research & development 136537 146,745
Service fees 154,363 163,396
Supplies 4,943 5,568
Vehicles maintenance 7153 7220
Industry association fee 7.364 6,778
Training 12,007 20,301
Conference 5178 5,564
{Reversal of) bad debt expenses 10613 {2,753
Others 34.39G 30,183

W 853,908 546,332

(b} Selling expenses
Selling expenses for the vear ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 werse ag follows:
(i miillions of Wan) 2412 1611
Freight and custody expenses W FTIAGD 826,147
Operating expenses for distribution center 8,935 7.804
Sales commissions 75267 03,463
Sales advertising 4,168 920
Sales promotion 6,246 5,148
Sample 1,832 2611
Sales nswrance premium G578 11,089

kid 979 528 G17.182
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26. Researeh and Development Expenditures Recogrized as Eupense

Research and development expenditures recognized as expense for the

2082 and 2011 were as follows:
fin millions of Won)

elling and adpibstrative expenses

Cfm;i' of sales

7. Adjusted Operating Profit

Adjusted operating profits which include the other protits
reflect the results of the Company’s operations for the years ended December 31

as follows:

fir miiffions of Woun)

Operating profit on the statement of comprehensive moome
Addd

Gain on disposale of property, plant, and equipment

Giaine o disposaly of other long-term asseds

Ciain on disposals of miangible assets

Gamn on disposals of nvestiment in subsidiaries and associates

Reversal of mmpairment of property, plant, and equipment
CGain on disposals of assets held for sale
Miseellaneous hoome

Dioduct
Loss on disposals of property, plant, and equipment
Reversal of other bad debt expenses
ypaiment loss of property, plant, and equipment
ass on disposals of ather fong-term assets
wpairment loss of ntangible asssets

ass o disposals of Intangble asssets

dip rangible assels expenses

mpaimnent koss of mvestinent in subsidinries and assoclates

t
i
I
3
Dronations
I
b
ass on disposals of mvestment i subsidiavies and agsociates
£

os5 on disposak of aseets held for sale
Miscelaneous loss

Adiusted operating profa

=

vears ended Drecember 31,

612 1611
Y 136,537 EIWEN
376,650 362,765
W 513,187 569510
excluded in operating profit b

L0 and 2011 wers

162 2011

¥ 2789597 4,330,342
I7088 163 840

213 -

- 28

3693 E

1606 -

1150 -

30387 34043

69,737 45,640

{84990 (G174

- 51

- {24 810}

{13 -

{6,493 -

(617 (3240

(62,684} (50,787
{30,743y (16,568}

{1102y -

(17.575) .

(8, .

(120,573 XTI
334301) u TH G
W 2525033 4.196.00¢

e
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28, Fipance Income and Costs

Pretails of finance income and costs for the vear ended December 31, 2012 and 2001 were as follows:
{in millions of Wonj 2812 611

Finance meome

Interest income ki 113813 104,026
Dividend income 223411 67,5359
Gains on disposal of financial assets held for trading 356 2,084
Gams on derivative fransactions - 69
Crains on foreign currency transactions Flesaz 495251
Cratng on foreign currency rransiations (39,565 33,456
Chains on disposal of available-for-sale securities Ga 44 331,910
Others 6,111 4285
1,356,539 1,240,359

Finance costs
Interest expenses 391,767 426,538
Losses on foreigs cwmency Tansactions 213350 604,872
Losses on {oreign currency translations 35219 206,764
Empairment of available-for-sale securities 63,466 107377
Crihers 55489 3712
W 759,201 1,376,668
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29, Other MNon-Operating income and Expenses
{ay Other non-onerating incoms

Details of other non-operating income for the years
follows:

(in millions of Wonp

Giain on disposals of property, plant and equimment
Galn on digposaly of other long-term assels
Cam on disposals of intangble assets

Gain on disgposals of mvestment i subsidinries snd associates

Reversal of impaimment of properiy, plant, and equipment
Gam on disposale of assets held for sale
Miscellaneous income {13

ended December 21, 2017 and 2011

2612 1011
W 27,648 10,840
713 -
. 18
8,693 719
1606 -
1150 .
360,387 34,043
W 69,737 45 640

(*1) Miscellaneous meome mainly includes fncome from technology sales, management service fee

and gain on disposals of wastes,

b} Other non-operating expenses

Details of non-other operating expenses for the vemrs ended December 31

follows:
{in millions of Won)

F.oss on disposals of property, plant, and equipmesn
Reversal of other bad debt expenses

hinpawment loss of property, plant, and equipment
Loss on disposals of other long-term asseis
Impaiment loss of nangble assets

Poss on disposals of miangible assets

Donations

Edle tangible assets expenses

Tmpaiment jogs of investment in subsidiaries and associates

Loss on disposals of Bvestment in subsidiaries and associates

Loss on disposaks of assets held fov sale

Miscellaneous foss (%1

L2012 and 2011 are as

2012 2011
W 84,990 60,174
{51}
- 24816
34 -
5495 -
617 320
62,684 50,737
30,743 16,563
102 .
17.575
9,391 ]
126,573 27,379
W 334101 179993

(*1y During the year ended December 31, 2012, a fine of W 98326 million was imposed {or

price-fiximg g
mvestigation.

aalvanized steel sheets ag a result of the Korea Fair Trade Commission’s
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30. Fxpenses by Nature

Expenses that are recorded by nabwre as cost of sales, selling, general and administralive expenses and
other expenses in the statements of income for the vears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as
follows (excluding finance costs and incomne (ax expensel:

{in miillions of Worn) 2017 PALE S
Changes  nventories (F1) W 570,136 (7538443
Raw materiak and conswmnables used ZAEN 512 27336030
Emplovee benefits sxpenses (%3} F.335.949 1,233,462
Crutsourced processing cost 1,996,507 1,943,567
Depreciation (¥2) {240,807 1,738,466
Amortization 40,386 34757
Ovdinary research & development expenses 313,187 300,510
Flectricity and water expenses 634 045 G2 806
Service fees 218019 231404
Advertismg expenses 102,744 94,958
Freight and cusiody expenses B73482 526,147
Cotnimission paid 75207 63,463
Lass on disposal of property, plant, and equipment hERY 6,174
Other expenses 833466 F100475
W 33209 637 35071315

{*1y Changes in inventories are the changes in product, semi-finished products and by-product.

(%23 Includes depreciation of investment property.

(*3) The details of emplovee benefits expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 261
were as follows:

Ju—

(i mwillions of Won) 2612 I61t

Wages and salarics W 1215810 1.097.0655

Fypense related o defined benetit plan 120,139 136 407
W 1,335,949 1,233,462

31, Income Vaxes

{a} Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

(i millions af Won) 2412 ALY
Current income taxes (1) W 212007 325374
Breferred income (axes 330,740 114353
Less: ftems credited directly in shareholders' equty 79,891 237,148
Income tax expense it 522758 376873

(*1) Additional tax payments ansing fom Onabized tax assessment are added or deducted in
current income taxes.
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(hy The expected amount of income tax expense based on stalutory rates compared to the actual
amount of taxes recorded by the Company [or the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was
as follows:

(in millions of Won) 2012 LA

Profil before ncome tax expense W 281 4065720

Income tax expense compuied at statutory rate 8% 983,878

Adjustents: A3y {107 003y
Tax credits 39 (174057
Additional payment of come 1axes 3328 1088
Effect of tax rate change - 53 4359
Tax etfects due 0 pormanent differences 29727 6,408
Others (15,7453 5,609

Income tax expense ki 622,758 876,875

Effective tax rate (%) 19.9% 21.6%

(¢} The income taxes credited (charged) directly 1o equity For the vears ended Decomber 31, 2012 and
2011 were ag follows:

(in mittions of Won) 2012 2611

Net changes in the unrealized falr vale of available-Tor-sale securities W 65,362 054753

Drefined benelit plan actuarial losses X 4473

Gain on disposal of freasury shares - (22078
W 79,891 237,148
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{d} The movements in deferred tax asseis (Habilities) for the vears en

2011 are as follows:

(Bt mifiions of Won) i3y

Gt

ded December 31, 2012 and

Brec.3l, 2611 fnciDecy Pec.3i, 2612

Dee X, 1650

Ine{llec)

Becdl, 2611

Beferved ncome fax due t
temporary Bfferences

Reserve oy special repmis P (29650 EE TS IR (277750 (1LEE 129659
Reserve for fochnolay
develbpmens (A58 160Y (H 48T (368 6473 (22640005 (L6605 (358, 16t
Lepseciation 63,228y 6,834 (35304 (65.129; 1501 GR228)
Prepaid expenses 21.879 7,902 0751 1R85 3038 21,879
Revalustion of
prapesty, plant ad eguipara {533205) (235851 {T89.056) (345038 (208,147} {353,203}
Loag oy foveigrs currency
razslation G351 (146,419 152,508 41,066 93911
Drefined bepel oblgatons 1677738 54871 137 550 136,271 1437 718
Plan assets {12430} (30,616 (161,152 (P A0) 26876 (124.530)
Acerued revene 12304y (261) (2.575%) {6,600 4280 (2314
Crhers 233 880 (121211 162,669 332026 (4%,246) 233,884
(628 654 (480,642 (1,109,336} (297 555) (331,039} (628.604)
Breferred tax from tay credit
Fadcredit canylovwand 196,986 264977 239.526 (42,540) 196,986
196,988 69,5491 266977 230526 (42,540 196985
Deferved income (ases
recagiized divectly to equity
Loss (gain) on vahaiion of
avetlible-for- sale securities {50,030 63262 15,232 (304,743 234753 (50030
Drefined bereft plan
actuaril kisses 33,186 14,625 47,815 K 4,473 33,186
{16,844} 79,891 3,047 (276,070 250326 (16,8443
W (448552 (336,766) (TT9.312) (334,199 (114353 (448 553y
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(e} Dreferred tax assets (Habilities) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

iin militons of Won)

Beferred income tax due to
temporary differences

Reserve v special repais

Reserve By iechnslogy
developrenis

Depreciation

Fropekd oxpensos

Revalmtion of
property, plen and egquigment

Losg o felen currenoy
ranslation

Defined benefit obligations

Plan assets

Acerued revenue

Cribers

Deferred (ay From tax credif

Vex credit carrvibrward

[referred income faxes
vecognbed diveetly {o cquity

s (gaing on vahatiog of
avaiinhie. e sale scouriies
Defined benedlt plan

aciuarial bases

612 PIY
Agseis Eiahilities Met Asapis Linhilities Hei
- 2903 A0 - 29,659 (29,650
“ RN (368,647 - ERS Al (338,160
69 767 {36394 F3.601 TH ERY
2GR 2EAT0 -
TRY (54 {TRG 56 553205 {353.20%)
[RDRIEE] 3281 {32508y 173,776 AR G307
137,589 - 157,559 j02.738 - M2 738
- [&1,132 (laiisdy 124 336 (1243365
- 35758 (2575 2atd {23145
569 505 403 B35 162,664 383,544 299 6611 383 880
G260 301 2028 637 (E1GY 336y AT 504 1,526 238 (028,654
266977 - 266977 196,956 - 196,486
366,977 - 26697 1940586 196,986
R7.249 TROET {5,232 - 20,030 (30,030
47,815 - 47,515 13186 - 33,186
135,064 72,017 63,047 33,186 30,030 (16,844)
i 1,322,342 2,101 654 {779,312 127766 1578318 {448 8523
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3%. Barningy per Share

{a} Basic and diluted earnings per share for the vears ended Decernbor 31, 2012 and 2611 were as
folfows:

{in millions of Won

excepl per share information) 2812 2011
Profit for the period W 2A59573 3188845
Weighted-average number of

comimorn shares outstanding (%1 77 204 ddd 77251518
Basic and difuted carnmgs per share 32,350 41,279

{*1} The weighted-average number of common shares used to caleulate basic and diluted earnings
per share are as follows:

{share) pAI I A T
Total number of conmmon shares 1ssued 47,186,835 87,186,835
Weighted-average number of treasury stock (9,942 391 {D.935.017)

Weighted-average muanber of
common stock outsianding 77244444 77251818
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33 Relnted Party Transactions

{2) Significant transactions with related companies for the year ended

are a5 follows:

G millions of Won)

Subsidiaries (73}

POSCO Costed & Color Steel Co., Lid,

POSCO ICT Cou Bid

POSCO Chentech Company Lid

POSCO Miech Company Lid

POSCO TMC Co., Lud

POSCO AST Co, L

Paewaoo ternatonal Comp.

POSCO NST Co, Ld

POSCO America Corporation

POSCO Canada Lid

POSCO Asia Co, Lid

POSCO-Japan Co., Lid

POSCO-IPPC Pyt L

POSCO-Mexico Co, Lid

Dacwaoo Tnternatonal Singapore Pre. Lid,

POSCO Mabarashira Steel P, Lid.

PO
Processing Center Co, Ltd,

FOSCO-Thailand Bangkok
Processing Center Co. Lid

¥ {Ruzhou} Automotive

{kthers

Associates (*33
Posmmate Co., Lid
SHNC Co., Lid,
SUMNCGHN GEOTEC €O LT,
DONG BANG METAL IND.CO LYD.
POSCO SAMSUNG Suzhou Steel

Processing Center Co., Ltd,

LISS-POSCO idustries (UPT

Poschromed Proprietary} Bid.

Cithers

(*1) Sales and others include sales and insignificant other non-operating ncome.

Sales and others (1)

Precember 31, 2012 and 2011

Purchase and others £%2)

2012

2011

2012

2011

& 28,110 1653 W 1451086 F687.665
497,031 Ligloeg 1,395,801 406,245
SITRER 593,656 6,496 1,590

1547 1537 468915 507,883
511517 423,643 798,150 755,515
27,906 353 318548 32
2H235 31 £
278463 54 38,647

4271450 (5 15731
212,536 1618
50 733 i
205329 780,047
1929504 2029781 167313 178,395
1 439,550 F628069 38710 24,860
F6 AR 3 148,343 is .
338645 M7015 492 176
- 73471 149,029

155,642 2,346 -

128,974 19778 .
119,274 96,288 182 63
749,754 9834 954,105 986,196
12,701,078 (2233303 5.888,264 6273489

22,044 1038 46,055 53357

251 4787 379050 447,130
27,697 1451 - -
§0.004 34,748 -

26,280 13,974 -

% 342,594 101 29
58 63,079 72,502

37,700 59,021 14311 6087
205469 S60.613 507,599 579,405

W 12606547 12793918 W 5395863 6,857,594

mainly sales of steel products and these are priced on an arm’s length basis,
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(2} Purchases and others imclude purchases and overhead cosis. Purchases and others are
mainly related o purchases of construction services and purchases of raw materialy w©
manufacture steel products.  These are priced on an arm’s lenuth basis.

{(¥3}  Asof December 31, 2012, the Company provided gusraniess o related parties (note 19).

(b) The related account balances of significant fransactions with related companies as of December 31,
2012 and 2011 are as foilows:
Pavables (%1}

i miflions of Won) Hecelvables (¥1}

pig Y pA 282 I61E
Subsidiariey
POSCO B&C Co., Lid, L 7.977 £47 W 403 630 241918
POSCO Processing & Service o, Lid. 64,564 83838 32672 1512
POSCO Plantee Co., Lid. 267 65 32247 42,334
POSCOICT Co., Ld 287 Ll 91,267 A2.3R83
POSCO Coated & Color Steel Co,, Lid 118,505 H1a 252 15618 333
POSCO Chemiech Company Lid. 47674 37808 24538 32048
POSCO TMC Co., Lid, 64,862 21401 145 134
POSCO AST Co., Lid 63,375 33,766 7.800 7090
Daewoo Infternational Clorp, 353824 284,125 730 1,389
POSCO NST Co., Lid - 64012 - 676
POSCO America Corporation #3.545 32345 -
POSCO Asia Co., Lid 12,849 137476 3244 1407
POSCO-TBPC Co., Lid 17686 T7AR1 - -
Qmgdao Pohangz Mainless Steel Co, Ltd. R.71G 6,713 - -
POSCO-Vietnam Co., Ltd, 291 422 - “
POSCO-Fapan Co., Ld. 35400 32362 673 1,346
POSCO-IPPC Pyi. Ltd. - 1484 - -
POSCO-Mexico Co., Lid 131.66% 171,908 - -
Others 127,626 81255 115817 83,201
1,206,011 1,249.501 774461 526,573
Agsociates

Posmate Co., Lid, 78 - 6,315 7,198
SNMNC Co., Lid, 239 223 37,145 23,187
DONGBANG METAL IND.CG LT - 17038 - -

SUNGHN GEOTEC COLLTD. 4 849 4,122 -
Pogchrame Py, Tud, - - 2273 -
Orthers 453 - B0 209
5,609 21,383 46,537 31,194
W 1,211,620 1,271,374 i 220 998 357,767

(*1} Feceivabies incinde trade accounts and notes receivable and other receivables. Payables
inclede trade accounts pavable and other pavables,

~3
b
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(¢} For the years ended December 31, 20172 and 2011, details of compensation to kev management
officers are as follows:

fin millions of Won) 1617 PALE &
Short-terin benelils W 34,471 79371
Other long-term benefis 14,934 21,905
Retrement benefils 6,644 7428
il 56,049 58,704

Key management officers include divectors {inchiding non-standing divectors), exccuiive officials and

fellow officials who have significant influence and responsibilities in the Company's business and
operations.  In addition to the compensation described above, the Company provided stock
appreciation rights to its executive officers and recorded stock compensation cxpenses amounted 1o
¥ 436 million and reversal of stock compensation expenses amounted to % 4,223 million for the
years ended Pecember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

34, Commitments and Contingencies

{ay Contingent labilities
Contingent liabilities may develop in a way neot initally expected. Therefore, management
continuously assesses contingent liabilities (o determine whether an outflow of resources
embodying cconomic benefits has become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of
future economic benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability,
a provision is recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change in
probability occurs (except in the exiremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be
made),

Management makes estimates and assumptions that affect disclosures of commitments and
contingencies. All estimates and assuniptions are based on the evatuation of current circumstances
and appraisals with the supports of internal specialists or external consuitanis.

Management regularly analyzes current information about these matters and provides provisions
for probable contingent losses including the estimate of legal expense to reselve the matters.
Internal and external lawyers are used for these assessiments. In making the decision regarding the
need for provisions, management considers the degree of probability of an unfavorable outcome

and the ability to make a sufficiently religble estimate of the amount of loss.
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{hy Commitment

The Company entered info long-term coniracts to purchase iron ore, coal. nickel and others.  The
contracts of iron ore and coal generally have terms of more than three vests and the contracts of
aickel have terms of more than one year.  These contracts provide for periodic price adjustiments
based on the market price.  As of December 31, 2012, 217 million tong of iron ore and 27 million
tons of coal remained to be purchased under such long-term contracts.

The Company entered into an agreement with Tangouh Liguefied Natura! Gas (LNG) Consortium
in Indenesia to purchase 550 thousand tons of LNG annually for 20 vears commencing i August
204U5.  The purchase price is subject fo change, based on changes of the monthly standard ol
price {JCCY and with a price ceiling,

As of December 31, 2012, the Company entered into commitments with Korea National (il
Corporation for long-term foreign currency borrowings, which are limited up to the amount of
USD 6.86 million, USD 3.54 million and USD 4.12 million.  The borrowings are related to the
exploration of gas hydrates in Aral Sea, Uzbekistan, the exploration of gas hydrates in Namangan-
Chust and the exploration of gas hydrates in Western Fergana-Chenavard, respectively.  The
repayment of the borrowings depends on the sucecess of the projects.  The Company is not liable
for the repayment of full or part of the money borrowed if the respective projects fail.  The
Company has agreed to pay a certzin portion of ity profits under certain conditions, as defined by
the borrowing agresments.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company has provided two blank promissory notes and a blank
check to Korea Resources Corporation as collateral for long-term domestic borrowings, and has
provided six blank promissory notes and three blank checks fo Korea National Oil Corporation as
collateral for long-term foreign currency borrowings,

(¢} Litigation in progress
1) Civil lawsuits with Nippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Corporation

During the vear ended December 31, 2012, Nippon Steel & Swmitomo Metal Corporation had
filed civil lawsuits against POSCO and POSCO Japan Co., Ltd., 2 subsidiary of POSCO.
relating to claims of prohibiting production and sales of grain oriented electrical steel sheets
used improper acquiring trade secrets and of secking compensation worth W 1,230 billion in
Tokyo District Court, Japan.  Through first and second trials in October and December 2012,
the Company submitted s answer (o claim that Japan court didn’t have a jurisdiction on this
lawsuit as it should be mdged by Korean law and the Company developed a grain oriented
electrical steel sheets by the Company’s own technologies.  As of December 31, 2012, Fapan
court hasn 't made any judgment.

in addition, MNippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Corporation had filed civil lawsnits against
POSCO and POSCO America Co. Lid., a subsidiary of POSCO, relating to claims of
infringement of intellectual property rights related to production of grain oriented electrical
steel sheets in New Jersey federal court, the United States. As of December 31, 2012, the
Company is under discovery proceeding prior (o the official defend.
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Pue to the early stage of the litigations, the Company is not able to reliably estimate the
amount of compensation, If any, that might be awarded to Nippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal
Corporation.  Consequently, it i3 not possible for the Company to make an estimate of the
expected financial effect that will resuit from the ultimate resolution of the ¢ivil lawsuits.  The
Company has not recorded any provision for those lawsuits as of December 31, 2012 because
management believes the possibility of unfaverable cutcome is not probable.  In the opinion
of management, the foregoing lawsuits and claims will not have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s financial position, operating results or cash flows.

2% Gther lawsaits and claims

The Company is involved in 14 other lawsuits and claims for alleged damages aggregsting o
W55.2 billion as of December 31, 2012 which arose in the ordinary course of business.  The
Coompany is unable to predict the possible outcome of the above claims.  However, in the
opinion of management, the foregoing fawsuits and claims will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s {inancial position, operating results or cash flows.  No provision is
recorded in conmection with the above lawsuits and claims as of December 31, 20172,

35, Cash Flews from Operating Activities

Changes in operating assets and labilities for the vears ended December 31, 2017 and 2011 were as
follows:

{in milfions of Won) 812 2011
Financial assets held for trading W 30,1532 132,208
Trade accounts and potes receivabls 147,670 (663,827
Other accounts receivable (25874} (156,186)
Accured mcome 601 -
Advance payments 367 13
Prepaid expenses (18.273) {3,793
ventories 1,740,679 (1.146,630)
Long-term gusrantee deposils (85} 339
Other lomg-ferm assets (348} -
Trade accounts payable (415,787) 86,164
Dhvidends Pavable - 487
Other accounsts vavable 19072 T, 146
Accrued expenses 192,539 1445
Advances recetved 73339 (12,093
Withholdings (4.572) 1,147
Unearned revenug 3,284 {2,486}
(ther long-term Habilities a7 {5,617)
Dervatives habifities held for wading - HO.898
Payment severance benelits (66,1003 (485487
Plan assets {137.842) 201914
W 1470440 (1958,361)
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36, Non- Cash Transactions

Significant non-cash transactions for the vesrs ended December 31, 20172 and 2011 were as follows:

(in mitlions of Warj PALY 9 2031

Other non-corrent asset transferred to vestments i associates W 57878 -
Constraction-m-progress transferred o other accounts 1,927 489 3719032
Francial guarantee liabilitios 45,4472 G484
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Independent Auditors’ Beview Report on loternal Accounting Control Sysiem

Enchish Transiauon of a Report Originally Jssued m Korean

Ty the President of
POSCO:

We have reviewed the accompanying Report on the Operations of Internal Accounting Control
System (“IACE™y of POSCO {the “Company™) as of December 31, 2012, The Company’s
managament is responsible for designing and maintatning cffective TACS and for itg assessment of the
effectiveness of TACSE,  Our responsibility is fo review management's assessment and issue a report
based on our review. In the sccompanving report of management’s assessment of TACS, the
Company’s management stated: “Based on the assessment on the (}puducm of + ra, IACS, the
Company’s TACS has been effectively designed and 1s operating as of December 31, 2012, in al
material respects, in accordance with the TACS Framework issued by the Internal —‘mcoam ting Control
System Operation Committee.”

We conducted our review in sccordance with TACS Review Standards, issued by the Korean Instituie
of Certified Public Accountants.  Those Standards require that we plan and perform the review o
obtain assurance of a level less than that of an audit as to whether Report on the Operations of Infernal
Accounting Control System is free of material misstatement.  Our review consists principally of
obtaining an understanding of the Company’s TACS, inquiries of company personnel about the details
of the report, and racing to related documents we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion,

A company's TACS is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in conformiiy
with Korean International Financial Reporting Standards.  Because of its inherent Hmitations,
however, IACS may not prevent or detect misstatemenis.  Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that LGHHOEH 1wy become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Based on our review, nothing has come to cur attention thai Report on the Operations of Internal
Accounting Control System as of December 31, 2612 is not prepared in all material respects, in
accordance with TACS Framoework issued by the nternal Accounting Control System Operation
Committee

This report applies to the Company’s TACS in existence as of December 31, 2012, We did not
review the Company’s TACS subsequent to Decemsber 31, 2012, This report has been prepared for
Korean regulatory pusposes, pursuant to the Hxternal Audit Law, snd may not be appropriate for other
purposes or for other users.

Seoul, Korea
Fehroary xx, 2013



Folio25

Motice 1o Readers

‘this report is apmexed in relation to the audit of the separate financial statements as of December 31,
2012 and the review of mternal accounting control system pursuant to Article 223 of the Act on
External Audit for Jomi-stock Companies of the Republic of Korea,
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Kenort on the Operations of Internal Accounting Control Svstem

English Translation of a Report Originally Issued in Korean

o~
i

To the Board of Directors and Audit Corgmittee o
POSC

Loas the Interpal Accounting Conirel Officer CTACO™ of POSCO {the “Company™), have assessed
the status of the design and operations of the Company’s internal accounting control system (“IACS™)

for the vear ended December 31, 2012,

The Company’s management inciuding IACO is responsible for the design and operations of its TACS.
I, as the IACO, have assessed whether the TACS hag been effectively designed and is operating to
prevent and detect any error or fraud which may cause any misstatement of the financial statements,
for the purpose of establishing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes. I, as the IACO, applied the TACS Framework for the assessment of
design and operations of the IACS.

Based on the assessment of the operations of the TACS, the Company’s TACS has been effectively
designed and is operating as of December 31, 2012, in all material respects, in accordance with the
IACS Framework issued by the Internal Accounting Control System Operation Committee,

Chief Fxecutive Oificer or President

Internel Accounting Control Officer

February xx, 2013
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Table of Income Statements
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POSCO
PUBLIC RECORD

POSCO
Hot Rolled Plate Seel
INCOME STATEMENT |INDEXED]

Investigation period:
Accounts I January - 31 December 2012
All products The goods
Net sales (1) 10,000 10,006 |
Cost of sales (2) 8,704 8,291
Gross profit (3=1-2} 1,296 1,709
Administrative Expenses (4} - 239 4. 239
Selling Expenses (5} - 275 1- 275
Other operating income {6} 20 20
Other operating expenses {7) - 94 |- 94
Oeprating profit (§=3+4+5+6+7) 708 1,121
Financial income (9) 380 380
Financial costs (10} - 213 |- 213
Profit before tax (11=8+9+10) 875 1,288
Tax {12} 175 175
Net profit (13=11-12) 701 1,114




Folio21

Appendix A-9

Company’s Turnover Table
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POSCO PUBLIC RECORD

POSCO
Hot Rolled Plate Steel
SALES SUMMARY (INDEXED)

investigation period:
1 January - 31 December 2012
Volume (MT) Value {Thousand KRW)
Total company turnover {alt products) 100.0
domestic market 599
exports to Australia 0.1
exports to other countries 406.0
Turnover of the sector including the goods 1660
domestic market 72.4
exports to Australia 0.1
exports to cther countries 274
Turnover of the goods 100.G
domestic market 72.4
exports to Australia 0.1
exports to other countries 274
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Appendix A-10

Flowchart of Production Process
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Appendix A-11

Production Information
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Appendix B-1

Customer Information

for Export Sales to Australia
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Appendix B-5

Sample Documentation

for Two Export Sales to Australia
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POSCO PUBLIC RECORD

Sample Documentation for Export Sale to Australia

(1) Serial Number {SN): 6

(2) Invoice Number: [ ]
(3) Invoice Date; 20120405

(4) Quantity : | 1 (MT)

(5} Customer Name: | ]
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POSCO PUBLIC RECORD

Sample Documentation for Export Sale to Australia

(1) Serial Number (SN): 238

(2) Invoice Number: | ]
(3) Invoice Date: 20121003

(4) Quantity : [ 1 {(MT)

(5) Customer Name: [ ]
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Product Code List
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POSCO's Product Group / Name

(1) Product Group/Name Code for Finished Products

Folio7
FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

Classification

Product Group

Group

Code

Name

Code

Carbon Steel

K

ZA

2B

2D

2E

2F

6

Gl

AT}

P

Pl

v

FX

FY

13

e

G

GK

M

GN

G

HIY

HE

HE

H

HH

HE

HL

HiN

S

T

HV

LA

LB

[

LK

[
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{assification

Product Group

Crrouap

Code

Name

Code

MH

M

NB

NC

NA

ND

NE

PR

PL

B

SE

Sk

SG

VB

WA

WH

yAS]

£

7Jd

2K

Zi

/M

IN

ZP

70

IR

LS

L1

ZV

STS Sweel

52

SK

5L

oD

QF

G

QI

QF

K

R

HM

RX

RY

RZ

R2

L

LD

X

XD

YA

Titanium

KR

K

KT

Or

YE

aC

4H

4R

4P

7]

TA

8

e

7D

T

T

T

TH

RY

B i

HA

18

()
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Classification

Product Group

Group

Code

Name

Code

Commos

8

8D

#E

RE

BC

3H

8]

8K

8.

5

aP

89

R

85

e

L%

BV

W

RY

B

213

G-

(2) Product Group/Name Code for Semi-finished Products

Classification

Product Group

Group

Code

Name

Code

i5

1A

1B

i

18

ik

tr

G

1H

1]

K

1L

iM

IN

2A

21

20

20D

2E

I

203

2H

A

i3

3C

674

63

6

AN

Al

AL

AH

Al

AK

AL

AM

AN

B

Bl

BG

R

Bl

()
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Classification

Product Group

{iroup

Code

Name

Code

BK

13F

B3M

BN

BP

BG

BA

|1

B

CA

B

£

Ch

Cl

CF

CG

CH

)

K

CL

M

N

cp

LQ

or

[2A

[BiE]

De

[8]3]

DI

EA

ER

EC

By

G

EH

12}

A

Fi3

FC

D

I'E

FG

FHE

Il

K

33

"M

I'N

F P

R

kS

F

FV

W

X

Y

A

GR

GO

GH

G}

GK

55

GM

N

Gl
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Classification

Product Group

Group

Code

Name

Code

GV

HA

HB

HE

HD

HE

HE

H

HH

R

HK

Hi.

HM

HN

HP

HO

HS

HT

HiJ

HV

J."\.

i

1D

1

IF

JGx

i#

1A

LB

L2

LK

1M

LN

LP

L0

LR

MA

MB

MC

WD

ME

M-

MG

MIi

W

NA

NE

NC

ND

NI

PR

PL

PA

PR

PC

P

P

1}

SA

5B

S

S

SE

SE

S0

SH

sl

SK

WA

VI

WA
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Classification

Product Group

Lroup

Code

Name

B

£l

5K

5M

5P

KA

KB

A

OB

QU

GD

Ql:

Qr

{6

GH

QJ

OR

QL

O

0N

Qr
Q4

R2

R3

Ri

RA

RE

RC

R

RE

R¥

R

RH

R

R

RL

RM

RN

RO

RR

RS

RT

WL

5}
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Classification

Product Group

Crroup

Code

Name

Code

RV

RW

R

RY

RZ

TA

A

U

{818

XA

XB

X

XD

YA

K

K1

KE

Kl

KG

K14

kP

KRR

KS

T

P

JQ

IR

OA

(&8

OF

¥B

Y{

YD

YE

4H

4F

44

4R

4M

AN

4P

&L

R

9A

913

5C

ki

of:
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